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NOTE TO INVESTORS 

This Prospectus (the “Prospectus”) contains information regarding the share capital increase by 

means of an initial primary public offering of Shares initiated in Romania by S.C. TERAPLAST 

S.A. (“Teraplast” or the „Issuer”), a joint stock company registered with the Register of 

Commerce under no. J6/735/1992, having a share capital of RON 24,822,990 divided in       

248, 229,900 ordinary nominative shares with a nominal value of RON 0.1 each, evidenced by 

book entry (the “Existing Shares”). The offered Shares, namely 49,645,980 newly issued 

Shares, representing 20% of the current share capital, with the increase option for an additional 

number of 12,411,495 shares (5% of the current share capital) having a nominal value of RON 

0.1 ("the Offered Shares") are subject to an initial primary public offering for sale on the 

Romanian capital market (the „Offering”). The Capital Increase was decided by way of 

Resolutions no. 4 as of 19 September 2007 and no. 2 as of 28 February 2008 passed by the 

Issuer's Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting. 

Before the registration of the capital increase related to the Offered Shares with the Trade 

Registry and the Central Depository, holders of shares can trade their allotment rights. 

References in this Prospectus to the Offered Shares will also apply to the allotment rights, 

except where otherwise required by the context. 

The Issuer will request the admission to trading on the Bucharest Stock Exchange of the Offered 

Shares and of the allotment rights. 

The Manager is not entitled to make any statement, express or implied, regarding the 

correctness or completeness of the information included in this Prospectus. This Prospectus was 

elaborated with the intention to be the basis of assessment by potential investors of the Offering 

and should not be construed as a recommendation of the Issuer or the Manager to acquire 

Shares. Each potential investor should assess the importance of the information included in this 

Prospectus and the decision to buy Shares should rely on its own analysis and investigations.  

When making an investment decision, investors should rely on their own analysis on the Issuer, 

on the conditions existing in Romania and on the rules and conditions of the present Offering, 

including the advantages and inherent risks (see Chapter “Risk Factors”). 

Potential investors should not construe the content of this Prospectus as a recommendation to 

invest or as a legal or tax related recommendation.  

No person is authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in 

this Prospectus and any such information or representation not contained herein should be 

considered as not having the authorisation of the Issuer or the Manager.  

The Manager acts exclusively for the Issuer in connection to the Offering and will not be liable, 

legally or contractually, towards other persons. No other person than the Issuer can be 

considered the Manager’s client in connection to the Offering and can benefit, by extension, of 

any right granted by the law or contract to the Manager’s clients.  
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This Prospectus does not represent an offering or an invitation made by the Issuer or on behalf 

of the Issuer or the Manager to subscribe or buy Shares in the jurisdictions where such offering 

or invitation is not authorised or is illegal. The distribution in certain jurisdictions of this 

Prospectus and the Offering may be limited by law. The persons being in the possession of the 

Prospectus are requested by both the Issuer and the Manager to get information regarding such 

restrictions and limitations and to comply with the same.   

The Shares have not been and will not be registered according to the 1933 Securities Law of the 

United Stated of America. The Shares cannot be offered, sold or delivered in the United States 

of America or to American citizens or nationals.  

The Issuer and the Manager will not be liable for executing the Investors’ subscriptions in 

conformity with this Prospectus in case of force majeure (cases of force majeure mean 

unforeseen and unavoidable events or, in any case, events beyond the parties’ control, including 

but not limited to wars, riots, rebellions, civil turmoil, acts of god, fire, flood, storms, strikes or 

any other general disturbances in the work process). 

After having checked this Prospectus, the Issuer, through its Board of Directors, accepted to 

assume the liability for its content and confirms that, according to its knowledge, it contains all 

the important information regarding the Issuer and the Issuer’s shares, that such information is 

real and accurate in all material respect and that all the Issuer’s opinions, forecasts and 

intentions included herein are expressed in good faith and there is no other fact or aspect that 

was omitted from this Prospectus and (i) which would have been necessary so as to allow the 

investors and their advisors to make a correct assessment of all the assets and liabilities, 

financial condition, profit or loss and perspectives of the Issuer, as well as the rights related to 

Shares; (ii) the omission of which may lead to forming an incorrect opinion regarding certain 

relevant aspects pertaining to the Issuer’s activity, or (iii) which, in the context of the Offering, 

would have been or would be important and necessary to be included in this Prospectus. 

The NSC has authorised this Prospectus through Decision No. 594 of 27.03.2008.  
The authorization endorsement on the public offering prospectus shall not be constructed as a 
guarantee nor represents other form of appreciation by the NSC with respect to the opportunity, 
advantages or disadvantages, profit or risks that may be implied by the transactions to be 
concluded by accepting the public offering subject to the authorization decision. The 

authorization decision certifies only the compliance of the prospectus with the legal 
requirements and the norms adopted for the application thereof. 
 

This document is available at the Issuer’s headquarters (see Chapter "Additional Information"). 

The information contained in this Prospectus is correct as of the date on which this Prospectus 

was drafted, as mentioned on the cover. The Issuer’s activity, financial condition, financial 

results obtained and the information included in the Prospectus may subsequently change. 
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION 

In this Prospectus, unless the context requires otherwise, the “Issuer” or “Teraplast” refers to 

Teraplast S.A., while the “Group” refers to the Issuer and all its subsidiaries. 

Financial statements 

The Issuer keeps its accounting records in RON and elaborates the financial statements 

required by the Romanian tax authorities in RON, according to the applicable tax regulations. 

The Group’s financial statements as of 30 June 2007, 31 December 2006, 2005 and 2004 

attached to the Prospectus were elaborated according to the International Financial Reporting 

Standards, as adopted by the IASB (International Accounting Standards Board).  

Information regarding the market  

The information regarding the market contained in this Prospectus, including market shares, 

growth rates, revenues from sales or production volumes is public information or was 

obtained based on some internal analyses or specialised sources. For example, the Issuer 

quotes information regarding the market from various studies elaborated by the NBR, BSE, 

Neomar Consulting, the National Institute of Statistics, Eurostat, CMAI & Solvay. 

The market surveys coming from various sources and/or related to different periods may be 

elaborated according to different methodologies or may be based on different information 

sources and may be inconsistent. 

The information obtained from specialized and governmental sources were not verified by the 

issuer or the Manager, while the information obtained based on the Issuer’s internal analyses 

was not verified by independent sources. The Issuer confirms that, according to its 

knowledge, the information derived from other sources was accurately reproduced and no 

data that would make such information incorrect or misleading were omitted. 
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 FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Prospectus contains statements, other than the ones related to past events, pertaining to 

the Issuer’s perspectives. These forward looking statements mainly consider the Issuer’s plans 

and expectations, its objectives and strategies, growth and profitability, as well as the 

economic environment where the Issuer carries out its business. 

In certain cases, forward looking statements may be identified in the Prospectus when the 

appropriate terminology is used, including words such as “believes”, “considers”, “expects”, 

“anticipates”, “estimates”, “appreciates”, “intends”, “has in mind”, “forecasts”, “may”, 

“plans”, as well as their negative forms or similar expressions or through discussions 

regarding future strategies, plans, objectives, intentions or events. 

In their nature, this type of forward looking statements implies a series of risks, either 

predictable or unpredictable, a certain uncertainty degree, as well as other important factors 

that may make the effective results be significantly different from the ones included in certain 

predictions, perspectives, projections or other forward looking statements. These factors that 

may render certain predictions, perspectives, projections or other forward looking statements 

unachievable include, without being limited to: 

• impact of certain laws and regulations and their interpretation or enforcement; 

• changes in the Issuer’s industry and changes in the overall economic environment; 

• Issuer’s ability to successfully implement any of its strategies; 

• Issuer’s capacity to manage its indebtedness ratio; 

• competition’s effects; 

• risks due to changes/volatility of raw materials;  

• changes in the governmental policy and political and social conditions; 

• inflation, fluctuations of interest rates and exchange rates; 

• factors not known by the Issuer at present. 

Some of the factors mentioned above are detailed in the Chapters “Risk Factors”, “Issuer’s 

Financial Statements and Results” and “Description of the Issuer’s Activity”. 

Considering the above, the investors are cautioned not to rely exclusively on such forward 

looking statements. The Issuer expressly disclaims any liability to update the forward looking 

statements contained in the Prospectus so as to include possible changes in the Issuer’s 

expectations or in the conditions or circumstances on which such statements were based, after 

the offering is closed.  

 



 

   v 

DEFINITIONS 

Shares  All the shares issued by the Issuer at a certain time, before 

or after the Offering. 

Existing Shares All the shares issued by the Issuer as of the date of this 

Prospectus, namely a number of 248,229,900 shares, having 

a nominal value of RON 0.1 each. 

Offered Shares The Shares newly issued by the Issuer within the initial 

primary public offering, namely 49,645,980 shares 

representing 20% of the Issuer's current share capital with 

the increase option for an additional number of 12,411,495 

shares (5% of the current share capital) with a nominal 

value of RON 0.1 each. 

Articles of Association Articles of Association of Teraplast SA  

Custodian Banks Commercial banks authorised by the National Bank of 

Romania to operate in Romania and by the NSC to carry 

out securities custody services according to the applicable 

legislation in force. 

NBR National Bank of Romania. 

BSE Bucharest Stock Exchange. 

NSC National Securities Commission. 

Competition Council The autonomous administrative authority in the competition 

domain, with legal capacity, excercising its duties in 

accordance with the Competion Law.  

Board of Directors Issuer’s Board of Directors. 

Intermediation Contract Contract concluded between the Issuer and the Manager in 

order to intermediate the Offering. 

Lock up agreement The contract concluded between the Issuer and Mr. Goia, 

Mr. Viciu, Marley Magyarorszag Zrt. and SIF Banat 

Crisana, in their capacity of shareholders, with respect to 

the shares transfer restrictions. 

Collection Accounts The accounts opened by the Manager for the purpose of 

collecting the amounts corresponding to the subscriptions 

within the Offering, as identified at the Chapter “Terms and 

Conditions of the Offering”. 

Allotment Date The second Business Day after the conclusion of the 

Offering, on which the Allotment index is determined, the 

Offering Price is set and the Offered Shares are allocated 
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within the Offering.    

Settlement Date  The third Business Day following the Transaction Date, on 

which the settlement process for the Offered, subscribed 

and allocated Shares within the Offering is completed. 

Transaction Date The Business Day on which the transactions are carried out 

on the BSE electronic system, being the same as the 

Allotment Date. 

Deloitte 

 

Deloitte Audit SRL, a company organised and functioning 

in accordance with the Romanian law, with headquarters in 

Bucharest, 4-8 Soseaua Nicolae Titulescu, 3
rd
 floor, sector 

1, tax registration number 7756924, registered with the 

Bucharest Trade Registry under no. J40/6775/1995. 

Central Depository The institution providing depository, registering, clearing 

and settlement services in connection to transactions with 

securities, as well as other operations connected therewith, 

as defined in the Capital Market Law, having the quality of 

administrator of the RoClear payment system assuring 

funds clearing and settlement of operations with securities. 

Allotment Rights The short-term securities issued in dematerialised form and 

registered into accounts, attached to the Offered Shares 

attesting the right of their holders to receive Shares, which 

will be allocated at the registration date of the Capital 

Increase with the Trade Registry and with the Central 

Depository. References in this Prospectus to the Shares will 

also refer to the Allotment Rights except where otherwise 

required by the context. 

Issuer or the Company or 

Teraplast 

S.C. Teraplast S.A., a joint stock company registered with 

the Trade Registry under number J6/735/1992 and tax 

registration code RO 3094980, with headquarters in 17/A 

Romana Street, Bistrita, Bistrita-Nasaud county. 

Euro or EUR The single currency of European Union member states that 

adopted it as official currency according to the European 

Union legislation. 

Distribution Group The network of Raiffeisen Bank branches, which assists the 

Manager in distributing the Offered Shares according to the 

distribution contract. 

Teraplast Group or the Group The Group consisting of the Issuer and the companies 

Politub and Plastsistem. 
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IAS The International Accounting Standards, as defined by 

IASC (International Accounting Standards Committee), 

included in the International Financial Reporting Standards. 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by 

the IASB (International Accounting Standards Board). 

Offering Price Range The Offering Price Range is the price range provided in this 

document as between RON 1 and RON 1.4, within which 

limits the Offering Price will be decided. 

Competition Law Law no. 21/1996, as republished in the Official Gazette no. 

742 of 16 August 2005, as subsequently amended and 

completed. 

Capital Market Law Law no. 297/2004 regarding capital market, published in 

the Official Gazette no. 571 of 29 June 2004, as 

subsequently amended and completed. 

Companies Law Companies Law no. 31/1990, republished in the Official 

Gazette no. 1066 of 17 November 2004, as subsequently 

amended and completed. 

Capital Increase The increase of the Issuer's share capital, as decided under 

Resolutions no. 4 as of 19 September 2007 and no. 2 as of 

28 February 2008, of the Issuer's Extraordinary General 

Shareholders Meeting. 

Offering The present initial primary public offering for the sale of 

Shares having attached Allotment rights initiated by the 

Issuer according to the description included in the Chapter 

“Terms and Conditions of the Offering”. 

Offering Period The Offering Period as described in the section with the 

same title included in the Chapter “Terms and Conditions of 

the Offering”. 

Plastsistem 

 

SC Plastsistem S.A., a joint stock company, registered with 

the Trade Registry under no. J6/1009/1994, tax registration 

code RO 6694483, having its registered office in DN 15 A 

KM 45+500, zip code 4400. 

Politub SC Politub SRL, a limited liability company, registered 

with the Trade Registry under no. J6/1008/1994, tax 

registration code RO 6694491, having its registered office 

in 66-68 Lucian Blaga Street, zip code 4400. 

Offering Price  The final Offering Price as set by the Issuer, after 

consulting the Manager, as described in the section with the 
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same title included in the Chapter “Terms and Conditions of 

the Offering”. 

Prospectus The present Prospectus regarding the initial primary public 

offering for the sale of the Issuer’s Shares having attached 

allotment rights, approved by the NSC in order to carry out 

the Offering. 

Raiffeisen Bank Raiffeisen Bank SA, a credit institution authorised by the 

National Bank of Romania according to the authorisation 

no. A/000003 of 01.07.1994, with headquarters in 

Bucharest, 15 Charles de Gaulle Square, 4th, 5th, 6th, 7th 

and 8th floor, sector 1, tax registration code RO 361820, 

registered with the Trade Registry attached to the Bucharest 

Municipality High Court under number J40/44/1991. 

RCI or the Manager Raiffeisen Capital & Investment S.A., a financial 

investment services company authorised by the NSC 

according to the authorisation no. 1990 of 30.06.2005, with 

headquarters at 15 Charles de Gaulle Square, sector 1, 

Bucharest, Romania, tax registration code 10715860, 

registered with the Trade Registry attached to the Bucharest 

Municipality High Court under number J40/6102/1998. 

Trade Registry The Trade Registry Office attached to the Bistrita-Nasaud 

High Court. 

Romanian Accounting 

Regulations 

Order no. 94/2001 of the Minister of Public Finance, Orders 

no. 1827/2003 and 1775/2004 of the Minister Of Public 

Finance for the financial years ended as at 31 December 

2004, and 31 December 2005 respectively and Order no. 

1752/2005 of the Minister Of Public Finance, as 

subsequently amended  for the financial year ended as at 31 

December 2006. 

ROL Romania’s official currency until 1 July 2005. 

RON or Lei  Romania’s official currency starting 1 July 2005 

EU European Union 

USD American dollar, the official currency in the United States 

of America. 

Business Day Any day on which both the Romanian inter-bank market, 

the BSE trading systems and Central Depository clearing-

settlement systems are opened for business. 
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SUMMARY OF THE PROSPECTUS 

The following summary should be read only as an introduction to the present Prospectus, 

being based on the more detailed information contained herein and the financial statements 

attached hereto and should be corroborated therewith. Certain terms used in this summary 

are defined under other chapters included in this Prospectus. 

Investors should not limit themselves to reading this summary, and any decision to invest in 

the Shares should be made only after reading the entire Prospectus. 

Before initiating a legal procedure in connection to the information included in this 

Prospectus, the plaintiff will have to bear the costs of translating the Prospectus in 

Romanian. The civil liability in case the summary is misleading, inconsistent or inexact or 

contradictory to other parts of the Prospectus will be borne by the Issuer. 

Presentation of the Issuer 

Established in 1992 and comprising the terracotta and the plastics plants, Teraplast continues 

the tradition of 111 years in manufacturing the terracotta tiles.  

In 1999 Teraplast took over the investment of Rompetrol S.A. in Politub, becoming the main 

shareholder with a participation of 50% along side the French partners from Socotub. During 

the first semester of 2007, Teraplast became a majority shareholder with a participation of 

almost 66.96% in Plastsistem. At the end of 2007 Teraplast's shareholding in Plastsistem 

reached 70.42%. 

Teraplast together with Politub and Plastsistem have established the basis of the Teraplast 

Group, one of the largest PVC processors in Romania. The Teraplast Group is currently 

capable of supplying the construction material market with modern, efficient and innovative 

constructive solutions, such as draining, sewage and culvert systems, interior design systems, 

thermo-insulating joinery systems or exterior enclosure systems based on thermo-insulating 

panels.  

The Issuer currently owns several production facilities having rather different objects of 

activity: the pipe and PP fittings plant, the PVC pipe plant, the PVC profile and PVC 

thermosetting graining plant, the PVC profiles and inflexible graining plant, the glass and 

thermo-insulating Orizont joinery plant, the terracotta plant. In addition, there is also the PE 

pipe plant owned by Politub and the thermo-insulating sandwich panels owned by 

Plastsistem.  
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The Issuer’s competitive advantages 

In pursuing its strategic goal the Teraplast Group enjoys a number of competitive advantages, 

such as: 

• The size of the business, translated in the significant quantities of products delivered to 

clients; 

• The diversity of the portfolio of products offered to clients, represented by a large range 

of pipes, fittings and piping for interior and exterior sewage systems, for transport and 

distribution of drinking water, industrial fluids and hot water, water and gas transport and 

distribution networks or telecommunication cable protection; 

• National coverage represented by its distribution network by means of its warehouses 

located in Bistrita, Bucharest, Constanta, Brasov, Galati, Iasi and Oradea; 

• Modern manufacturing facilities which include state of the art technology and which due 

to its automatic manufacturing processes contribute to the constant preservation of the 

quality standards and to obtaining the scheduled quantities, with reduced operating costs, 

consumption, maintenance and repairs; 

• The premium quality of the products offered by the Issuer, certified in accordance with 

SR EN ISO 9001:2000 by TUV CERT Suddeutchland for doors, windows and PVC 

profiles. In addition, the company pursues the objectives of the Total Quality 

Management TQM; 

• The SAP information management system, implemented by the Issuer approximately 4 

years ago which allows, due to the 8 modules installed out of the 10 existing ones, the 

monitoring of flows in real time and the efficient management of company resources; 

• The small number and highly trained personnel, 30% having high education, and the low 

employees turnover rate. 

See the Chapter "Description of the Issuer's Activity", section "Issuer's Competitive Benefits". 
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Strategy 

Currently enjoying a consolidated competitive position in its field of activity, the Teraplast 

Group seeks to become the largest supplier of integrated solutions and systems in the field of 

equipment and construction in Romania. Expanding the distribution area, the continuous 

improvement of quality and developing the portfolio by launching innovative products 

constitute the means used by the Issuer for achieving the proposed strategy. At the same time, 

the water and sewage infrastructure in Romania, less developed than other countries in this 

region and the unprecedented expansion of the local construction market currently represent a 

favourable context for reaching this strategic goal.  

This strategy can be achieved only if constantly maintaining the productivity parity with the 

other players in the field, both in Romania and abroad. For this reason the Issuer intends to 

permanently invest in modern equipment allowing for a productivity level comparable to that 

of the most advanced players in this field. Therefore, besides the territorial homogenous 

presence, which represents a major competitive advantage in the field of equipment and 

construction materials, the experience and the critical mass are factors which crucially 

contribute to consolidating its position in relation to the competition represented by other 

manufacturers both internally and internationally. In this respect, the Teraplast Group intends 

to develop the production activity at the same time with improving the operational efficiency 

and reducing the production costs by means of its relocation program of some of its 

production facilities located in Bistrita to the Saratel complex. Started in 2007 this program 

stipulates for investments in the extension and modernisation of the production capacities. 

And last but not least, the sale of a range of various products depends on creating a 

diversified client data base. The Issuer intends to strengthen the relations with its current 

clients (distributors, large store chains and construction companies) and increase their 

number, subject to careful management of the maximum exposure per client. At the same 

time, in order to meet its clients needs, the Teraplast Group completes its product portfolio 

with system components belonging to other producers. Thus, by mainly focusing on the 

partnership with its largest clients specialised in the filed of equipment, construction and 

construction materials, the Issuer has launched and will develop the "system" concept. This 

new concept represents the reorganisation of its portfolio depending on range of adjacent 

products with a unique specialisation and destination (draining, sewage, culvert, electrical 

installations, heating and windows systems), thus offering complete solutions and integrated 

systems to its clients. In addition, the Teraplast Group intends to raise the standards for its 

products in the field of installations, constructions and construction materials, by launching 

innovative equipment and construction solutions and systems. Moreover, in order to benefit 

from certain volume discounts for basic raw materials acquired, the Issuer intends to continue 

to maintain a main supplier for each of the main raw materials, by constantly recruiting 

alternative supplying sources. 
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Summary of the Offering 

Type of Offering  The initial primary public Offering for the sale of shares 

issued by the Issuer, with a fixed number of securities 

offered and an increase option. 

The Securities representing 

the object of the Offering 

Nominative shares issued in a dematerialised form, ordinary, 

indivisible and freely traded as of the date of their 

acceptance to trading under the First Tier Equity and 

Allotment Rights issued in dematerialised form, registered 

into accounts and freely transferable from the date of 

admission to trading, issued in relation to the Capital 

Increase of the Issuer, as approved by Resolutions no. 4 as 

of 19 September 2007 and no. 2 as of 28 February 2008 

passed by the Issuer's Extraordinary General Shareholders 

Meeting.  

The Issuer will apply for admission to trading on BSE of the 

Offered Shares and of the Allotment Rights.  

Investors The Shares Offered by Teraplast are offered to all the 

investors interested in subscribing to the Offering, upon 

observance of the legal applicable provisions. 

The number of Offered 

Shares 

A number of 49,645,980 shares representing 20% of the 

Issuer's current share capital, with the overallotment option 

for a number of 12,411,495 shares (5% of the current share 

capital). 

The Number of Allotment 

Rights attached to the 

Offered Shares 

A number of 49,645,980 Allotment Rights attached to the 

Offered Shares, with the increase option for a number of 

12,411,495 Allotment Rights attached to the Offered Shares 

(5% of the current share capital). 

The nominal value of the 

Offered Shares 

 

0.1 RON/Share 
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The value of the Offering  If all the Shares pertaining to the Offering are sold, the 

value of the Offering is RON 49,645,980 – 69,504,372 , the 

gross funds obtained pursuant to the Offering are expected 

to amount to approximately RON 49.65 mil. – 69.50 mil., 

and the net funds are expected to amount to approximately 

RON 48.4 mil. – 67.8 mil. after the deduction of fees and 

other costs related to the Offering and paid by the Issuer 

(including the fee of the Manager and the charges payable to 

NSC). 

Offering Price Range The Offering Price Range is the price range provided in this 

document comprised between RON 1 and RON 1.4, within 

which limits the Offering Price will be set. 

The Offering Price  

 

The final Offering Price decided by the Issuer, after 

consultation with the Manager, based on the list containing 

all the valid subscriptions, as follows: 

If the number of the Subscribed Shares is higher than the 

number of Offered Shares, the valid subscriptions registered 

will be ordered within a unique list, in descending order of 

the subscription price; 

The Issuer will decide the Offering Price, after consultation 

with the Manager, the Issuer's objective being that of 

obtaining an over-subscription level of at least twice the 

number of shares from the Offering, in view of obtaining a 

number of subscribers as high as possible, so that the Issuer 

could maximise its chances of being admitted to the First 

Tier Equity.  

If it fails to obtain an over-subscription level of at least twice 

the number of shares from the Offering, the Offering Price is 

established at the level of the lowest subscription price.  

All the subscriptions performed during the Offering Period 

at a price higher or equal to the Offering Price will be 

accepted at Offering Price. For the avoidance of any doubt, 

no subscriber will be obliged to buy, under any 

circumstance, Shares at a higher price than the price offered 



 

   - 6 - 

by way of its subscription. 

Subscriptions performed at a lower price than the Offering 

Price will not undergo Allotment process, namely they will 

be considered as automatically rejected by the Issuer.   

Announcement of the 

Offering Price 

The Manager will notify the investors, the NSC and the BSE 

with respect to the Offering Price on the Allotment Date. 

The Announcement of the Offering Price will be published 

on the Issuer's website www.teraplast.ro, on the Manager's 

website www.rciro.ro and as a press release on the BSE 

website under www.bvb.ro, and also in the BSE's trading 

system.   

The ISIN code  The ISIN code of the Shares: ROTRPLACNOR7 

The CFI code  The CFI code of the Shares: ESVUFR 

The Offering Period 

 

The Offering will be carried out between 7 April 2008 and  

17 April 2008, namely 9 business days (with the possibility 

of extending it in accordance with the regulations in force). 

Any amendment to the terms of the Offering will be made 

upon the Issuer's request with the NSC's prior approval and 

will me made public through an advertisement. The Offering 

is irrevocable during the entire Offering period. The 

Offering may be suspended in accordance with the capital 

market legislation. 

Preferential Subscription 

Rights  

Not applicable. 

Allotment Rights Until the date of the Capital Increase registration related to 

the Offered Shares with the Trade Registry and the Central 

Depository, the respective Offered Shares will be 

represented by Allotment Rights. The Allotment Rights are 

issued attached to the shares and are assigned, subsequent to 

the closing of the Offering Period, to the persons who have 

subscribed, fully paid Shares within the Offering and 

participated to the Allotment. 

The number of Allotment Rights is equal to the number of 



 

   - 7 - 

newly issued Shares, subscribed and fully paid within the 

Offering. The allotment ratio will be one (1) Share per one 

(1) Allotment Right. 

The Allotment Rights will be automatically transformed into 

Shares upon the registration of the Capital Increase with the 

Trade Registry and the Central Depository.   

For a more detailed description of the Allotment Rights, 

please see the "Risk Factors" Chapter – "Risk factors related 

to the Shares and to the Allotment Rights". 

Subscription During the entire Offering Period, the Investors’ subscription 

orders will be taken over at the headquarters of the Manager 

and the Distribution Group, between 9:00 – 15:00 hrs. 

Romanian time, while on the last day of the Offering the 

subscription orders will be taken over between 9:00-13:00 

hrs.  The deadline for subscriptions is  17 April 2008. After 

the deadline expires, no subscriptions from investors will be 

accepted. 

The Manager will register all the subscriptions received, if 

these comply with the validity terms, using the BSE 

Offering Market electronic system (POF market – “Public 

Offerings”). 

The subscriptions are opposable to the Issuer as of the 

registration of the subscription with the Orders Register. The 

deadline for registering the subscriptions in the Orders 

Register is 21 April 2008. 

The Manager is obliged to ensure that, for each order placed 

on the primary market, the funds corresponding to the 

subscription were credited to one of the accounts stated in 

the Offering announcement or will be settled by a custodian 

bank. 

The difference between the subscribed amount and the value 

of the shares allocated at the Offering Price, less the banking 

transfer commissions via payment order charged by 

Raiffeisen Bank, will be reimbursed to the subscribers 
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within a maximum of five Business Days from the Offering 

closing date.   

Allotment method The Allotment of Shares among the subscribers with 

subscriptions at a higher or at equal price to the Offering 

Price will be performed at the end of the Subscription Period.  

If the number of subscribed Shares is lower or equal to the 

number of Offered Shares, each subscriber will receive the 

number of subscribed Shares. If the number of subscribed 

Shares is higher or equal to the number of Offered Shares, the 

Offered Shares will be allocated proportionally ("pro rata") to 

the number of subscribed shares. 

If during the process of pro rata Allotment, fractions of 

Shares should be allocated, the fraction Allotment will be 

made according to the BSE algorithm. 

The unsubscribed Offered Shared will be cancelled. 

Cancellation of subscription 

orders 

Subscriptions performed within the Offering are irrevocable. 

If the present Prospectus is subject to an amendment, the 

subscriptions may be withdrawn within a maximum of three 

Business Days from the date on which the respective 

amendment to the present Prospectus was published. An 

investor may withdraw its subscription by filling in a 

revocation form at the unit where the subscription was made. 

Method of Payment of the 

Subscribed Offered Shares 

The subscriptions can be made at the headquarters of  the 

Manager and the Distribution Group based on the payments 

made to the following accounts: 

RO93RZBR0000060004592833, opened with Raiffeisen 

Bank Bucharest Branch, beneficiary Raiffeisen Capital & 

Investment S.A., for the subscriptions made at the branches 

of Raiffeisen Bank SA; 

RO13RZBR0000060002087405, opened with Raiffeisen 

Bank Bucharest Branch, beneficiary Raiffeisen Capital & 

Investment S.A., for the subscriptions made through 
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Raiffeisen Capital & Investment S.A.; 

All the subscriptions will be made according to the 

subscription procedures described at Chapter "Subscription 

procedures and distribution network" of this Prospectus. 

Successful closing of the 

Offering 

The Offering will be considered successfully closed if, on its 
closing date, minimum 70% of the Offered Shares were 
subscribed. In case this condition is not complied with, the 
subscriptions will be rejected and the amounts paid during 
the Subscription Period will be returned to the Investors 
within maximum 5 business days from the offering closing 

date. 

Notice to Investors Within five Business Days from the date on which the NSC 

issues the reply to the notice regarding the results of the 

Offering, the Manager will publish an announcement in two 

newspapers with national coverage regarding the 

subscription rate. 

Manager Raiffeisen Capital & Investment SA 

Intermediation Method Best efforts method. 

Guarantee of subscription The Offering is not guaranteed. There is no commitment of 

the Manager or of another entity to subscribe any part of the 

Offering in case it remains unsubscribed. 

Shareholders Register The Shareholders Register kept by the Central Depository, 

according to the provisions of the register contract, which is 

to be concluded between the Issuer and the Central 

Depositary.  

Transaction Date The transaction date is 21 April 2008. 

Settlement of Subscriptions 

made within the Offering 

The settlement will be carried out through the Central 

Depository clearing-settlement system within three Business 

Days from the Transaction Date. 

Lock up Agreement Mr Goia, Mr Viciu, Marley Magyarorszag Zrt. and SIF 

Banat Crisana, as shareholders irrevocably undertook 

towards the Issuer, during a period of 180 days from the 

Offering commencement date not to sell or not to dispose of 
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in any way whatsoever, free of charge or for money, not to 

conclude sale-purchase pre-agreements, not to offer, pledge, 

allocate, grant any kind of options or any other rights, not to 

assume any obligation to sell or not to conclude any contract 

regarding or in connection to the shares held in the Issuer’s 

share capital or any rights related thereto. 



 

   - 11 - 

Summary of Risk Factors 

Any investment in securities implies certain risks. Before making a decision, potential Investors 

should carefully read this Prospectus in its entirety. The Investors should consider, among other 

things, the aspects presented below. 

Risk factors regarding Romania 

• Romania is an emerging market 

• Romania might incur difficulties in connection with the EU post-accession risk  

• The legal and judiciary system in Romania might affect the activity of the Issuer and of 

the Group 

• The transparency level of the issuers and public information can be lower than in other 

European states 

• Romania might incur difficulties in efficiently absorbing the structural funds from the 

European Union. 

Risk factors regarding the market on which the Issuer carries out its business 

• The competition on the market where the Issuer performs its activity 

• The demand for the Issuer's products is affected by seasonality 

• The Issuer's activity might be affected if the necessary authorisations, including those 

related to environmental protection, would not be obtained or renewed 

• The financial crisis of the international markets might reflect on the Romanian market 

and might limit the financing possibilities 

Risk factors regarding the Issuer 

• The main shareholders of the Issuer may exercise a significant influence over the Issuer 

and their interest may not always correspond to the interests of the other shareholders 

• The Issuer’s activity may be affected by interruptions in raw materials supply  

• The Issuer may lose management staff or certain people of significant importance for the 

Group’s activity  

• The Group’s projects may not be completed or may exceed the established terms or the 

initially estimated budget and may not lead to the expected economic and commercial 

results  

• The implementation of the Group’s efficiency optimisation program may be delayed, 

may be more expensive than expected or it may not lead to the proposed productivity 

level 

• Failure to insure the production facilities and equipment against degradation or 

destruction risks may affect the Issuer’s activity 

• The Issuer’s activity may be affected by interruptions in the production process 
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• Issuer is exposed to reputation risk for product flaws 

• Expense allocation on cost centres   

• The indebtedness ratio and charges on the assets may affect the Issuer’s financial 

condition and results 

• The Group’s companies may face difficulties in obtaining the necessary financing for 

developing their activity 

• The Issuer may be affected by foreign exchange rate volatility 

• Possible strikes or other protests from employees may lead to disruptions in the Issuer’s 

activity 

• Issuer's transparency could be affected by malfunctions in the document management 

system and delivery of information within the Company 

• The Issuer's properties in Bistrita may be subject to certain restitution claims 

• The operation by means of which the Issuer gained control in Plastsistem is under 

analysis by the Competition Council 

Risk factors regarding the Offering 

• Admission to trading on the BSE of the Shares and the Allotment Rights 

• The risk of potential delays in achieving the stages related to the capital increase process 

of the Issuer 

• The Offering might not lead to the creation of a liquid market for Shares and investors 

might not succeed in selling the Shares at the Offering Price or at a higher price 

• The Shares have not been subject to a public offering for sale. As a consequence, the 

price of the Shares can be more volatile than in the case of shares of a company already 

listed 

• Shares price volatility may have an adverse effect on the holders of such Shares 

• Frequent stops of the Shares from trading 
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Selected Financial Information 

 

According to the Group’s statement, the financial statements for the 3-year period ended on 31 

December 2006, Deloitte, approved auditor, audited the Issuer’s IFRS financial statements for 

the three-year period ended on 31 December 2006, and issued the audit report regarding the 

financial statements referred to in the Prospectus.  

Deloitte liability for the content of the Prospectus is limited to the report mentioned above and 

the liability statements belonging to Deloitte Audit SRL were included in the respective reports.  

The Issuer's financial statements were audited in accordance with the International Standards on 

Auditing (ISA), which provide that the auditor should make an opinion on whether the financial 

statements reflect under all significant aspects the financial condition, operational results and 

cash flows in accordance with (International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The 

International Standards on Auditing (ISA) provide that the audit be performed in order to 

reasonably ensure that the financial statements do not contain material errors. Taking into 

account that an audit relies on the concept of data selective testing, which is always based on the 

professional judgement, both with respect to accounts selection and to the number of 

transactions tested, the audit is subject to certain inherent risks as there may be significant errors 

which have not been detected. Moreover, an audit does not refer to the likelihood of occurrence 

of future significant errors.  

The Group states that, to the best of its knowledge, the information taken over from the 

financial auditors' reports was accurately reproduced and that no facts were omitted which could 

determine that this information is incorrect or inaccurate. The Issuer states that the information 

included in the audited IFRS financial statements was reproduced with the auditor's approval 

and mentions that the auditors are not bound by the Issuer or by any of the statements made by 

the Issuer in this Prospectus.  

After the Shares are accepted to trading on a regulated market, the financial statements will be 

audited by financial auditors having the right to audit the financial statements of entities the 

securities of which are accepted to trading on regulated markets, registered with the NSC 

according to the partnership concluded with the Romanian Chamber of Financial Auditors. 

Deloitte is registered with the NSC and is authorised to audit the financial statements of such 

entities. 

The following selected financial data are based on the Group’s audited financial statements 

prepared in accordance with IFRS as of 31 December 2004, 2005 and 2006. These selected 

financial data should be read in conjunction with such financial statements, as well as with 

Chapter “General Operating and Financial Review”. 
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Information regarding the consolidated income statement 

 Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

Revenue 93,364 62,841 156,821 121,824 110,506

Cost of sales (72,171) (47,476) (118,102) (87,879) (78,295)

Gross profit                    21,193                           15,365                 38,719                 33,945                 32,211     

Investment revenue 86 80 146 150 117

Other gains 2,571 353 1,237 1,071 772

Other revenue 2,358 736 1,188 570 402

Distribution expenses (3,840) (1,331) (5,962) (3,888) (171)

Administration expenses (10,027) (9,693) (19,657) (15,513) (18,198)

Financial expenses (954) (609) (1,668) (1,199) (1,347)

Other expenses (1,143) (1,200) (2,759) (1,778) (1,100)

Profit before tax 10,244 3,701 11,244 13,358 12,686

Income tax expense (1,586) (867) (2,056) (2,120) (2,529)

Profit for the period 8,658 2,834 9,188 11,238 10,157

Attributable to: 

Equity holders of the parent 8,455 2,834 9,188 11,238 10,157

Minority interest 203 - - - -

Earnings per share
(1)

Basic (RON per share) 71 23 76 92 84  

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

Note: (1) The net profit per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the Group's 
shareholders to the weighted average number of ordinary shares existing during the year 
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Information regarding the consolidated cash flow statement  

 Period of six months ended 

as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

(' 000 RON ) (' 000 RON ) (' 000 RON ) (' 000 RON )

Cash flows from operating activities

Gross profit for the year 10,244 11,244 13,358 12,686

Finance costs 913 1,477 1,137 1,347

Investment revenue (86) (146) (150) (117)

(Gain)/loss on sale or disposal of property, plant and 

equipment (37) 9 (490) (188)

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables 452 161 72 55

Increase/ (decrease) in provisions for inventories

75 197 - -

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

3,470 7,188 6,619 5,305

Expenses in respect of retirement benefit obligations

665 1,131 891 674

Net foreign exchange (gain)/ loss (1,789) (1,191) (45) 1,751

Increase of the provisions - 161 - -

Negative goodwill (1,823) - - -

- - - -

Movements in working capital - - - -

Increase in trade and other receivables (2,381) (9,279) (7,342) (3,327)

Increase in inventories (4,040) (2,593) (1,230) (2,627)

(Increase)/decrease in other assets (82) 38 5 755

Increase in trade and other payables 4,274 7,344 4,140 3,693

Increase in other liabilities 298 752 1,785 97

Cash generated from operations 10,153 16,493 18,750 20,104

Interest paid (994) (1,460) (1,135) (1,654)

Income tax paid (1,409) (2,900) (2,787) (3,466)

Net cash generated by operating activities 7,750 12,133 14,828 14,984

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in securities - (1) (1) -

Interest received 58 140 119 57

Royalties and other investment income received 1 - 16 8

Other dividends received 26 6 15 52

Payments for property, plant and equipment (12,728) (14,889) (16,407) (10,819)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment 37 98 1,104 226

Payments for intangible assets (241) (594) (604) (894)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (2,037) - - -

Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities (14,884) (15,240) (15,758) (11,370)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 7,498 14,227 11,182 4,430

Repayment of borrowings (465) (7,338) (4,957) (2,732)

Leasing payments (226) (336) (277) (189)

Dividends paid to: - -
- equity holders of the parent - (3,546) (3,017) (3,174)

Net cash used in financing activities 6,807 3,007 2,931 (1,665)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (327) (100) 2,001 1,949

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

financial year 4,328 4,466 2,452 521

Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of 

cash held in foreign currencies 41 (38) 13 (18)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

financial year 4,042 4,328 4,466 2,452  

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 
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Information regarding consolidated balance sheet 

 December, 31

2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 85,672 65,400 56,833 46,916

Other intangible assets 1,472 1,404 1,240 1,006

Other  financial assets 12 102 101 100

Total non-current assets 87,156 66,906 58,174 48,022

Current assets

Inventories 23,051 16,406 14,011 12,781

Trade and other receivables 38,409 29,984 20,865 13,595

Other current assets 156 71 109 114

Cash and bank balances 4,042 4,328 4,466 2,452

Total current assets 65,658 50,789 39,451 28,942

Total assets 152,814 117,695 97,625 76,964

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves

Share capital 34,675 34,675 34,675 34,675

Reserves 3,667 3,667 3,667 3,667

Retained earnings 27,431 17,370 11,727 1,160

Equity attributable to equity holders of 

the parent 65,773 55,712 50,069 39,502

Minority interest 3,277 0 0 0

Total equity 69,050 55,712 50,069 39,502

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings – long term 16,302 10,616 10,644 8,343

Retirement benefit obligations 4,765 4,100 2,969 2,078

Deferred tax liabilities 392 265 1,092 1,615

Total non-current liabilities 21,459 14,981 14,705 12,036

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 31,010 22,382 15,038 10,898

Borrowings – short term 24,226 18,525 12,630 8,643

Current tax liabilities 914 605 621 765

Current provisions 161 161 0 0

Other current liabilities 5,994 5,329 4,562 5,120

Total current liabilities 62,305 47,002 32,851 25,426

Total liabilities 83,764 61,983 47,556 37,462

Total equity and liabilities 152,814 117,695 97,625 76,964

June 30,  2007

 

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 
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RISK FACTORS 

Any investment in securities implies certain risks. Before making a decision to invest in Shares, 

potential investors should consider the following risk factors, beside the other information 

contained in this Prospectus. Any of these risk factors may adversely affect the Issuer’s 

business, financial condition or results or the trading price of the Shares, which may lead to the 

partial or total loss of investment by potential investors.  

The description below of the risk factors is not complete and should not be considered a 

complete presentation of all the risks and significant aspects related to the investment in Shares. 

Other risk factors or other uncertainties currently unknown or considered to be insignificant 

may adversely affect the Issuer’s activity, financial condition or results.  

Risk factors regarding Romania 

Romania is an emerging market 

Potential investors in the companies carrying out business on emerging markets such as 

Romania should be aware that such a market pose higher risks than more developed markets. 

Romania might be affected by unforeseen political, social and economic changes, including 

economic recessions, high inflation rates, fluctuations of the exchange rate, significant 

legislation changes and market disruptions. 2008 is an electoral year, therefore the elections and 

the potential political instability might trigger the occurrence of the changes mentioned above. 

At the same time, Romania might be affected by the political, social and economic changes 

occurring in the European Union or the neighbouring countries. 

Whereas the Issuer’s development and activities mainly depend on the Romanian political, 

social and economic environment, the occurrence of the events mentioned might adversely 

affect the Issuer’s activity, financial condition and results, as well as the value and liquidity of 

the Shares. Reports of the international bodies and articles in the local and international press 

signal the necessity of continuing the fight against corruption in Romania, including in the area 

of justice, and the effects of corruption over the Issuer's activity are difficult to foresee. Thus, 

potential investors should analyse the risks related to an investment in the Issuer’s Shares and 

decide if such an investment is appropriate. 

Romania might have difficulties related to the post-accession process to the European Union 

Romania joined the European Union in January 2007. During the post-accession process, the 

European Union issued a series of measures for new member states in order to comply with the 

obligations to the capacity of member state. In the report regarding the progress made in 

connection with the cooperation and verification mechanism published on 27 June 2007, the 

European Commission recommended Romania to continue to fight corruption and to implement 

the legal reform. If no satisfactory reforms should take place until June 2008, the European 

Union might sanction Romania. 
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The Romanian legal and judicial system may impact on the Issuer’s and the Group's activity 

The Romanian legal system is constantly changing. The legal instability generates a certain 

relative uncertainty, making the Issuer’s economic results difficult to anticipate. The factors 

leading to this legal instability include, among others, the repeated and frequent changes in 

laws, including the ones directly impacting on the Issuer’s activity, the inconsistency of the 

provisions included in various laws, their inconsistent application by various competent 

authorities. Also it is possible that in certain circumstances the legal remedies stipulated in the 

new laws and regulations, including in the field of insolvency, may not be obtained in 

reasonable time. 

Considering the constant legal changes, the Issuer might have difficulties in complying with the 

requirements of various newly issued laws. The effort of constantly adapting to the changing 

legal requirements might lead to significant additional costs, while possible future changes of 

the legal framework might adversely affect the Issuer’s activity and profitability. 

 The transparency level of the issuers and public information can be lower than in other 

European states 

The Romanian practices regarding reporting, accounting and financial records may be different 

in certain respects from the ones applicable to the companies of other European Union member 

states, although Romania is in a continuous process of implementing internally the European 

legislation. The level of information regarding the shares and financial condition of the 

companies admitted to trading in Romania may sometimes be lower than in case of companies 

from other European states. At the same time, it is possible that the information issued by 

Romanian public institutions might not be as consistent and accurate as in case of other 

European Union member states. 

Romania might have difficulties in efficiently absorbing the structural funds coming from 

the European Union 

The Sectorial Operational Plan for Environmental Infrastructure is being carried out during the 

period 2007-2013. It ensures the access to European funds in order to develop the Romanian 

water network and sewerage system. 

The Issuer’s activity might be adversely affected in case Romania does not efficiently absorb 

the funds allocated by the European Union in connection with the Sectorial Operational Plan for 

Environmental Infrastructure (POS Environment) 2007-2013. 
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Risk factors regarding the market on which the Issuer carries out business  

Competition on the market on which the Issuer carries out business 

The market on which the Issuer carries out its business is highly competitive. The Issuer’s 

competitors, particularly the producers with international support having a greater financial 

power than the local producers, may exert an increasing competitive pressure on the Issuer. 

Moreover, Romania’s accession to the European Union facilitated the entry on the Romanian 

market of new potential competitors.  

Competition's boost may lead to a drop of sales and profitability or to cost increases, which may 

have negative effects on the Issuer’s activity, financial condition and results.  

The high level of competition on the market where the Issuer carries out its business may exert 

pressures on the prices of some of the Issuer’s products. If the Issuer is not able to efficiently 

face the competition, including by rapidly adapting its activity to the market trends, this may 

adversely affect the Issuer’s activity, financial condition and results and may affect the value 

and liquidity of the Shares.  

The demand for the Issuer’s products is affected by seasonality 

The field of activity using the Issuer’s products is subject to seasonal fluctuations. Thus, 

constructions – the field of activity of certain customers – are cyclic. Low temperatures and 

cold seasons trigger the slow-down or reduction of constructions activities. As a consequence, 

the Issuer’s quarterly financial results fluctuate as a result of climatic changes and prolonged 

periods of low temperatures may have a negative effect on the Issuer’s activity, financial 

condition and results. 

The Issuer’s activity may be affected if the necessary authorisations, including those 

regarding environmental protection, would not be granted or renewed 

The Issuer’s activity is subject to national regulations regarding environmental protection. The 

potential changes regarding the national regulations in this field may trigger substantial costs 

for the Issuer in terms of ensuring the observance of the requirements provided in these 

regulations. If the Issuer did not comply with the requirements regarding environmental 

protection or did not obtain the necessary authorisations, the relevant authorities could apply 

legal sanctions, including the suspension of some of the Issuer’s activities. The occurrence of 

such events could have a negative effect on the Issuer’s activity, financial condition and results.  

The financial crisis on international markets may reflect on the Romanian market and may 

limit the financing possibilities 

As of the Prospectus date, the international market is characterised by a financial crisis whose 

effects may also reflect on the Romanian market. Thus, the credit price may increase, the 

financing possibilities may decrease, and the investments in the fields where the Issuer offers its 

products, such as the construction field may be affected. A potential decrease in demand for the 

Issuer's products due to this factor may have an adverse effect over the activity, financial 

position and results of the Issuer. Also, the adverse effect which the international financial crisis 
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may have on the Romanian market might determine a limitation of the Issuer's possibilities to 

obtain the necessary funds for performing its activities. 

Risk factors regarding the Issuer  

The main shareholders of the Issuer may exercise a significant influence over the Issuer and 

their interest may not always correspond to the interests of the other shareholders 

Subsequent to the Offering, Mr Dorel Goia and Mr Emanoil Viciu in their capacity of main 

shareholders of the Issuer will own 32.80 % and 20.44 % respectively, of the Issuer's share 

capital (assuming that 49,645,989 Offered Shares are sold). Therefore, it is possible that each of 

Mr Emanoil Viciu and Mr Dorel Goia exercise control or at least a significant influence in the 

decision making process at the Issuer's general meetings, and that certain decisions may not be 

pass without the participation and vote of these two shareholders. 

Mr Dorel Goia might exercise a significant influence in the decision making process within the 

general meetings of the Issuer, mainly because he currently directly owns 39.36% of the Issuer's 

share capital, but he acts in concert with SC Alcom Center SA Zalau (which owns 0.88% of the 

Issuer's share capital) and with Ms Ana Maria Cristian in her capacity of director of SC Alcom 

Center SA Zalau and of shareholder of the Company (owning 0.15% of the share capital). 

The Issuer’s activity may be affected by interruptions in raw materials supply  

The Company’s production activities rely on a number of raw materials, such as PVC 

polypropylene or polyethylene. The Company depends in many cases on a main supplier and 

several secondary suppliers of such raw materials, and the contracts concluded by the Company 

with suppliers for a one-year period in general. If the respective main supplier ceased the supply 

of the necessary raw materials to the Company, the Company would have to cover its demand 

under the contracts concluded with the other secondary suppliers. The costs related to potential 

supplier changes, their potentially higher prices, delays in the renegotiation of contracts, 

delivery delays and, therefore, production delays due to these causes may have a negative effect 

on the Issuer’s activity, financial condition and results. 

Also, the potential fluctuations of the raw material process as well as the foreign exchange rate 

fluctuations may affect the activity, financial position and results of the Issuer. 

The Issuer may lose management staff or certain people of great importance for the Group’s 

activity  

The Issuer’s success depends to a great extent on the efforts and abilities of the Company’s 

management and key-staff in charge with financial and commercial operations. Competition for 

contracting qualified management staff is harsh and there is no guarantee that the Issuer will be 

able to contract and maintain the necessary staff. If the key members in the Issuer’s staff 

decided to leave or would not be reconfirmed in their positions, such a loss may affect the 

successful implementation of its development plans and, therefore, the Issuer’s financial 

condition and results. 

 



 

   - 21 - 

Group’s projects may not be completed or may exceed the established deadlines or the 

initially estimated budget and may not lead to the expected economic and commercial results   

The Group's investments plans, including the relocation of certain production facilities (see 

"Relocation of Production facilities" under Chapter "Description of the Issuer's Activity") will 

require significant capital resources. The implementation deadlines, the development and costs 

related to these projects may be adversely affected by certain risk factors such as the delays or 

failure in obtaining the necessary approvals and authorisations, financing, natural factors and 

the necessary technical, material and human resources. The delay or failure in obtaining the 

approvals and authorisations necessary for the relocation of the production facilities or the 

occurrence of any factors that may delay the completion of the plan could lead to important 

changes in this essential aspect for the Group's development strategy.  

Also, the implementation of various investment plans within the Group (see section "Group's 

Investment Plans" under Chapter "Description of the Issuer's Activity") depends on the 

likelihood of adopting the approval resolutions regarding such plans within the Group's 

companies. For example, adopting the resolutions within Politub (including the resolution on 

the Politub share capital increase as mentioned under Chapter "Reasons of the Offering and 

how funds will be used") will be subject to the favourable vote of Socotub which owns, 

together with the Issuer, 50% of Politub. If such resolutions cannot be adopted and the 

necessary approvals cannot be obtained, the investment plans could not be carried out and 

therefore the activity, financial condition and results of the Group might be affected.  

Implementation of the Group’s efficiency optimization program may be delayed, may be 

more expensive than expected or it may not lead to the proposed productivity level  

The industry in which the Issuer’s carries out its business is very competitive and its success 

partly depends on its capacity to improve the efficiency of the production process, while at the 

same time reducing the production costs, where possible and necessary.  

Considering both operational and strategic reasons, the Group intends to relocate its production 

capacities to a single location, at Saratel, approximately 10 km from Bistrita. Although the 

relocation has multiple advantages, this process is a complex one that may lead to interruptions 

in the production process and fluctuations of the production staff.  

The lack of insurance for the production facilities and equipment against damage or 

destruction risks may affect the Issuer’s activity  

As of the Prospectus date, the Issuer has concluded goods insurance only for part of the 

production facilities and the related equipment, which are generally assigned to banks from 

which loans were received (see Chapter "Material Contracts"). The lack of means for 

diminishing the negative effects due to destruction or damage to the production facilities and 

equipment, such as goods insurance, may stress the risk that the Issuer’s activity, financial 

condition and results may be significantly affected. 

The Issuer’s activity may be affected by interruptions in the production process  

The Issuer’s production process is mainly automatic. Thus, the production process depends on 

the electronic systems on which it relies. The Issuer may be affected as a result of temporary or 
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prolonged interruptions of some of the production lines due, among others, to human errors, 

power shortages, viruses to information systems, natural disasters or other similar events. Even 

though during its existence no such events occurred, there is no guarantee that such events are 

not likely to occur in the future.  

If such cases occur, the equipment of some of the production lines might be affected. The Issuer 

may not continue production and thus incurring important losses, which could not be limited 

due to the fact that the Issuer has not concluded insurance against disruptions of activity. 

Therefore, if the Issuer registers losses as a result of disruptions in the production process or the 

failure of the equipment of some of the production lines, the Issuer’s financial condition and 

results, as well as the value and liquidity of the Shares may be affected.  

Issuer is exposed to reputation risk for product deficiencies 

The Issuer may be involved in litigation regarding liability for various product deficiencies. 

Although the Company was not involved up to the Prospectus Date in any major litigation 

related to its liability for the deficiencies of its products and makes efforts to limit this risk by 

implementing certain quality management systems, there is no guarantee that these systems will 

be sufficient so as to ensure products integrity. Moreover, the Issuer has not concluded until the 

date hereof any insurance for the risks related to the liability for product deficiencies. Only 

Politub has concluded an insurance for the risks related to the liability for the flaws of certain 

products, from the Group companies.     

Any significant decision against the Issuer regarding the liability for product deficiencies may 

affect the Issuer’s reputation on the market and may have a negative effect on the Company’s 

activity and profitability.  

Expense allocation on cost centres   

Although the Issuer has high-standard information systems (SAP), the Allotment of expenses 

on cost centres is made according to some administrative subjective Allotment criteria, decided 

by the management. This may affect the decision regarding capital Allotment between various 

product categories.  

The indebtedness ratio and some charges on the assets may affect the Issuer’s financial 

condition and results of operations  

The Issuer and the Group companies have concluded a series of long or short term loan 

contracts with Romanian banks. These contracts contain a series of restrictive obligations, such 

as those limiting the possibility of the Group to contract other loans or to create other security 

interests. In order to secure these loans, some of the assets of Group companies were 

encumbered, including some of the equipment and production facilities and of the related lands. 

In case of default related to some obligations undertaken by the Issuer or by another Group 

company under these loan contracts, such security interests may be enforced which might result 

in a decrease or loss of the production capacities. Therefore, the Issuer’s or one of the Group 

companies' failure to observe the obligations in the loan contract and the application of 

contractual sanctions by the lenders may have a negative effect on the Issuer’s activity, 

financial condition and results.  
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The Group companies may face difficulties in obtaining the necessary financing for 

developing its activity  

In order to carry out their activities, the Issuer and the Group companies need appropriate 

financing sources, both for supporting the current activity and for implementing the 

development strategy presented herein. Securing these financing sources implies, on the one 

hand, maintaining the current financing sources and, on the other hand, the procurement of 

additional financing sources. The Issuer or the Group companies may face difficulties in 

attracting the necessary capital because of some factors such as some provisions in loan 

contracts in force as of the date hereof limiting the possibility of Group companies to contract 

other loans, the incapacity to offer enough security interests, a weaker than expected financial 

evolution, a deterioration of lending conditions. The Issuer or the Group companies could have 

higher financial expenses if the financing costs are growing, as a result of increases in the 

interest rates.  

The Issuer might be affected by foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations 

The Issuer and the Group companies have contracted a substantial amount in foreign currency 

through long term loans. In addition, a certain part of the trade receivables and payables are in 

EUR. The Issuer has not concluded formal hedge agreements for its current operations; 

therefore, it is exposed to foreign currency risk, which in 2007 was characterised by volatility.    

Possible strikes or other protests from employees may lead to disruptions in the Issuer’s 

activity  

Possible strikes or other forms of protest of the employees might affect the Issuer’s activity due 

to disruptions in the production process that may occur. Even though during its existence there 

were no work conflicts and the Issuer considers that the work relationships and the relationships 

with the unions and the employee representatives are within normal limits, there is no guarantee 

that strikes or work disruptions might not occur, thus adversely affecting the Issuer’s activity, 

financial condition and results. 

The Issuer's transparency could be affected by malfunctions in the document management 

system and delivery of information within the Company 

The Issuer did not implement a centalised document management system, so information is 

being stored, depending on the subject, by the Issuer's various departments. Also, delivery of 

information between the Company's departments is not always performed efficiently and in due 

time. Therefore, the malfunctions of the docuemt management system and delivery of 

information witihnin the Issuer might affect the Company's transparency towards investors as 

well as the correctness and accuracy of the information published.    

The Issuer's properties in Bistrita may represent the object of certain restitution claims 

The Romanian law provides for the possibility for the former owners of land/buildings which 

were abusively taken over by the state during the communist system, to recover their ownership 

right under certain conditions. The Issuer owns some land in Bistrita, where production 

facilities are installed, which was previously acquired by the Romanian State on the basis of 

certain expropriation decrees issued in 1976 and 1977. The Issuer is not aware of the existence 
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of any restitution claim related to the land owned. Nevertheless, there is no guarantee that 

litigation with the former owners will not occur in the future and any resolution of this litigation 

to the detriment of the Issuer might have an adverse effect on the financial condition and the 

results of the economic operations of the Issuer, and on the trading price of the Shares. 

The operation by means of which the Issuer gained control in Plastsistem is under review by 

the Competition Council 

As a result of successive acquisitions performed in the period between March-December 2007, 

the Issuer's participation in Plastsistem reached approximately 70.42%. Even though it 

considered that it had no obligation to notify the operation by means of which it had acquired 

the main shareholding in Plastsistem for the purposes of Competition Law, the Issuer has 

initiated a correspondence with the Competition Council whereby it intends to obtain a 

confirmation in this respect. Currently, the Issuer is cooperating with the Competition Council 

by supplying the necessary information for the purpose of analysis the above mentioned 

operation. 

If the Competition Council, as a result of the information supplied and the completion of the 

analysis, will consider that the operation should have been notified as an economic 

concentration, the Issuer may be sanctioned for delaying the notification with up to 1% from the 

Issuer's turnover for the year prior to this sanction. Also, although the Issuer presented 

arguments sustaining that the operation was not of a nature to affect the principles of fair 

competition, there is no guarantee that the Competition Council will reach the same conclusion 

and that it will authorise the respective operation. The fact that the Company implemented the 

mentioned operation without waiting for the Competition Council to make a decision may 

represent an offence and may be sanctioned with a fine of up to 10% of the total turnover of the 

offender for the relevant financial year prior to this sanction. 

Risk factors regarding the Offering 

Admission to trading on the BSE of the Shares and the Allotment Rights 

In view of being admitted to trading on BSE, both the Shares and the Allotment Rights must 

meet a series of conditions including with respect to the distribution of a sufficient number of 

such securities to the public. Although as of the date on which the NSC authorised the present 

Prospectus, BSE Approval no. 4690 of 25.03.2008 was granted regarding the acceptance to 

trading on the BSE of the Shares and of the Allotment Rights, there is no guarantee that the 

application for the acceptance to trading will be approved . 

If the Allotment Right is not admitted to trading, the investors will not be able to enjoy them up 

to the moment when the Allotment Rights are converted into Shares. This fact as well as any 

delay with respect to the admittance to trading and the actual trading of the Allotment Rights 

and of the Shares may adversely affect their market price. 

If, subsequent to the Offering, the request regarding the registration of the Capital Increase with 

the Trade Registry and the Central Depository will be rejected, the owners of Allotment Rights 

will be entitled to the exclusive reimbursement by the Issuer of the subscribed  Offered Shares' 

price within the Offering. Thus, the investors acquiring Allotment Rights from the BSE are 



 

   - 25 - 

subject to the risk of loss if they acquired the Allotment Rights at a higher price than the 

subscription price of the Shares. The loss will represent the balance between the acquisition 

price of the Allotment Rights and the Shares' subscription price. 

The risk of potential delays in achieving the stages related to the capital increase process of 

the Issuer 

If subsequent to the issuing date of the Allotment Rights certain stages related to the capital 

increase process of the Issuer and its registration with the Trade Registry and the Central 

Depository will be delayed there is a risk of extending the deadline for the exchange of the 

Allotment Rights for Shares. During the existence of the Allotment Rights, up to the moment of 

their conversion into Shares the investors owning Allotment Rights will not be able to exercise 

the rights entitled to Shareholders. 

The Offering might not lead to the creation of a liquid market for Shares and investors might 

not succeed to sell the Shares at the Offering Price or at a higher price 

Prior to this Offering, the Shares were not traded on a regulated market. There is no guarantee 

that a liquid market will develop as a result of this Offering or that the price of the Shares will 

not be lower than the Offering Price. The Offering Price of the Shares will be decided based on 

the subscriptions within the Offering, after consulting the Manager (see Chapter "Terms and 

Conditions of the Offering") and does not necessarily represent a reference price used for 

trading the Shares with Allotment right attached on the BSE following the Offering. The Issuer 

cannot estimate the case in which the investors’ interests leads to the development of a market 

for trading Shares or how liquid such a market may be. The liquidity of the market for Shares 

will depend to a certain extent on the number of Shares on the market that, in its turn, will 

depend on the number of sold Shares within the Offering. At the same time, the investors might 

not succeed to resell the Shares at the Offering Price, at a higher price or might not succeed to 

resell the same at all. 

The Shares have not been subject to a public offering for sale. As a consequence, the price of 

the Shares can be more volatile than in the case of shares of a company already listed. 

There is the risk that a market for the Issuer’s Shares after the Offering will not develop or, if it 

develops, it will not be sustained as the Shares have not previously been subject to a public sale 

offering. Liquid trading markets generally result in lower price volatility and more efficient 

execution of buy and sell orders for investors. If a liquid trading market for the Offered Shares 

does not develop, the price of the Shares may be more volatile and it may be more difficult to 

complete a buy or sell order for the Shares. The price of the Shares may fluctuate significantly 

due to a number of factors, some of them outside the Issuer’s control. 

Shares' price volatility may have an adverse impact on the holders of such Shares 

The market price of the Shares may be volatile and subject to sudden and significant declines. 

As a result, the investments of the Issuer’s shareholders may experience a material decline. 

Price declines can result from a variety of factors, including the difference between the results 

the Issuer announces and forecasts by analysts, important contracts, strategic partnerships, 
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fluctuations in the financial condition and operating results and general share price volatility on 

the BSE at a certain time. 

Frequent stops of the shares from trading  

The shares are withdrawn from trading if the issuers report special events or if litigation occurs 

between shareholders. Such an event may limit the investors’ possibility to sell the shares at 

their discretion and triggers the risk of a substantial value loss once the trading is resumed. 
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REASONS OF THE OFFERING AND HOW FUNDS WILL BE USED 

If all the Shares of the Offering will be sold at the Offering Price of RON 1.2 (representing the 

average price of the Price Range), the gross funds obtained after the Offering are expected to be 

of approximately RON 59.58 mil. , and the net funds are expected to be of approximately RON 

58.12 mil. after deducting all the commissions and other costs related to the Offering and borne 

by the Issuer (including the Manager's commission and fees payable to NSC). 

A part of the net funds resulted from the Offering will be used by the Company for carrying out 

the investment plan for the period 2008-2013, including for the plan aimed at relocating the 

production facilities. The other part of the net funds will be used for financing the Group 

companies – Plastsistem and Politub – by capital increases.  

The investments scheduled by the Issuer for the period 2008-2013 are detailed in section 

"Group's Investment Plan" under Chapter "Description of the Issuer's Activity".  

According to the contract concluded between the Manager and Teraplast, the retainer fee paid 

by the Issuer to the Manager is of EUR 39,000. The Manager will benefit from a success fee of 

2% from the price of all the shares sold within the Offering. The funds collected under the 

Offering will be reduced mainly due to:  

• the NSC fee for the approval of the prospectus – 0.1% from the amount of the offering; 

• the BSE fee for trading in the POF Market Section – 0.09% from the sales; 

• the BSE fee for admission and promotion to trading – RON 1200; 

any other payable taxes and commissions in accordance with legal provisions.  
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DIVIDEND POLICY 

 
According to the legal provisions in force on the Prospectus date and the Articles of 

Association, each Share gives the right to dividends. The dividends are distributed to the 

shareholders pro rata with their participation in the paid in share capital. 

Dividends can only be distributed from profits determined based on the Issuer’s yearly financial 

statements prepared in accordance with the Romanian Accounting Regulations, as approved by 

the General Meeting of Shareholders. The profit allocated as dividend is determined after 

establishing the reserves funds. According to the law, at least 5% out of the company’s yearly 

profit will go to the reserve funds until they reach a minimum of one fifth of the share capital. 

At the same time, the reserve fund includes the additional amount resulted from the sale of 

Shares at a price higher than their nominal value, unless this additional amount is used for 

paying the issue expenses or the depreciation. The Articles of Association state that reserve 

funds for modernisation, research and new product development, investments, repairs may also 

be established out of the Issuer’s profit, as well as for other purposes decided by the general 

shareholders meeting. 

Within the yearly General Meeting of Shareholders, the Issuer’s shareholders decide, based on 

the proposals of the Board of Directors, if dividends will be distributed out of the profit 

obtained during the financial year as ended, as well as their value. The dividends are paid 

within the period decided by the general shareholders meeting, but no longer than 6 months 

after the approval of the yearly financial statements related to the financial year as ended. In 

case this does not happen, the company will pay damages-interests for the delay period at the 

legal interest rate. 

In 2002, the Issuer distributed dividends in total amount of RON 2,382,072.8, the gross value of 

the dividend per share amounting to RON 19.6. Also, the Issuer approved and distributed 

dividends for the financial years 2003, 2004, and 2005, in the aggregate amounts of RON 

5,520,683, RON 670,000 and RON 3,546,004 respectively, the dividend per share amounting to 

RON 45.43, RON 5.51 and RON 29.18 respectively for the financial years mentioned, the 

Issuer did not distribute dividends for the financial year 2006, as it reinvested the entire profit 

obtained in that year. The Issuer's Board of Directors intends to propose reinvestment of the 

profit for the financial year 2007 in order to sustain the development plans. The dividend value, 

in case a decision for their distribution is made, will depend on the future revenues, the Issuer’s 

financial condition, the capital requirements and other factors. There are no guarantees that the 

Issuer will obtain distributable profits in the future. 
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DILUTION OF HOLDINGS FOLLOWING THE OFFERING 

 

 

The Issuer's share capital as of December 31, 2007 was of RON 24,822,990. 

Prior to share capital increase, Mr Dorel Goia has a number of 97,711,512 shares, representing  

39.36% of total shares, Mr. Emanoil Ioan Viciu has a number of 60,888,854 shares, 

representing  24.52% of total shares, SIF Banat Crisana has a number of 32,476,578 shares, 

representing 13.08% of total shares and Marley Magyarorszag Zrt. has a number of 22,885,589 

shares, representing 9.21% of total shares. 

If the share capital increases by 20% and the Offer is fully subscribed Mr. Dorel Goia will have  

a number of  97,711,512 shares, representing  32.80% of total shares, Dl. Emanoil Ioan Viciu va 

will have a number of 60,888,854 shares,  representing  20.44% of total shares, SIF Banat 

Crisana will have a number of 32,476,578 shares, representing 10.903% of total shares and  

Marley Magyarorszag Zrt. will have a number of 22,885,589 shares, representing 7.68%. 

If the share capital increases by 25% and the Offer is fully subscribed Mr. Dorel Goia will have  

a number of 97,711,512 shares, representing  31.49% of total shares, Dl. Emanoil Ioan Viciu va 

will have a number of 60,888,854 shares,  representing  19.62% of total shares, SIF Banat 

Crisana will have a number of 32,476,578 shares, representing 10.47% of total shares and  

Marley Magyarorszag Zrt. will have a number of 22,885,589 shares, representing 7.38%. 
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 

According to the Group’s statement, the financial statements for the 3-year period ended on 31 

December 2006, Deloitte, approved auditor, audited the Issuer’s IFRS financial statements for 

the three-year period ended on 31 December 2006, and issued the audit report regarding the 

financial statements referred to in the Prospectus.  

Deloitte liability for the content of the Prospectus is limited to the report mentioned above and 

the liability statements belonging to Deloitte Audit SRL were included in the respective reports.  

The Issuer's financial statements were audited in accordance with the International Standards on 

Auditing (ISA), which provide that the auditor should make an opinion on whether the financial 

statements reflect under all significant aspects the financial condition, operational results and 

cash flows in accordance with (International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The 

International Standards on Auditing (ISA) provide that the audit be performed in order to 

reasonably ensure that the financial statements do not contain material errors. Taking into 

account that an audit relies on the concept of data selective testing, which is always based on the 

professional judgement, both with respect to accounts selection and to the number of 

transactions tested, the audit is subject to certain inherent risks as there may be significant errors 

which have not been detected. Moreover, an audit does not refer to the likelihood of occurrence 

of future significant errors.  

The Group states that, to the best of its knowledge, the information taken over from the 

financial auditors' reports was accurately reproduced and that no facts were omitted which could 

determine that this information is incorrect or inaccurate. The Issuer states that the information 

included in the audited IFRS financial statements was reproduced with the auditor's approval 

and mentions that the auditors are not bound by the Issuer or by any of the statements made by 

the Issuer in this Prospectus.  

After the Shares are accepted to trading on a regulated market, the financial statements will be 

audited by financial auditors having the right to audit the financial statements of entities the 

securities of which are accepted to trading on regulated markets, registered with the NSC 

according to the partnership concluded with the Romanian Chamber of Financial Auditors. 

Deloitte is registered with the NSC and is authorised to audit the financial statements of such 

entities. 

The following selected financial data are based on the group’s audited financial statements 

prepared in accordance with IFRS as of 31 december 2004, 2005 and 2006. these selected 

financial data should be read in conjunction with such financial statements, as well as with 

chapter “Issuer’s financial statements and results” 
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Information regarding the consolidated income statement 

 Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

Revenue 93,364 62,841 156,821 121,824 110,506

Cost of sales (72,171) (47,476) (118,102) (87,879) (78,295)

Gross profit                    21,193                           15,365                 38,719                 33,945                 32,211     

Investment revenue 86 80 146 150 117

Other gains 2,571 353 1,237 1,071 772

Other revenue 2,358 736 1,188 570 402

Distribution expenses (3,840) (1,331) (5,962) (3,888) (171)

Administration expenses (10,027) (9,693) (19,657) (15,513) (18,198)

Financial expenses (954) (609) (1,668) (1,199) (1,347)

Other expenses (1,143) (1,200) (2,759) (1,778) (1,100)

Profit before tax 10,244 3,701 11,244 13,358 12,686

Income tax expense (1,586) (867) (2,056) (2,120) (2,529)

Profit for the period 8,658 2,834 9,188 11,238 10,157

Attributable to: 

Equity holders of the parent 8,455 2,834 9,188 11,238 10,157

Minority interest 203 - - - -

Earnings per share
(1)

Basic (RON per share) 71 23 76 92 84  

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

Note: (1) The net profit per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the Group's 
shareholders to the weighted average number of ordinary shares existing during the year 
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Information regarding consolidated balance sheet 

 December, 31

2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 85,672 65,400 56,833 46,916

Other intangible assets 1,472 1,404 1,240 1,006

Other  financial assets 12 102 101 100

Total non-current assets 87,156 66,906 58,174 48,022

Current assets

Inventories 23,051 16,406 14,011 12,781

Trade and other receivables 38,409 29,984 20,865 13,595

Other current assets 156 71 109 114

Cash and bank balances 4,042 4,328 4,466 2,452

Total current assets 65,658 50,789 39,451 28,942

Total assets 152,814 117,695 97,625 76,964

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves

Share capital 34,675 34,675 34,675 34,675

Reserves 3,667 3,667 3,667 3,667

Retained earnings 27,431 17,370 11,727 1,160

Equity attributable to equity holders of 

the parent 65,773 55,712 50,069 39,502

Minority interest 3,277 0 0 0

Total equity 69,050 55,712 50,069 39,502

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings – long term 16,302 10,616 10,644 8,343

Retirement benefit obligations 4,765 4,100 2,969 2,078

Deferred tax liabilities 392 265 1,092 1,615

Total non-current liabilities 21,459 14,981 14,705 12,036

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 31,010 22,382 15,038 10,898

Borrowings – short term 24,226 18,525 12,630 8,643

Current tax liabilities 914 605 621 765

Current provisions 161 161 0 0

Other current liabilities 5,994 5,329 4,562 5,120

Total current liabilities 62,305 47,002 32,851 25,426

Total liabilities 83,764 61,983 47,556 37,462

Total equity and liabilities 152,814 117,695 97,625 76,964

June 30,  2007

 

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 
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Information regarding the consolidated cash flow statement  

 Period of six months ended 

as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

(' 000 RON ) (' 000 RON ) (' 000 RON ) (' 000 RON )

Cash flows from operating activities

Gross profit for the year 10,244 11,244 13,358 12,686

Finance costs 913 1,477 1,137 1,347

Investment revenue (86) (146) (150) (117)

(Gain)/loss on sale or disposal of property, plant and 

equipment (37) 9 (490) (188)

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables 452 161 72 55

Increase/ (decrease) in provisions for inventories

75 197 - -

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

3,470 7,188 6,619 5,305

Expenses in respect of retirement benefit obligations

665 1,131 891 674

Net foreign exchange (gain)/ loss (1,789) (1,191) (45) 1,751

Increase of the provisions - 161 - -

Negative goodwill (1,823) - - -

- - - -

Movements in working capital - - - -

Increase in trade and other receivables (2,381) (9,279) (7,342) (3,327)

Increase in inventories (4,040) (2,593) (1,230) (2,627)

(Increase)/decrease in other assets (82) 38 5 755

Increase in trade and other payables 4,274 7,344 4,140 3,693

Increase in other liabilities 298 752 1,785 97

Cash generated from operations 10,153 16,493 18,750 20,104

Interest paid (994) (1,460) (1,135) (1,654)

Income tax paid (1,409) (2,900) (2,787) (3,466)

Net cash generated by operating activities 7,750 12,133 14,828 14,984

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in securities - (1) (1) -

Interest received 58 140 119 57

Royalties and other investment income received 1 - 16 8

Other dividends received 26 6 15 52

Payments for property, plant and equipment (12,728) (14,889) (16,407) (10,819)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment 37 98 1,104 226

Payments for intangible assets (241) (594) (604) (894)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (2,037) - - -

Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities (14,884) (15,240) (15,758) (11,370)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 7,498 14,227 11,182 4,430

Repayment of borrowings (465) (7,338) (4,957) (2,732)

Leasing payments (226) (336) (277) (189)

Dividends paid to: - -
- equity holders of the parent - (3,546) (3,017) (3,174)

Net cash used in financing activities 6,807 3,007 2,931 (1,665)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (327) (100) 2,001 1,949

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

financial year 4,328 4,466 2,452 521

Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of 

cash held in foreign currencies 41 (38) 13 (18)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

financial year 4,042 4,328 4,466 2,452  

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 
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ISSUER’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND RESULTS 

The financial data presented in this chapter are based on the Group’s audited consolidated 

financial statements, in accordance with IFRS as of 31 December 2004, 31 December 2005 and 

31 December 2006 and the un-audited consolidated financial statements, in accordance with 

IFRS as of 30 June 2007. The selected financial data should be correlated with the mentioned 

financial statements, as well as the information included in the Chapter “Selected financial 

information”. The operational data are extracted from the management reports for the years 

2004, 2005, 2006, and the first six months of the year 2007 respectively. 

Overview 

The Group’s main activities include the production of PVC pipes and profiles, plasticized and 

rigid PVC granules, PVC panels and joinery, polyethylene pipes, polypropylene pipes, terra-

cotta tiles, fittings and trading of cables, polyethylene pipes, etc. 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Issuer, its 

subsidiary (SC Plastsistem SA) and the subsidiary under joint control with another company 

(SC Politub SRL). 

The Issuer is one of the most important producers of plastic pipes in Romania. 

Significant factors affecting the Group’s results 

Evolution of raw materials prices  

The expenses with raw materials, such as PVC slurry, granules type PE80/100 or granules B200 

are the most important component of the production cost. Historically, the prices of the main 

raw materials used by the Group have registered significant fluctuations. IT should be 

mentioned that, although the evolution of the price for raw materials impacts directly on the 

price of the finished product, there is a gap coming from the period necessary for incorporating 

the information.      

Making the investments planned for 2008 – 2013 

In order to increase the production volume and to maintain its competitiveness, investments in 

new production capacities and the completion of the current ones are necessary. 

Seasonality 

During the first quarter, the revenues obtained by the Group from the sale of finished products 

are substantially lower, following the seasonality of construction works. During this period, the 

Group carries out maintenance works to technological equipment. The combined effect is seen 

in the lower operating result in the first quarter of the year. During the third and fourth quarters 

of the year, the Group reports the most important sales. Following this seasonality, the operating 

results and the working capital requirements vary and are expected to continue to vary 

depending on the season. 
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Exchange rate fluctuations  

The export contracts concluded by the Group are denominated in USD and EUR. During the 

period 2004-2006, the appreciation of the national currency versus the EUR and USD 

negatively impacted on the revenues in RON resulted from this activity. At the same time, all 

the long term loans contracted before 30 June 2007 are denominated in USD or EUR. In the 

future, the evolution of the national currency will continue to influence the Group’s results.  

Significant Accounting Policies 

As a result of the uncertainties inherent to the Group’s business activities, its management needs 

to make certain assumptions based on difficult, subjective and complex judgments.  

The following paragraphs describe the accounting policies that the Issuer believes to be 

important for the understanding of the financial statements drafted according to IFRS, including 

policies regarding subjective or complex judgments. A more detailed description of these 

accounting policies can be found in the notes to the Group’s financial statements.  

Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS. They are not the 

statutory accounts of the Group. 

The Group maintains its accounting records in RON and prepares its statutory financial 

statements in accordance with the Romanian Accounting Standards. These IFRS financial 

statements are based on the statutory records, with adjustments and restatements recorded for 

the purpose of fair presentation in accordance with IFRS. The financial statements have been 

prepared using the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies 

presented in the notes to the Group financial statements.  

Bases of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Issuer, of the 

subsidiary and the joint venture. Control is obtained when a company has the power to govern 

the financial and an operational policy of an entity so as to obtain benefits from the latter’s 

activity. 

The profit of the subsidiary acquired during the year is included in the consolidated income 

statement on the acquisition date. 

Where necessary, corrections to the subsidiary’s financial statements are made so as to adjust its 

accounting policies to the ones used by the Issuer. 

All the transactions within the group, the balances, revenues and expenses are completely 

eliminated from the consolidation. 

The minority interests in net assets (excluding goodwill) of the consolidated subsidiary are 

identified separately from the Group’s shareholders equity. Minority interests consist in all 

those interests as of the date of the initial business combination and the minority of the changes 

to shareholders equity starting with the combination date.  
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Business combinations 

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the purchase method. The 

cost of the business combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of 

exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the 

Group in exchange for control of the acquire, plus any costs directly attributable to the business 

combination. The acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the 

conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognized and measured at 

their fair values less costs to sell at the acquisition date. 

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s 

proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized. 

Interests in joint ventures 

The Group reports its interests in jointly controlled entities using proportionate consolidation. 

The Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of jointly controlled entities 

are combined with the equivalent items in the consolidated financial statements on a line-by-line 

basis. 

Where the Group transacts with its jointly controlled entities, unrealized profits and losses are 

eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint venture. 

Accounting for the effects of hyperinflation 

Romania has previously experienced relatively high levels of inflation and was considered to be 

hyperinflationary as defined by IAS 29 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” 

(“IAS 29”). IAS 29 requires that the financial statements prepared in the currency of a 

hyperinflationary economy to be stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the balance 

sheet date. As the characteristics of the economic environment of Romania indicate that 

hyperinflation has ceased, effective with 1 January 2004 the Group no longer applies the 

provisions of IAS 29. Accordingly, the amounts expressed in the measuring unit current at 31 

December 2003 are treated as the basis for the carrying amounts in these financial statements. 

The restatement was calculated using the conversion factors derived from the Romanian 

Consumer Price Index (“CPI”), published by the National Institute of Statistics.  

Intangible assets 

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire 

and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful 

lives (between one year and five years). Costs associated with developing or maintaining 

computer software are recognized as an expense as incurred. 

Property, plant and equipment 

Buildings comprise mainly buildings for operating activities (e.g. production plant, deposits 

etc.) and office buildings. Other corporate assets include production equipment, fittings and 

fixtures, moulds, vehicles etc. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, restated to the 
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equivalent purchasing power of the Romanian Leu at 31 December 2003 for assets acquired 

prior to 1 January 2004, less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment, where 

required.  

Items acquired after 1 January 2004 are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

provision for impairment, where required. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 

will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other activities as 

repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in 

which they are incurred. 

Depreciation of corporate assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost 

to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

          Years 

Buildings         10-50 

Plant and equipment        3-30 

Vehicles         5-6 

Fixtures and fittings        3-15 

Land and assets in progress are not depreciated. 

Leasing 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 

the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 

leases. 

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as assets of the Group at their fair value 

at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. 

The corresponding liability to the lesser is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease 

obligation.  

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation 

so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 

charges are charged directly to profit or loss account. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Cost is calculated 

on a weighted average cost basis. Where necessary, provision is made for slow moving and 

obsolete inventories in order to arrive at the net realizable value. Obsolete or defective 

inventories identified individually are provided for in full or written-off. 
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Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. The Group accounting 

policy is to fully provide all receivables older than 365 days and provide for 50% the 

receivables aged between 180 and 365 days. For the balance due to be received, the entity 

considers any objective facts that could indicate the impairment, for each amount which is by 

itself material and, a collective assessment for the receivables that are not material. The assets 

which are valued individually for the scope of depreciation and for which the depreciation of 

losses is recognized are not included in the cumulated value of depreciation. 

Borrowings 

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.  Borrowings 

are subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of 

transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the income statement over the 

period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 

Income tax  

Income tax payable has been provided for in the financial statements in accordance with 

Romanian legislation enacted at the balance sheet date. The income tax expense comprises 

current tax and deferred tax and is recognised in the income statement unless it relates to 

transactions that are recognised, in the same or a different period, directly in equity.  

Current tax is the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in 

respect of taxable profits or losses for the current and prior periods.  Taxes, other than on 

income, are recorded within operating expenses. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences 

arising between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 

statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the 

time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.  Deferred income 

tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by 

the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is 

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future 

taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
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Contribution for employees 

The Group pays contribution to the state budget for social insurance, pension fund and 

unemployment fund according with the levels established by the legislation during the year. The 

value of these contributions is recorded in the income statement in the same period which 

corresponding salary expense.  

Retirement benefit obligations 

Contributions to defined retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees 

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. 

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of 

the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and 

unrecognised past service cost. 

Social costs 

The Company incurs employee costs related to the provision of benefits such as meal tickets.  

These amounts represent mainly an implicit cost of employment and, accordingly, have been 

charged to salaries costs. 

Provisions 

Provisions for risks and charges are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal 

or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle 

the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where there 

are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement 

is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. 

Revenue recognition 

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.  When the 

fair value of goods received in a barter transaction cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is 

measured at the fair value of the goods or service paid in kind. 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied: 

- the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of 

ownership of the goods; 

- the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually 

associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to 

the entity; and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can 

be measured reliably. 
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Mutual cancellation and barter transactions  

A portion of sales and purchases are settled by mutual cancellations or barter transactions.  

These transactions are generally in the form of direct settlements by dissimilar goods and 

services from the final customer (barter) or cancellation of balances through a chain involving 

several companies. 

Sales and purchases that are expected to be settled by barter or other non-cash settlements are 

recognised based on the management’s estimate of the fair value to be received or given up in 

non-cash settlements. The fair value is determined with reference to observable market 

information. 

Operating results 

Turnover 

The Group obtained revenues from the following activities: sale of its own production, sale of 

goods and other activities. The revenues from other activities had a small contribution to the 

Group’s turnover during the analysed period.  

The table below contains the sales for the financial years ended 31 December 2004, 31 

December 2005, 31 December 2006 and 30 June 2007, respectively: 

Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON)

Sales of own production 72,533 53,488 132,912 109,661 99,825

Revenue from trading 19,621 8,657 22,505 10,975 10,070

Income from other activities 1,210 696 1,404 1,188 611

Total 93,364                         62,841                    156,821           121,824            110,506                

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

The following table presents details regarding sales of groups of finished goods for the financial 

years ended 31 December 2004, 31 December 2005, 31 December 2006 and the 6-month 

periods ended 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2007, respectively: 

Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON)

PVC pipes 21,294                         14,535                    37,731             27,935              31,111                 

PVC granules 14,290                         12,011                    25,522             23,677              14,902                 

PVC profiles 12,785                         9,114                      22,229             22,729              28,206                 

Windows and doors profiles (PVC 

and Al) and thermo-insulating glass 7,896                           5,528                      17,011             12,687              4,467                   

Polypropylene (PP) pipes 5,062                           2,393                      5,959               4,210                4,008                   

Polyethylene (PE) pipes 5,568                           5,646                      14,708             10,981              9,551                   

Terra-cotta tiles 2,714                           2,837                      5,808               5,677                5,562                   

Fittings 2,192                           1,298                      3,075               1,595                2,018                   

Other 732                              126                         869                  170                   -                      

Total 72,533                         53,488                    132,912           109,661            99,825                  

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 
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The following table presents details regarding sales of groups of merchandises for the financial 

years ended 31 December 2004, 31 December 2005, 31 December 2006 and the 6-month 

periods ended 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2007, respectively: 

Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON)

Polyethylene (PE) pipes 3,540                           1,230                      3,523               2,154                972                      

Terra-cotta tiles 1,124                           -                         -                   -                    -                      
Windows and doors profiles (PVC and 

Al) and thermo-insulating glass 705                              -                         -                   -                    -                      

Fittings 4,387                           2,145                      5,720               3,268                4,458                   

Cables 2,337                           3,545                      7,576               2,732                1,615                   

Other merchandise 6,700                           1,737                      5,686               2,821                3,025                   

PVC pipes and profiles 828                              -                         -                   -                    -                      

Total 19,621                         8,657                      22,505             10,975              10,070                  

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2007, the sales increased by 49% from RON 62,841 

thousand to RON 93,364 thousand as compared to the six-month period ended 30 June 2006, 

due to higher income from the sale of both own production and merchandises. The significant 

increase registered in the first semester of 2007 as compared to the similar period of 2006 is due 

to the increase of the Issuer’s and SC Politub SRL (50% consolidated) activity, as well as to the 

fact that, starting with the first semester of 2007, the Group’s financial statements also include 

the revenues of the subsidiary SC Plastsistem SA. The consolidation occurred after the control 

was obtained in March 2007. Out of the total Group’s sales in the first six months of 2007, RON 

6,322 thousand comes from the subsidiary.  

The increase of sales of finished products is due both to higher quantities produced and sold, 

as well as to price increases. 

Thus, during the six-month period ended 30 June 2007, the quantity of PVC pipes sold 

increased by 40% from approximately 3,732 tons to 5,227 tons as compared to the six-month 

period ended 30 June 2006, the quantity of PVC profiles sold increased by 29% from 

approximately 1,575 tons to 2,034 tons, the quantity of PVC granules sold increased by 13% 

from approximately 3,996 tons to 4,520 tons, while the quantity of PP pipes sold increased by 

88% from approximately 346 to 653 tons.  

In the year ended 31 December 2006, the turnover increased by 29% from RON 121,824 

thousand to RON 156,821 thousand as compared to the period ended 31 December 2005, due to 

higher income from the sale of both own production and merchandises. The sale increase in the 

year ended 31 December 2006 is mainly due to the following: the sale of PVC pipes increased 

by 35% from RON 27,935 thousand to RON 37,731 thousand, the sales of window and door 

profiles (PVC and Al) and thermo-insulating glass increased by 34% from RON 12,687 

thousand to RON 17,011 thousand and the sales of PE pipes increased by 34% from RON 

10,981 thousand to RON 14,708 thousand. Thus, in the year ended 31 December 2006, the 

quantity of PVC pipes sold increased by 29% from approximately 7,346 tons to 9,477 tons as 

compared to the year ended 31 December 2005, the quantity of Orizont profiles sold increased 

by 33% from approximately 33,749 square meters to 44,888 square meters, and the quantity of 

PE pipes sold increased by 24% from approximately 2,224 tons to 2,764 tons. With regard to 
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the sales of goods, the most significant increase is the one of cables, from RON 2,732 thousand 

in the year ended 31 December 2005 to RON 7,576 thousand in the year ended 31 December 

2006. 

In the year ended 31 December 2005, revenues increased by 10% from RON 110,506 thousand 

to RON 121,824 thousand as compared to the year ended  31 December 2004, mainly because 

of the sales of own production. In the year ended 31 December 2005, the sales of PVC granules 

registered a 59% increase, from RON 14,902 thousand to RON 23,677 thousand as compared to 

the year ended 31 December 2004, the sales of window and door profiles (PVC and Al) and 

thermo-insulating glass increased by 184%, from RON 4,467 thousand to RON 12,687 thousand 

as compared to the period ended 31 December 2004, while sales of PE pipes increased by 15%, 

from RON 9,551 thousand to RON 10,981 thousand as compared to the period ended 31 

December 2004. 

During the period 1 January 2004 – 30 June 2007 we can notice an increase of the weight of 

revenues from merchandises sale from 10% in 2004 to 22% during the six-month period ended 

30 June 2007. This is due to Group’s intention to extend its product range with system 

components produced by other companies, as well as to the consolidation of the subsidiary’s 

(SC Plastsistem SA) revenues from merchandises sell  in the first semester of 2007.   

Other revenues 

Other revenues comprise revenues not included in Group’s turnover. During the six-month 

period ended 30 June 2007, the most significant value is the recognition during the period of the 

negative goodwill resulted from the acquisition of entities. In the years ended 31 December 

2006, 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2004, the significant amounts registered under 

“Other revenues” refer to excess inventories, different retentions from employees. 

The table below presents the structure of other revenues for the financial years ended 31 

December 2004, 31 December 2005, 31 December 2006 and the six-month periods ended 30 

June 2006 and 30 June 2007, respectively: 

Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

Other operating income                            340                            514                    848                       333                       377 

Discounts received                            141                              53                    102                       122                           2 

Compensations, fines and penalties                              18                            120                    175                       105                           8 

Income from subsidies                              33                              28                      42                         10                           1 

Income from impairment of current assets                                2                              21                      21                          -                           14 

Negative goodwill                         1,824                               -                        -                            -                            -   

Total 2,358                       736                          1,188               570                     402                      

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

 

Cost of sales, distribution and administrative expenses 

Cost of sales comprise the cost of goods sold, expenses directly connected to production: raw 

materials and consumables expenses, salary expenses, depreciation, utilities and other expenses 

(repairs, transport, third party services, etc.), as well as plant indirect expenses (salary expenses, 

depreciation, utilities, repairs, transport, third party services, etc.). Every month, the production 
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obtained is recorded at standard cost. At the end of the month, after gathering all production 

expenses and their Allotment on cost centres the complete cost of each product is obtained. The 

difference between standard cost and the full cost is booked as “Product price differences”. 

The table below presents the cost of sales, distribution and administrative expenses during the 

financial years ended 31 December 2004, 31 December 2005, 31 December 2006 and the six-

month periods ended 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2007, respectively: 

Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON)

Cost of sales 72,171 47,476 118,102 87,879 78,295

Distribution expenses 3,840 1,331 5,962 3,888 171

Administration expenses 10,027 9,693 19,657 15,513 18,198

Total 86,038                    58,500                      143,721          107,280           96,664              

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2007, the cost of sales, the distribution and 

administrative expenses increased by 47%, namely from RON 58,500 thousand to RON 86,038 

thousand during the six-month period ended 30 June 2006. The increase was mainly due to 

higher cost of raw materials and goods sold, cost of goods transport and higher salary costs. 

In the year ended 31 December 2006, the cost of sales, the distribution and administrative 

expenses increased by 34%, namely from RON 107,280 thousand to RON 143,721 thousand in 

the year ended 31 December 2005. The increase was mainly due to higher cost of raw materials 

and goods sold, cost of goods transport, services rendered by third parties and higher salary 

costs. 

In the year ended 31 December 2005, the cost of sales, the distribution and administrative 

expenses increased by 11%, namely from RON 96,664 thousand to RON 107.280 thousand in 

the year ended 31 December 2004. The increase was mainly due to higher cost of raw materials 

and goods sold, cost of goods transport and higher salary costs. 

The detailed cost of sales, distribution and administrative expenses for the financial periods 

ended 31 December 2004, 31 December 2005, 31 December 2006 and the six-month periods 

ended  30 June 2006 and 30 June 2007, respectively, are the following: 

Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON)

Raw materials expenses 44,565 32,454 78,892 62,743 60,278

Goods purchased for trading 14,804 7,248 18,932 8,797 7,631

Salaries 9,487 7,298 16,342 13,563 11,462

Consumables and other materials expenses 3,744 2,147 5,643 3,948 5,101

Transport of goods and personnel 2,951 1,585 4,332 2,252 1,600

Utilities expenses 2,683 2,101 4,533 3,992 2,882

Depreciation of property, plant and equitment 3,470 3,679 7,188 6,619 5,305

Social securities contributions 2,475 1,868 4,388 3,841 3,144

Other expenses 3,544 2,488 5,830 3,852 4,316

Variation in inventory accounts (1,685) (2,368) (2,359) (2,327) (5,055)

Total 86,038                    58,500                      143,721          107,280           96,664              

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

The expenses with raw materials and goods sold are influenced by both the volume of 

purchased quantities and the evolution of their price. 
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During the six-month period ended 30 June 2007, the expenses with consumables and other 

expenses increased by 74% from RON 2,147 thousand to RON 3,744 thousand in the six 

month-period ended 30 June 2006. This was due to the increased fuel consumption for the 

vehicles transporting goods, packages for PVC profiles and the consumption of joints for PVC 

pipes and PP fittings.      

In the year ended 31 December 2006, the expenses with consumables and other expenses 

increased by 43% from RON 3,948 thousand to RON 5,643 thousand in the year ended 31 

December 2005. This was due to the increased fuel consumption for the vehicles transporting 

goods, stacking conveyors, the consumption of materials for the production of metallic 

structures, packages for PVC profiles and the consumption of joints for PVC pipes. 

In the year ended 31 December 2005, the expenses with consumables and other expenses 

dropped by 23% from RON 5,101 thousand to RON 3,948 thousand in the year ended 31 

December 2004. This was mainly due to the fact that, in the year ended 31 December 2004, the 

expenses with iron fittings were recorded as consumable and other expenses; while for the year 

ended 31 December 2005 they were included under expenses with raw materials. 

During the period under review higher expenses with meal tickets were registered due to the 

higher number of employees and the increase of the value of one meal ticket. 

During the period 1 January 2004-30 June 2007, the expenses with utilities increased due to a 

larger volume of activity and the higher price of such utilities. 

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2007, as compared to the six-month period ended  

30 June 2006, salaries increased by 30%, namely from RON 7,298 thousand to RON 9,487 

thousand following the increase of basic salaries and the number of employees. The average 

number of employees increased by 1.63% as compared to the six-month period ended 30 June 

2006. For the six-month period ended 30 June 2007, employees’ participation to profit was 

estimated based on the profit for the first six months ended 30 June 2007 and amounted to RON 

1,242 thousand. 

In the year ended 31 December 2006, as compared to the one ended 31 December 2005, salaries 

increased by 20%, from RON 13,563 thousand to RON 16,342 thousand following the increase 

of basic salaries, employees’ participation to profit and number of employees. The average 

number of employees increased by 3.72% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2005. At 

the same time, employees’ participation to profit, included in the salaries, increased from RON 

2,561 thousand to RON 2,688 thousand.  

In the year ended 31 December 2005 as compared to the one ended 31 December 2004, salaries 

increased by 18%, from RON 11,462 thousand to RON 13,563 thousand following the increase 

of basic salaries, employees’ participation to profit and number of employees. The average 

number of employees increased by 10.88% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2004. 

At the same time, the employees’ participation to profit, included in the salaries, increased from 

RON 2,263 thousand to 2,561 thousand. 

The evolution of the average number of employees during the period 1 January 2004 – 30 June 

2007 is the following: 
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The most important amounts included under “Other expenses” refer to expenses with other third 

party services, advertising and protocol expenses, packaging expenses, maintenance and repair 

expenses. In the year ended 31 December 2006, the expenses with other third parties services 

increased by 117% from RON 976 thousand to RON 2,115 thousand mainly due to the 

outsourcing of the window assembly process (October 2005). 

The expenses with raw materials, adjusted with the changes in inventories, the goods sold and 

salary expenses had the highest weight in the cost of sales during the period presented in the 

table above, representing between 79% and 81% of the cost of sales. 

Changes in inventories decreased by 28% from RON 2,368 thousand as of 30 June 2006 to 

RON 1,685 thousand during the six-month period ended 30 June 2007. In the year ended 31 

December 2006, changes in inventories decreased by 1%, from RON 2,327 thousand to RON 

2,359 thousand. In the year ended 31 December 2005, changes in inventories decreased by 54%, 

from RON 5,055 thousand to RON 2,327 thousand. These fluctuations are mainly due to the 

changes in standard cost structure. 

The following table presents details regarding the financial expenses for the financial years 

ended 31 December 2004, 31 December 2005, 31 December 2006 and for the six-month periods 

ended 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2007, respectively: 

Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

Interest expense                            913                            609                 1,477                    1,137                    1,093 

Discounts granted and other financial expense                              41                               -                      191                         62                       254 

Total 954                          609                          1,668               1,199                  1,347                   

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

Interest expense holds the largest weight, ranging from 81% to 100% in the financial expenses.  

 

Other expenses 

“Other expenses” position includes expenses not connected to the Group’s cost of sales, 

administrative or distribution expenses. In the years ended  31 December 2004, 31 December 

2005, 31 December 2006 and for the six-month periods ended 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2007, 

respectively, the significant amounts recorded as “Other expenses” relate to expenses with 

retirement benefits, inventory minuses, gifts and sponsorships. 

Average number of employees 2004 2005 2006 2007 

SC Teraplast SA 408 466 507 527 
SC Politub SRL 27 32 35 36 
SC Plastsistem SA 98 93 71 60 

Total 533 591 613 623 
Source: Management Reports
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The table below presents the structure of other expenses for the periods ended 31 December 

2004, 31 December 2005, 31 December 2006 and for the six-month periods ended 30 June 2006 

and 30 June 2007, respectively: 

Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

Gifts and sponsorships granted                            154                            110                    489                       575                       210 

Provision expenses                            665                            646                 1,292                       891                       674 

Other operating expenses                            124                            315                    569                       206                       190 

Impairment expenses against current assets                            140                            118                    380                         72                         13 

Penalties expenses                              60                              11                      29                         34                         13 

Total 1,143                       1,200                       2,759               1,778                  1,100                   

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

The expenses with retirement benefits increased by 3%, from RON 646 thousand during the six-

month period ended 30 June 2006 to RON 665 thousand as of 30 June 2007. In the year ended 

31 December 2006, as compared to the year ended 31 December 2005, the expenses with 

retirement benefits increased by 45%, from RON 891 thousand to RON 1,292 thousand. In the 

year ended  31 December 2005, as compared to the year ended  31 December 2004, the 

expenses with retirement benefits increased by 32%, from RON 674 thousand to RON 891 

thousand. 

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2007 as compared to the six month period ended  30 

June 2006, the expenses with the depreciation of current assets increased by 18%, from RON 

118 thousand to RON 140 thousand. In the year ended 31 December 2006, as compared to the 

year ended  31 December 2005, the expenses with the depreciation of current assets increased 

by 427% from RON 72 thousand to RON 380 thousand. In the year ended 31 December 2005, 

as compared to the year ended 31 December 2004, the expenses with retirement benefits 

increased by 453%, from RON 13 thousand to RON 72 thousand. 

 

Other gains 

Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

Foreign exchange gain                         3,113                            988                 2,356                    1,693                    1,530 

Foreign exchange loss                          (579)                          (596)               (1,110)                  (1,112)                     (947)

Revenue on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment                              37                              73                      98                    1,104                       226 

Net book value of property, plant and equipment 

disposed                               -                            (112)                  (107)                     (614)                       (37)

Total 2,571                       353                          1,237               1,071                  772                      

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

Other earnings include foreign exchange gains and losses and the result from the sale of assets. 

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2007, foreign exchange gains increased by 215%, from 

RON 988 thousand to RON 3,113 thousand, mainly because, as of 30 June 2007, the balances 

of receivables and debts were revaluated using the exchange rate published by the National 

Bank of Romania for this date, while this adjustment was not included in the consolidated 

income statement for the six-month period ended 30 June 2006.  
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For the year ended 31 December 2006, revenues increased by 39%, from RON 1,693 thousand 

to RON 2,356 thousand, due to a higher balance of the loans in EUR, as well as RON 

appreciation versus EUR. 

During the year ended 31 December 2005, revenues increased by 11%, from RON 1,530 

thousand to RON 1,693 thousand, due to a higher balance of the loans in EUR, as well as RON 

appreciation versus EUR. 

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the result from the sale of assets increased from RON 

189 thousand to RON 490 thousand. This result was due to the sale of a piece of land located in 

Targu Mures during the year. 

Income tax 

Income tax for the period comprises the current income tax and the deferred income tax. 

On 1 January 2005, the nominal rate of income tax in Romania was decreased from 25% to 

16%. Although the Group functioned only in Romania and had no branches outside Romania, 

the differences between IFRS, the Romanian Accounting Standards and the Romanian tax 

regulations led to different effective tax quotas during the periods under review.  

In the year ended 31 December 2006, the effective tax rate was of 18%. 

In the year ended 31 December 2005, the effective tax rate was of 16%.  

In the year ended 31 December 2004, the effective tax rate was of 20%. 

The effective tax rate higher than the nominal income tax rate is mainly due to a gross profit 

according to IFRS higher than the one calculated according to the Romanian Accounting 

Standards. The differences between the gross profit as per the IFRS and the statutory standards 

are due to the translation adjustments to IFRS compliant financial statements. Information 

regarding the significant differences between the Romanian Accounting Standards and the 

International Financial Reporting Standards are included at Chapter “Summary of the 

significant differences between Romanian Accounting Standards and International Financial 

Reporting Standards”. 

All the companies in the Group recorded and paid income tax during the periods mentioned 

above. 

The accounting difference between IFRS and the Romanian Accounting Standards leading to 

deferred income tax mainly results from the calculation of asset depreciation according to IAS 

29. 

Net profit for the period 

Profit before tax for the year ended December 31, 2006 decreased from RON 13.358 thousand 

to RON 11.244 thousand as compared to year ended December 31, 2005 mainly due to higher 

expenditures during 2006. Expenses with pension benefits for the year ended December 31, 

2006 increased from RON 891 thousand to RON 1.292 thousands as compared to year ended at 

December 31, 2005; expenses with depreciation of current assets for the financial year ended 
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December 31, 2006 increased from RON 72 thousands to RON 380 thousands as compared year 

ended December 31, 2005 and interest costs increased from RON 1,137 thousands for the year 

ended December 31, 2005 to RON 1,477 thousands as compared to the financial year ended 

December 31, 2006. 

As of 2006 the Group reported lower profitability compared to 2005, mainly because of the 

increase of PVC prices to a higher extent than of the finished goods prices.   

In the year ended 31 December 2005, net profit increased by approximately 11% as compared to 

the year ended 31 December 2005, up to RON 11,238 thousand. This increase was based on a 

higher operating profit and net financial result. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

During the period under review, the Group registered an increasing debt ratio as long term debts 

increased from RON 8,343 thousand as of 31 December 2004 to RON 10,644 thousand as of 31 

December 2005. As of 31 December 2006 long term debts registered a slight decrease, reaching 

RON 10,616 thousand. As of 30 June 2007, long term debts increased by 31% up to RON 

16,302 thousand as compared to the year ended 31 December 2006. 

As of 30 June 2007 the Group had 29 leasing contracts for trucks and vehicles concluded with 

Volvo Truck Corporation, Porsche Leasing, RCI Leasing, BCR Leasing and Comautosport. 

The Group contracted long term loans in foreign currency (EUR and USD), most of them with 

variable interest rates. The Group signed loan agreements with the following banks: Unicredit 

Tiriac Bank, Raiffeisen Bank and BRD. 

On the short term, the Group concluded a loan facility agreement with BCR that is used as 

credit line for working capital needs. Information regarding the financing contracts concluded 

by the Group is included at Chapter  - „Important contracts”. 

The investment program during the analysed period was mainly financed from loans. 

According to the information provided by the Group, the investment program for the period 

2007-2013 will be also financed through additional loans. 

After 30 June 2007, the Group contracted a new loan for financing the investment capital of 

EUR 3,500,000 over 7 years and 27 leasing agreements signed with Raiffeisen Leasing IFN SA. 

The following table presents the Group’s cash flows for the years ended 31 December 2004, 31 

December 2005, 31 December 2006 and the six-month period ended 30 June 2007: 
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 Period of six months ended 

as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

(' 000 RON ) (' 000 RON ) (' 000 RON ) (' 000 RON )

Cash flows from operating activities

Gross profit for the year 10,244 11,244 13,358 12,686

Finance costs 913 1,477 1,137 1,347

Investment revenue (86) (146) (150) (117)

(Gain)/loss on sale or disposal of property, plant and 

equipment (37) 9 (490) (188)

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables 452 161 72 55

Increase/ (decrease) in provisions for inventories

75 197 - -

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

3,470 7,188 6,619 5,305

Expenses in respect of retirement benefit obligations

665 1,131 891 674

Net foreign exchange (gain)/ loss (1,789) (1,191) (45) 1,751

Increase of the provisions - 161 - -

Negative goodwill (1,823) - - -

- - - -

Movements in working capital - - - -

Increase in trade and other receivables (2,381) (9,279) (7,342) (3,327)

Increase in inventories (4,040) (2,593) (1,230) (2,627)

(Increase)/decrease in other assets (82) 38 5 755

Increase in trade and other payables 4,274 7,344 4,140 3,693

Increase in other liabilities 298 752 1,785 97

Cash generated from operations 10,153 16,493 18,750 20,104

Interest paid (994) (1,460) (1,135) (1,654)

Income tax paid (1,409) (2,900) (2,787) (3,466)

Net cash generated by operating activities 7,750 12,133 14,828 14,984

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in securities - (1) (1) -

Interest received 58 140 119 57

Royalties and other investment income received 1 - 16 8

Other dividends received 26 6 15 52

Payments for property, plant and equipment (12,728) (14,889) (16,407) (10,819)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment 37 98 1,104 226

Payments for intangible assets (241) (594) (604) (894)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (2,037) - - -

Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities (14,884) (15,240) (15,758) (11,370)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 7,498 14,227 11,182 4,430

Repayment of borrowings (465) (7,338) (4,957) (2,732)

Leasing payments (226) (336) (277) (189)

Dividends paid to: - -
- equity holders of the parent - (3,546) (3,017) (3,174)

Net cash used in financing activities 6,807 3,007 2,931 (1,665)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (327) (100) 2,001 1,949

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

financial year 4,328 4,466 2,452 521

Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of 

cash held in foreign currencies 41 (38) 13 (18)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

financial year 4,042 4,328 4,466 2,452  

 

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 
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Cash flow from operating activities  

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2007, net cash flows from operations were of RON 

7,750 thousand as compared to RON 12,133 thousand in the year ended 31 December 2006. 

This is mainly due to the lower gross profit in the six-month period ended 30 June 2007 and the 

changes in the working capital – increase of resources for the acquisition of inventories of raw 

materials and goods, as well as the inventories of finished products. During the six month period 

ended 30 June 2007, approximately half of the increase of the Group’s inventories as of 30 June 

2007 is due to the consolidation of SC Plastsistem SA. While the cash flows resulted from 

operations dropped by approximately 38% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2006, 

the net cash flows from operating activities decreased by 36% due to the lower interest and 

income tax paid in the first semester of 2007. 

In the year ended 31 December 2006, net cash flows from operations dropped down to RON 

16,493 thousand as compared to RON 18,750 thousand in the year ended 31 December 2005, 

mainly because of the lower gross profit and changes in the working capital, while the increase 

of receivables and inventories exceeded the increase of debts. While the cash flows resulted 

from operations decreased by approximately 12% as compared to the year ended 31 December 

2005, the net cash flows from operating activities decreased by 18% due to the higher income 

tax and interest paid. 

In the year ended 31 December 2005, net cash flows from operations decreased to RON 14,828 

thousand as compared to RON 14,984 thousand in the year ended 31 December 2004, mainly 

because of changes in working capital. While gross profit increased by approximately 5% as 

compared to the year ended 31 December 2004, the change in the working capital had a 

negative effect on cash flows mainly because the increase of receivables and inventories was 

higher than the increase of debts. 

Cash flow from investment activities  

The Group purchased fixed assets with the following impact in the cash flow: RON 12,728 

thousand during the six month period ended 30 June 2007, RON 14,889 thousand in the year 

ended 31 December 2006, RON 16,407 thousand in the year ended 31 December 2005 and 

RON 10,819 thousand in the year ended 31 December 2004.  

The Group acquired intangible assets – licenses with an impact on the cash flows of RON 241 

thousand during the six month period ended 30 June 2007, RON 594 thousand in the year ended 

31 December 2006, RON 604 thousand in the year ended  31 December 2005 and RON 894 

thousand in the year ended  31 December 2004.  

The amount of RON 2,037 thousand paid during the period ended 30 June 2007 was used for 

acquiring 49.09% of the share capital of SC Plastsistem SA. 

The cash flows received in the year ended  31 December 2005 of RON 1,104 thousand mainly 

resulted from the sale of a piece of land located in Targu Mures. 
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Cash flow from financing activities  

The cash flows from financing activities during the period under review comprised the 

dividends paid, the loans and leasing commitments contracted and the repayment of loans and 

leases. 

The net cash generated from financing activities in the six-month period ended 30 June 2007 

increased from RON 3,007 thousand to RON 6,807 thousand as compared to the year ended 31 

December 2006 mainly because during the first semester of 2007 no dividends were paid, while 

in the year ended 31 December 2006 the amount paid to shareholders was of RON 3,546 

thousand. 

The net cash from financing activities in the year ended 31 December 2006 increased from 

RON 2,931 thousand to RON 3,007 thousand as compared to the year ended  31 December 

2005 due to loan proceeds received that exceeded the loan repayments, the net effect of bank 

financing exceeding the increase of dividend payments. 

In the year ended 31 December 2005 the net cash generated from financing activities was of 

RON 2,931 thousand, while in the year ended 31 December 2004 the net cash used for 

financing activities amounted to RON 1,665 thousand. This is mainly due to the increase of 

proceeds received from long term loans. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Non-current assets 

The analysis of the Group’s assets show that non-current assets have the most important weight 

in total assets (62.4% in 2004, 59.59% in 2005, 56.85% in 2006 and 57.03% in the first 

semester of 2007), and, within them, tangible assets represented 60.96% of total assets in 2004, 

58.22% in 2005 and 55.57% in 2006. 

The assets registered significant increases from one year to another of 26.85% in 2005 as 

compared to 2004, of 20.56 % in 2006 as compared to 2005, of 29.84% as of 30 June 2007 as 

compared to 31 December 2006, mainly sustained by the increase of tangible assets and 

receivables. 

Tangible assets 

The evolution of tangible assets is presented in the following table: 

'000 RON

Land and 

buildings

Plant and 

equipment

Vehicles 

under 

finance lease

Fixtures 

and fittings

Assets in 

progress Total

Cost as at  31.12.2004         22,431           90,791              1,110              126              1,052  115,510 

Accumulated depreciation          (6,015)         (62,218)               (262)              (99)                   -    (68,594)

Net book value as at  31.12.2004         16,416           28,573                 848                27              1,052    46,916 

Cost as at 31.12.2005         25,703         100,195              1,408              119              4,119  131,544 

Accumulated depreciation          (6,510)         (67,614)               (492)              (95)                   -    (74,711)

Net book value as at  31.12.2005         19,193           32,581                 916                24              4,119    56,833 

Cost as at 31.12.2006         31,192         102,367              1,374              119            10,375  145,427 

Accumulated depreciation          (7,114)         (72,055)               (755)            (103)                   -    (80,027)

Net book value as at  31.12.2006         24,078           30,312                 619                16            10,375    65,400 

Cost as at 30.06.2007         42,593         109,771              2,334              256            15,947  170,901 

Accumulated depreciation as at 

30.06.07          (7,974)         (75,952)               (912)            (152)               (239)  (85,229)

Net book value as at 30.06.2007         34,619           33,819              1,422              104            15,708    85,672  
Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

The net book value increased as of 31 December 2005 by 21% as compared to 31 December 

2004, while on 31 December 2006 it was higher by 15% as compared to 31 December 2005, 

mainly due to put in function of new production facilities (PP pipes plant), building the profile 

warehouse at Bistrita, as well as plant and machinery mainly for the production of granules, 

PVC profiles, PP and PVC pipes and, in 2006, following the acquisition and refurbishment of 

the warehouses located in Iaşi, ConstanŃa, Oradea and GalaŃi and of the administrative building 

at Braşov.  

The net book value increased by 31% as of 30 June 2007 as compared to 31 December 2006, 

mainly due to put in function of new production facilities (the windows plant at Braşov), 

building the fittings warehouse at Bistrita, moulds for PVC fittings and profiles, automatic line 

for window making (Brasov).  

Land has a low weight in the net book value, representing approximately 4%. The important 

acquisitions in the year ended 31 December 2006 refers to land on which the warehouses in Iaşi, 

ConstanŃa, Oradea and GalaŃi are located. During the six-month period ended 30 June 2007, the 
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most important acquisition is the land in SărăŃel, where all the Group’s production capacities 

will be relocated. 

Tangible assets in progress 

The Group’s tangible assets in progress in balance as of 30 June 2007 mainly refer to 

investments for the power supply of Saratel complex, assembling plant and production 

equipment for thermo-insulating panels’ sandwich type, modernization of the warehouse in 

Oradea, modernization and protection of Orizont Plant - Bistrita.  

The Group’s tangible assets in progress in balance as of 31 December 2006 mainly refer to 

investments for the windows plant in Braşov, PVC profiles plant, the administrative building, 

the fittings and related products warehouse.  

The Group’s tangible assets in progress in balance as of 31 December 2005 mainly refer to 

investments for the polypropylene pipes plant and the administrative building. 

Depreciation of tangible assets 

In the statutory financial statements, depreciation is calculated based on the revaluated value, 

using the linear method during the estimated useful life period of the assets. 

For the IFRS compliant financial statements, depreciation is computed based on the cost 

restated to the equivalent purchasing power of the national currency as of 31 December 2003, 

using the linear method during the estimated useful life period of the assets.  

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets have a low weight in total assets, of less than 1.5%, for the whole period under 

review. 

Intangible assets include licenses, software and intangible assets in progress. 

Other financial assets 

The evolution of financial assets is presented in the following table: 

December, 31

2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

Name of investment

S.C. PLASTSISTEM S.A.                      -       90 90 90

S.C. CERTIND S.A. 11 11 11 10

Parteneriat pentru dezvoltarea durabila 1 1                  -                        -       

Total 12 102 101 100

June 30,  2007

 
Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

As of 30 June 2007 SC Plastsistem SA was fully integrated in the Group. This is why it no 

longer appears as an investment. 

The Group hold a stake of RON 10,976 in S.C. CERTIND SA, representing 7.5% of this 

company’s share capital. 
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Current assets 

Inventories 

The analysis of the Group’s assets shows that the weight of inventories in total assets was 

relatively constant during the period under review (16.61% in 2004, 14.35% in 2005, 13.94% in 

2006 and 15.08% in the first semester of 2007). The increase in inventories is mainly due to the 

growth of activity, having the same trend as the turnover. 

The table below presents the structure of inventories in the Group’s balance sheet as of 30 June 

2007, 31 December 2006, 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2004: 

December, 31

2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

Finished goods 11,444                 9,296               7,582               5,901               

Raw materials 5,332                   3,374               3,104               4,196               

Goods purchased for resale 4,258                   1,440               937                  1,154               

Consumables 1,547                   1,507               1,207               998                  

Small tools 337                      184                  269                  179                  

Semi-finisherd goods 169                      353                  427                  290                  

Residual products 114                      171                  192                  30                    

Goods in progress 87                        267                  249                  -                  

Packaging materials 36                        11                    44                    33                    

Provision for obsolete inventoties (273)                     (197)                -                  -                  

Total 23,051 16,406 14,011 12,781

June 30,  2007

 

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

The evolution of days in inventories for the period under review is the following: 

December 31,

2006 2005

Inventories days 50 47 56

June 30,  2007

 

 

Trade and other receivables 

The table below presents the structure of trade and other receivables included in the Group’s 

balance sheet as of 30 June 2007, 31 December 2006, 31 December 2005 and 31 December 

2004: 

December, 31

2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

Trade receivables 37,627                 28,425             20,198             12,978             

Advances paid to suppliers for inventories 877                      170                  274                  85                    

Advances payments for tangibles assets 455                      1,179               448                  480                  

Advances paid to suppliers for services 150                      103                  39                    107                  

Trade guarantees paid 40                        357                  33                    -                  

Advances payments for intangibles assets -                       38                    -                  -                  

Allowance for doubtful debts (740)                     (288)                (127)                (55)                  

Total 38,409 29,984 20,865 13,595

June 30,  2007

 

Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 
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Out of the Group’s receivables, the most important ones are the trade receivables, accounting 

for 95% and 98% of total receivables. The increase of receivables is mainly due to the growth of 

activity. Days in receivable increased from 42 days in 2006 to 48 days in 2006, namely 54 days 

in the first six months of 2007. Receivables increased by 56% from RON 12,978 thousand as of 

31 December 2004 to RON 20.189 thousand as of 31 December 2005, by 41% in 2006 from 

RON 20,189 thousand on 31 December 2005 to RON 28,425 thousand on 31 December 2006 

and by 32% in the first six months of 2007 from RON 28,425 thousand as of 31 December 2006 

to RON 37,627 thousand as of 30 June 2007.  

The evolution of days in receivable is similar to the one of days payable. 

The value adjustments for doubtful debts represent less than 1% of sales for the entire period 

under review. 

Payables 

The following table briefly presents the structure and maturities of payables and deferred 

income in the Group’s balance sheet as of 30 June 2007, 31 December 2006, 31 December 2005 

and 31 December 2004: 

December, 31

2006 2005 2004

('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON ) ('000 RON )

Borrowings - long term 15,658 10,161 10,215 8,010

Borrowings - short term and current portion of long 

term loans 23,817 18,226 12,462 8,448

Finance lease liabilities - long term 643 455 429 333

Finance lease liabilities - short term 409 300 168 195

Trade payables 30,144 21,412 13,781 9,516

Bonus payable to employees 3,154 2,830 2,660 1,237

Employees and social obligations 1,482 1,377 1,040 1,015

Dividends payable - - - 2,347

Current provisions 161 161 - -

Employeee benefits 4,765 4,100 2,969 2,078

VAT payable 1,037 649 616 373

Payables for purchases of non-current assets 506 773 682 1,122

Advances payments from customers 361 196 575 260

Deferred tax liability 392 265 1,092 1,615

Current tax liability 914 605 621 765

Other liabilities 321 473 246 148

Total 83,764 61,983 47,556 37,462

June 30,  2007

 
Source: IFRS compliant financial statements 

Other payables mainly include unpaid salary rights, sundry creditors, deferred income and 

outstanding interest. 

In terms of structure, trade payables and bank loans account for the largest part of the debts. 

The increase of trade payables is mainly due to the growth of activity. Days payable increased 

from 27 days in 2005 to 32 days in 2006, namely 39 days in the first six months of 2007. In 

2005, the increase of trade payables was of 45% from RON 9,516 thousand as of 31 December 

2004 to RON 13,781 thousand as of 31 December 2005. In 2006, trade payables increased by 

55% from RON 13,781 thousand as of 31 December 2005 to RON 21,412 thousand as of 31 
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December 2006. In the first semester of 2007, trade payables increased by 41% from RON 

21,412 thousand as of 31 December 2006 to RON 30,144 thousand as of 30 June 2007. 

Bank loans increased in the period under review: by 38% from RON 16,457 thousand as of 31 

December 2004 to RON 22,677 thousand as of 31 December 2005, by 25% from RON 22,677 

thousand as of 31 December 2005 to RON 28,387 thousand as of 31 December 2006 and by 

39% from RON 28,387 thousand as of 31 December 2006 to RON 39,476 thousand as of 30 

June 2007. The increase of bank payables is due both to the increase of investment loans for 

tangible assets purchases and the need to finance a growing working capital. 

Significant changes in the financial or operational position 

The Group states that there are no significant changes in the financial or commercial condition 

occurring from the end of the last financial period for which interim financial statements were 

published, namely 30 June 2007. At the same time, no significant changes in the Group’s 

economic and financial position as compared to the data included in the present Prospectus were 

registered. 

Net working capital 

The Issuer states that, in its opinion, the net working capital is not sufficient for its current 

obligations and, in addition, the Issuer had to contract bank loans. 

Shareholders equity and debt ratio 

The Group states that the level of shareholders equity according to IFRS consolidated financial 

statements as of December 31, 2007 was of RON 67,921 thousand and debt ratio is 51%. All the 

Group’s bank loans are secured. 

Transactions with related parties 

According to the IFRS two parties are considered to be affiliated if one of them has the ability 

to control or can exercise a major influence over the other party related to its financial and 

operational decisions. 

Transactions with affiliated parties – a transfer of resources or obligations between affiliated 

parties, even if a price is requested or not.  

Control – owning, directly or indirectly, through subsidiaries of more than half of the voting 

rights for an entity, or of a major percentage from the voting rights and from the power to lead, 

by law or by parties agreement, the financial and operational policy of the company. 

The significant influence (in IFRS sense) – being part of the decisions regarding financial and 

operational policy of an entity, without controlling it. Significant influence can be exercised in 

many ways, usual by the representation in the Board of Directors but also by the participation in 

the process for setting up the policies of the company, in the managerial personnel exchange or 

by the dependence of technical information. Major influence can be obtained by owning shares, 

by law or by an agreement between parties. 
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The Issuer has ongoing contractual relations with companies that may be considered involved 

parties according to the definition included in the IFRS. Details regarding such contracts are 

included in the Chapter “Transactions with related parties”. 

Risk management 

Credit risk 

Financial assets, which may expose the Issuer to credit risk, mainly consist in trade receivables. 

The Group applies policies to ensure that the sales of products and services are made to 

customers with an appropriate credit history. The carrying amount of receivables, net of bad 

debt and sundry debtors’ provision, represents the maximum amount exposed to credit risk. 

Although collection of receivables could be influenced by economic factors, management 

believes that there is no significant risk of loss to the Group beyond the provision already 

recorded.  

 

Cash is placed in financial institutions, which, at time of deposit, are considered to have 

minimal risk of default. 

Liquidity risk 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and availability of 

funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. 

Interest rate risk 

The Issuer is exposed to interest rate risk through its interest-bearing short and long-term 

borrowings, the majority of which are at variable rates. The Issuer has not entered into any 

arrangements to mitigate this risk.  The Issuer has no significant interest-bearing assets. 

Currency risk 

The Issuer incurs substantial amount of foreign currency denominated long-term borrowings 

and is thus exposed to foreign exchange risk. Foreign currency denominated assets and 

liabilities give rise to foreign exchange exposure. 

The Issuer does not have formal arrangements to mitigate currency risks of its operations; 

consequently, the Issuer does not apply hedging accounting.  

Fair value estimation 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by 

using valuation techniques. 

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables is assumed to 

approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is 

estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that 

is available to the Issuer for similar financial instruments. 
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Subsequent events 

Production and sales of thermo-insulating panels 

The production activity of the thermo-insulating panels of sandwich type started in August 2007 

in Plasistem by setting up an automatically production line, with an annually capacity between 

1.000.000 and 1.500.000 square meters based on type-dimension. Even if it was started recently, 

the production of thermo-insulating panels with polyurethane foam core is currently carried out 

in 2 shifts of 8 hours per day. The Group is planning to acquire a second production line, 

according its Investment plan this will be put in function in 2009. 

The quantities sold in the period August-December 2007 are presented in the table below: 

August 2007 September 2007 October 2007 November 2007 December 2007

Thermo-insulating panels of sandwich type 30-50 square meters 4,971            9,912                 11,679           22,741               19,421               

Thermo-insulating panels of sandwich type 60-100 square meters 9,738            12,815               23,172           27,547               20,757               

Accessories for thermo-insulating panels pieces 42                 782                    2,021             8,793                 2,802                  
Source: Management reports 

The sales of panels increased in November 2007 compared to October 2007 mainly due to the 

introduction of the second shift starting with last half of November. Sales decreased in 

December 2007 compared to November 2007 because of a low activity in the constructions. 

 

Other events 

During the period July-December 2007, the Group acquired another 3.6% of the share capital of 

Plastsistem for the price of RON 218,791. Subsequently, the Group contributed to the increase 

of Plastsistem SA share capital by RON 688,100. Following this acquisition it holds 70.429% of 

the share capital of Plastsistem SA. 

The Issuer increased its share capital from RON 3,645,420 to RON 24,822,990 using reserves 

amounting to RON 21,177,570. Teraplast issued 705,919 new shares that will be distributed 

freely depending on the participation of each shareholder in the share capital. The nominal value 

of each share dropped from RON 30 RON to RON 0.1.  

The Issuer contracted a long term loan of EUR 3.5 million for investment in equipment, to be 

repaid until November 2014 (see Chapter – “ Important contracts”).  

The Issuer concluded another 27 leasing contracts for machines and equipment, the total value 

of the contracted capital being EUR 416,045, with a total interest of EUR 79,066. 

After 30 June 2007, the Group contracted investment in equipment and land amounting to RON 

7,117,989 and EUR 4,188,920.   

Details regarding these contracts are included in the Chapter “Important contracts”. 
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Other financial data 

Period of six months ended as at June 30, Period of twelve months ended as at December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON) ('000 RON)

Revenues 93,364 62,841 156,821 121,824 110,506

Other operating income 340 513 848 333 376

93,704 63,354 157,669 122,157 110,882

Profit before tax 10,244 3,701 11,244 13,358 12,686

Interest expenses (913) (609) (1,477) (1,137) (1,093)

Depreciation and amortisation (3,470) (3,679) (7,188) (6,619) (5,305)

EBITDA 14,627 7,989 19,909 21,114 19,084

EBITDA margin 16% 13% 13% 17% 17%

Foreign exchange gains 3,113 988 2,356 1,693 1,530

Foreign exchange losses (579) (596) (1,110) (1,112) (947)

Interest income 58 74 140 119 57

Revenues from discounts received 141 53 102 122 2

Expenses with discounts granted (41) - - - (253)

Other financial gain 1 - - 16 8

Other financial losses - - - (62) (1)

Income from sale of tangible assets 37 73 98 1,104 226

Net book value of property, plant and 

equipment disposed - (112) (108) (614) (37)

Income from participating interests 26 6 6 15                    -       

Revenues from shares - - - - 52

Profit from operating activity 8,401 3,824 11,237 13,214 13,142

Margin from operating activity 9% 6% 7% 11% 12%  

Note: 

(1) EBITDA refers to profit before interest, income tax, depreciation expense as showed  in 

the Group’s audited financial statements. EBITDA is not a concept defined under IFRS 

or any other generally accepted accounting principles. 
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Summary of significant differences between Romanian Accounting Standards and 

International Financial Reporting Standards 

The IFRS consolidated financial statements of Teraplast Group were prepared based on the 

statutory accounts kept according to Romanian accounting principles, adjusted to comply with 

the IFRS. The Romanian accounting standards significantly differ from the International 

Financial Reporting Standards.  

For this purpose, we present below a brief description of the significant differences between the 

national accounting standards and the international ones. Still, this presentation is not supposed 

to include all the details regarding the differences existing between the two standards mentioned 

above. 

 

Reporting according to IAS 29 

The Group’s financial statements were prepared based on the ongoing concern principle, 

according to historic cost convention adjusted to the effects of hyperinflation until 31 December 

2003. 

Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies requires that the financial statements of 

companies reporting in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy be stated in terms of the 

measuring unit current at the balance sheet date and all the amounts be revaluated under the 

same terms. IAS 29 provides that reporting the operating results and the financial position in the 

local currency, without revaluation, is useless as the money lose their purchasing power and a 

comparison between the value of transactions or other events occurring at different times, even 

within the same reporting period, would be wrong.  

IAS 29 suggests than an economy should be considered hyperinflationary if certain conditions 

are complied with, one of them being that the accumulated inflation rate over a period of three 

years exceeds 100%. 

Until 31 December 2003, Romania’s economy was considered hyperinflationary and this is why 

adjustments of the initial balances were made, in order to apply IAS 29. 

The application of IAS 29 to specific categories of transactions and balances within the financial 

statements implies the following treatments: 

Monetary assets and liabilities 

The monetary assets and liabilities were not revaluated in order to apply IAS 29, as they were 

already revaluated on the balance sheet date. The inflation’s effect on the Group’s net monetary 

position is included in the income statement as monetary position loss or gain. 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities and shareholders equity 

All the non-monetary assets and liabilities, as well as all the items under shareholders’ equity 

were restated by applying the inflation index valid on the date on which the assets, liabilities or 



 

   - 61 - 

items under shareholders equity were initially recognised in the financial statements (acquisition 

or contribution date) until the balance sheet date. 

National accounting standards 

The national accounting regulations do not allow the presentation of the effect of hyperinflation 

in the value of non-monetary assets and liabilities. 

According to national accounting regulations, the revaluation of tangible assets may be carried 

out and its results included in the accounting records. 

If the result of revaluation is an increase comparing to the net book value, then it is treated as 

follows: 

- as an increase of the revaluation reserve presented under “Equity and 

reserves” unless there was a previous decrease stated as an expense related 

to the respective asset; or 

- as an income compensating the expense with the decrease previously stated 

for the respective asset. 

The depreciation is calculated based on the revaluated cost. 

In order to present the fixed assets according to IFRS, the following corrections to the value of 

their cost were registered: 

- reversal of interest expense and foreign exchange differences related to investment 

loans initially included in the cost; 

- the amount representing the revaluation included in the statutory financial 

statements was written off against the revaluation reserve; 

- the depreciation of tangible and intangible assets is computed based on restated cost. 

 

Retirement benefit provisions 

 

International accounting standards 

Another significant difference between the statutory financial statements and the IFRS 

compliant ones is the application of IAS 19 “Employee benefits”. 

This standard recommends the way of registering and updating the information regarding 

employee benefits. The standard requires a company to recognize: 

- a debt in case an employee provided services in exchange for benefits to be paid in 

the future; 

- an expense in case the company wears out the economic benefits occurring 

following the service provided by an employee in exchange for the benefits. 
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The Group’s obligation regarding retirement benefits recognized in the balance sheet is the 

obligation of defined benefits, adjusted to the actuarial gains and losses not-recognised and any 

other post-employment costs. 

National accounting standards 

Starting with 2008 the Ministry of Finance Order no. 2374/ 2007 that changes and completes 

the Ministry of Finance Order no. 1752/ 2005 states that in case the company has pension 

obligations and provision are recorded, the value of the provision for pension liability has to be 

computed by an actuary.  

Deferred tax 

Another significant difference between statutory financial statements and the IFRS compliant 

ones is the one related to income tax expense and income tax debt, respectively. 

In the financial statements elaborated according to IFRS, the income tax expense is the total 

between current tax and deferred tax. 

Current income tax is calculated according to the tax legislation in force in Romania and is 

based on the results included in the Group’s income statement elaborated according to the local 

accounting standards, after adjustments for tax purposes. The current income tax is applied to 

the accounting profit, adjusted according to the tax legislation to a rate of 16%, namely 25% for 

2004. 

The deferred tax reflects the tax effect of the temporary differences between the carrying value 

of assets and liabilities used for the purpose of financial reporting and the tax values used for 

calculating income tax. The deferred tax payable is recorded against an expense. The deferred 

income tax to be recovered or paid is determined using the tax rate to apply in the year in which 

the temporary differences will be recovered or settled. The evaluation of the deferred income 

tax to be paid or recovered reflects the tax consequences resulting from the way in which the 

Group expects to recover or settle the carrying value of its assets and liabilities as of the balance 

sheet date. 

The current and deferred tax are recognised against an expense or an income in the income 

statement, unless they refers to items directly credited or debited to equity, in which case the tax 

is also directly recognized in equity, or unless they result from the initial registration of a 

business combination. In case of a business combination, the tax effect is considered in the 

calculation of the goodwill or in establishing the excess value of the acquirer’s interests in the 

net fair value of the assets, liabilities and identifiable potential liabilities of the acquirer on the 

cost. 

The Group’s deferred income tax reflects the tax effect of the temporary differences between the 

carrying value of assets and liabilities used for IFRS complaint financial statements and the tax 

values used for calculating the income tax, based on the statutory accounting. 
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Consolidation adjustments 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Issuer, of the 

subsidiary (SC Plastsistem SA) and of the joint venture (SC Politub SRL). 

The acquisitions of subsidiaries are stated using the acquisition method. The assets, liabilities 

and identifiable potential liabilities of the acquired company that may be recognized according 

to IFRS 3 “Business Combination” are stated at the fair value minus the cost of sale as of the 

acquisition date. 

Minority interests in net assets (excluding goodwill) of the consolidated branch are identified 

separately from the Group’s shareholders equity. Minority interest consist in the interest 

existing on the date of the original business combination and the subsequent changes in 

minority interest . 

The Group reports its interests in jointly controlled entities using pro rata consolidation. The 

Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of jointly controlled entities are 

combined with the equivalent items in the consolidated financial statements, line by line. 

All transactions within the group, balances, income and expenses are completely eliminated 

from consolidation.  

Other adjustments and reclassifications 

In order to present the IFRS compliant financial statements, additional adjustments were 

booked, out of which the most important ones refer to: 

- revaluation on 30 June 2007 of all Group’s balances in foreign currency 

(receivables, trade payables and loans) using the exchange rate published by NBR 

for 30 June 2007; 

- presentation of the employee participation to profit as a salary expense and not as 

profit distribution; 

- additional provisions for doubtful debts and slow moving inventories. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE MARKETS RELEVANT FOR THE ISSUER 

 
Macroeconomic framework 

 
With a population of approximately 21.56 million inhabitants at the end of 2006 and an area of 

approximately 238.4 thousand square kilometres, Romania is the most populated and largest 

country of South-Eastern Europe. Although it had to overcome major obstacles pertaining to the 

transition from a centralized system, considering the high volumes of direct investments of the 

last five years, the national economy registered increases in real terms ranging between 4% and 

8.5% per year, higher than the ones obtained by the European states in the region. At the same 

time, during the same period, the inflation rate showed a decreasing trend, while the salaries and 

available income increased significantly in real terms. 

 

 
 
Already in the attention of strategic investors and a full member state of the European Union 

starting 1 January 2007, at present Romania is considered a key regional market with a 

significant growth potential. This potential results from the still significant development gap of 

the Romanian economy as compared to other member states. Thus, although Romania’s 

population represents approximately 4.4% of the total population of the European Union, its 

contribution to the latter’s total gross domestic product was of only 0.85% in 2006. Moreover, 

while the gross domestic product per inhabitant increased in Romania during the period 2003-

2006 by 6.4% per year on average in real terms, it only represented 19.4% of the EU-25 average 

in 2006. 

 

 
 
In the following years, Romania’s major macroeconomic objectives are the implementation of 

structural reforms according to the requirements of the European Union, the control over 

inflationary pressures and a sustained economic increase. 
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Constructions sector 

 

Constructions sector is a key component closely reflecting the development of a national 

economy. The ascending trend of the Romanian economy until now was mainly visible in the 

constructions sector that, during the period 2001-2005, reported yearly growth average ratios 

between 9% and 10% in real terms, while in 2006, in view of Romania’s accession to the 

European Union, it reached a total value of approximately EUR 11.4 billion, up by 19.3% as the 

one registered in 2005. At the same time, during 2007 the constructions sector continued its 

ascending trend, reaching a yearly growth rate of 30.9% while, during the same period, the 

gross domestic product increased by 5.8%. 

 

 
 

Nevertheless, in the last years constructions registered the most significant dynamics of the 

entire Romanian economy. In this respect, while the gross domestic product increased by yearly 

rates significantly exceeding the European average, the contribution of the constructions sector 

to the positive evolution of macroeconomic ratios has become more and more important. Thus, 

in 2006, 15.6% of the Gross Domestic Product was sustained by the increase in the 

constructions sector, as compared to 14.6% in 2005. Moreover, during the first six months of 

2007, the constructions sector accounted for 25.4% of the growth of the Romanian Gross 

Domestic Product. 

In addition, considering the sustained increase of direct investments, the return of nationalized 

land and flexible lending policies, most of the Central and Eastern Europe countries have 

registered important increases in the constructions sector in the last years, which decisively 

impacted on the evolution of their Gross Domestic Product. Still, the Romanian constructions 
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sector has increased more than the European Union average (22.11% in the fourth quarter of 

2006 in Romania as compared to 7.2% in EU-25 during the entire year 2006) and than most of 

the countries in the region (8.8% in the Czech Republic, 1.2% in Hungary or 14.6% in 

Slovakia). 

 

 
 
Despite the positive evolutions registered in the last years, higher even than the ones registered 

by the countries in the region, the Romanian constructions sector still has an important gap as 

compared to the performance of more developed European countries and the European Union in 

its entirety. This gap mainly comes from the still consistent lack of built areas (residential and 

non-residential) in Romania and modern infrastructure and, secondly, from the very low weight 

of the national Gross Domestic Product in the total Gross Domestic Product of the European 

Union. 

Thus, although in 2006 the Romanian constructions sector’s weight in the national Gross 

Domestic Product significantly higher than in other countries in the region (7% in Romania as 

compared to 4.7% in Bulgaria, 4.1% in Hungary or 5.8% in Poland), its weight in the total value 

of the European Union constructions sector is much lower than the one of more developed 

European countries (1.08% in Romania as compared to 13.26% in Germany, 15.92% in France 

or 12.64% in Italy). 
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The countries in the region such as Bulgaria, Czech Republic or Poland, also recent members of 

the European Union, register a similar situation: the weight of the national constructions sector 

in the national Gross Domestic Product is significant, but the participation to the total value of 

the constructions sector of EU-25 is very low. This triggers major gaps between the 

development level registered by the Central and Eastern European countries, Romania included, 

and the more developed member states of the European Union. 

In addition to the comparison with the other member states and the European Union average, 

Romania’s deficit in terms of built areas and modern infrastructure is also confirmed by the 

reports of the National Institute of Statistics. These show that, considering an increase in 

nominal terms of the value of construction works carried out during 2001 – first semester of 

2007 of approximately 3.6 times, the weight of the value of new constructions and capital 

repairs increased from 73.5% in 2001 to 76.2% in the first semester of 2007. As a consequence, 

the Romanian constructions sector continued to be dominated by new constructions or capital 

repair works while, although growing, the current maintenance and repair works still keep a 

weight below 25% in the total market value. 
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A detailed analysis of the constructions sector identified three separate segments in terms of 

purpose: 

� Residential constructions, including separate buildings, collective buildings (blocks of 

flats) and residential buildings for communities. Having registered the most significant 

dynamics in the last 5 years, in 2006 this segment accounted for 19.7% of the total 

value of the Romanian constructions sector. 

� Non-residential constructions, including industrial areas (production plants and 

warehouses), commercial areas (large commercial retail areas and mall-type 

compounds) and administrative buildings (hotels, hospitals, schools and office 

buildings). With a weight of 40.6% in the total sector value in 2006, this segment 

continues to be the most important component of the entire constructions market. 

� Engineering constructions, including transport infrastructure works (roads and bridges). 

Although, until 2002, the segment of engineering constructions held a weight of more 

than 50% of the Romanian constructions sector, its contribution to the total sector value 

constantly decreased in favour of residential constructions, down to 39.7% in 2006. 

 

Whereas the sustained increase of the Romanian constructions sector, during the period 2000-

2006 the three component segments registered different growth paces, depending on particular 

characteristics and market conditions. Their positive evolutions should be looked at both from 

the point of view of the investments in new constructions, as well as of the execution of capital 

repairs and maintenance works to the existing constructions. 
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Residential constructions segment 

The data published by the National Institute of Statistics for the Romanian residential 

constructions show a major gap between the offer of living area (represented by the number of 

existing dwellings and the constructions of new dwellings) and the increasing need for 

dwellings, mainly occurring in urban areas. Thus, for a population of 21.6 million inhabitants, 

during the period 2001-2006, the number of dwellings in Romania increased from 8.11 million 

dwellings (corresponding to a living area of 304.45 million square meters) to 8.23 million 

dwellings (corresponding to a living area of 314.54 million square meters). 

 

The increase by 1.5% of the total number of dwellings (or by 3.3% of the total living area) 

registered during 2001-2006 was not enough for significantly improving the comfort ratios of 

Romanian population. For this purpose, in 2006, there were approximately 14.6 square meters 

of living area on average per inhabitant, while in the European Union this value was of 36 

square meters.  Moreover, even countries in the region such as the Czech Republic or Hungary 

registered double average values of this ratio as compared to the ones existing in Romania. 
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Considering the above, the Romanian residential constructions market has registered increases 

in the last years higher than the ones of non-residential and engineering constructions, 

respectively. Thus, although, in 2000, residential constructions accounted for only 11% of the 

constructions market, their value increased in nominal terms almost 9 times, reaching RON 6.87 

billion at the end of 2006 (approximately EUR 1.95 billion) corresponding to a weight of 19.6% 

of the total sector value. Moreover, in the first six months of 2007, this segment registered an 

increase of approximately 33.4% as compared to the same period of the previous year. 

With regard to the investments for carrying out new residential constructions, the data show a 

significant increase of the areas for which building authorizations were issued. For this purpose, 

in 2006 51.059 building authorizations for new residential buildings were issued, corresponding 

to a total area of 9.83 million square meters. This represents an increase by 17.3% of the number 

of authorizations and by 33.6% of the area as compared to 2005. Moreover, in the first six 

months of 2007, 26.039 building authorizations for new residential buildings were issued, up by 

28.4% as compared to the same period of 2006, which corresponds to a total authorized area of 

approximately 5.36 million square meters. 
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The existing difference between the Romanian residential constructions segment and the 

residential sectors of the countries in the region is also shown by the comparison regarding the 

increase of the number of authorizations issued for the construction of residential buildings. 

Thus, in 2006, the number of authorizations issued in Romania outnumbered the ones registered 

in the European Union or other countries in the region. 
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The evolution presented above meant, in Romania, the delivery of an average of 31.1 thousand 

dwellings per year during the period 2001-2006, with an average built area of approximately 

140 square meters. The speed-up of the increasing trend of the residential constructions sector is 

proved by the number of completed dwellings, namely by the built areas completed each year. 

Thus, if during 2001-2004 the number of newly delivered dwellings on the market registered 

increases ranging between 2.5% - 5%, in 2005 the increase was of 9.1%, while in 2006 it 

reached 20.6%, corresponding to 39,638 newly delivered dwellings. Moreover, the total built 

area of newly completed dwellings doubled in 2006, reaching 21.6% as compared to 2005, 

corresponding to a total of approximately 5.9 million square meters delivered. 

 

The volume of 39.638 new dwellings delivered in 2006 in Romania corresponds to a yearly 

index of 1.8 new dwellings for 1,000 inhabitants. This level is much below the average 

registered in the European Union (where, in 2006, an average of 6 new dwellings for 1,000 

inhabitants were delivered), as well as the indices communicated by the countries in the regions 

such as Poland, Czech Republic or Hungary. This confirms once more the significant gap 

between Romania’s development stage in terms of residential areas and the one existing in other 

European Union countries. 

 

 

The potential of eliminating this gap lies in the increasing difference between the number of 

square meters for which authorizations for residential buildings were issued (9.83 million square 

meters in 2006, by 33.6% more than in 2005) and the number of square meters of completed 

residential buildings delivered each year (5.87 million square meters in 2006, by 21.6% higher 

than in 2005). In 2006, this difference was of approximately 3.96 million square meters, up by 

56.3% as compared to the value registered in 2005. Moreover, in the first six months of 2007, 

authorizations for residential buildings of approximately 5.36 million square meters were 
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issued, which is close to the total delivered volume during the entire year 2006. These 

evolutions show that the Romanian market of residential constructions is registering a very fast 

growth pace. 

 
 

On the other hand, the positive evolution of the constructions sector was not only quantitative, 

but also qualitative. Thus, with regard to new constructions, the improvement of quality 

standards is seen in the changed structure of installations assembled in new dwellings. Thus, if 

in 2001 out of a total 27,041 completed residential constructions only 9,907 dwellings 

(representing 36.6 of the total) were equipped with sewerage system and 12,611 dwellings 

(representing 46.6% of the total) had drinkable water supply systems, in 2006 approximately 

53.9 of the new dwellings had direct access to a sewerage system and 64.1% benefited from the 

supply with drinkable water. 

 
 
In this way, together with consolidating the Romanian dwellings by increasing the areas of 

completed residential buildings delivered to beneficiaries, the improvement of living comfort 

standards is an important part of the increase of the residential constructions sector. As in 2006 

there still were important deficits regarding the installations supplied to new dwellings, this 

offers a hint on the development potential of this segment on the average term. 

Secondly, the important number of old dwellings and the reduced weight of maintenance and 

current repairs works in the total value of the residential constructions segment are two factors 

that trigger the need for rehabilitation of the existing dwellings. For this purpose, while, in 2006, 

the weight of current repair and maintenance works represented only 23.8% of the total value of 

the constructions sector, approximately 67% of the total 8.20 million dwellings existing in 2005, 

representing approximately 312.02 million square meters of built area, were more than 30 years 

old. 
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In addition, as part of the community acquis, the Romanian Government launched the National 

Programme for Thermal Rehabilitation of Dwellings, that forces the owners of dwellings built 

before 1989 (especially the collective ones type block of flats in urban areas) to make 

investments for limiting the thermal losses by thermally insulating the outer walls, replacing the 

windows and repair loss generating pipes. Moreover, following the implementation of this 

program, these shall receive an energetic certificate, a document that, starting 2009, will become 

compulsory for each sale or concession of a dwelling. 

Thus, simultaneously with the positive evolution of new constructions works, the segment of 

capital repairs and rehabilitation of existing buildings becomes more significant. If the first 

component is characterized by dynamism and accelerated increase for recovering the minuses as 

compared to the European Union, the second component has a large size (more than 300 million 

square meters of existing residential constructions). At the same time, we can notice that the 

evolution of capital repairs and current maintenance works follows the path of new construction 

works. Starting 2005, both categories have registered monthly increases ranging between 20-

50% as compared to the same period of the previous year. 
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Non-residential constructions segment 

Due to the various types of constructions it comprises, the non-residential sector is the most 

important element of the total constructions market. In the first semester of 2007, it held a 

weight of almost 42%. The value of this segment increased from 2001 until the 1st semester of 

2007 by 4.7 times in nominal terms, reaching a yearly value of approximately RON 19.27 

billion (the equivalent of EUR 5.51 billion). 

It mainly experiences the same evolution as the residential constructions segment. Thus, while 

the fast economic growth and the volume of foreign direct investments in Romania brought up 

the need for office, industrial or commercial areas built at quality standards comparable to the 

European Union ones, the number of such areas was quite low in 2000. The developers noticed 

this opportunity and, starting 2001, the offer on this segment was significantly enlarged. 

This evolution also results from the reports of the National Institute of Statistics regarding the 

yearly increases of the areas for which building authorizations for non-residential buildings 

were issued. Thus, starting 2002, when it was of approximately 2 million square meters, the 

total area authorized for the construction of non-residential buildings increased in 2006 to more 

than 5 million square meters and grew by more than 40% during the same year. 
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Moreover, the performances presented above register remarkable levels when compared to the 

average registered in the European Union or the separate evolutions of some of the member 

states. Obviously, in comparison to the latter, Romania still has to recover important gaps in this 

segment. 

 

 

The yearly increases of the areas authorized for construction of non-residential buildings led to 

consistent positive evolutions of the value of new orders. In this way, in connection to the 

increase of 41.5% of the authorized areas, the value of new orders increased by RON 5 billion. 

Moreover, in the first two semesters of 2007, the value of the orders reached approximately 

RON 4.2 billion, close to the value registered in 2006. 
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The evolution of non-residential constructions segment refers to office areas, commercial areas, 

industrial areas, hotels, schools and hospitals. While the first three categories mentioned are 

relevant only when analyzed in terms of new constructions, the high number of schools and 

hospitals older than 30 years triggers rehabilitation and capital repairs works. 

With respect to office areas, the developments in the last years are remarkable. Mainly Class A 

level areas are built, and the areas are mainly contracted for lease at least one year prior to the 

completion of construction works. In this way, while the number of office areas reached 

approximately 430.000 square meters only in Bucharest in 2007 (49 buildings), the un-

occupancy degree dropped during the same period below 1.5%, which is a record level for 

Europe. 

The market of office areas is much extended in Bucharest where, only in 2006, approximately 

130,000 square meters were completed and delivered. Moreover, while in 2004 office areas of 

78.000 were delivered, at the end of 2008 approximately 400,000 square meters are expected to 

be completed. These will double the areas existing at present. Despite these evolutions, the gap 

existing in comparison to other countries in the region is still significant, especially if the 

comparison is made with cities like Warsaw, which, in the first semester of 2007, had 

approximately 1.8 million square meters of office areas, or Prague, which had 1.1 million 

square meters of office areas as of the same date. 

On the commercial areas segment, large chains expand to new locations and, at present, the 

areas are fully pre-leased before completion and delivery, and the un-occupancy degree dropped 

to approximately 3%. Different from the evolution of office areas, which is still mainly focused 

in Bucharest, the segment of commercial areas registers a significant expansion in other cities 

than Bucharest. Thus, at the end of 2007, 3 projects totalling 34,500 square meters were 

completed, out of which one in Bucharest and two outside Bucharest. Moreover, for the end of 
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2007 another six projects are expected to be completed and delivered, totalling 161,200 square 

meters, all outside Bucharest. 

Despite these evolutions, Romania still holds very few rentable commercial areas as compared 

to other European Union countries. Thus, holding approximately 584,000 square meters of 

rentable commercial areas at the end of the first six months of 2007, the equivalent of an 

average of 26.2 square meters for 1,000 inhabitants, Romania ranked 19 in Europe. On the 

opposite side, even the countries in the region register levels at least 5 times higher than 

Romania for 1,000 inhabitants. For the end of 2008, 10 projects are expected to be delivered in 

Bucharest and outside Bucharest, totalling 430,000 square meters. In this way Romania’s 

commercial areas will get close to 1 million square meters. 

 

 

 

With regard to industrial areas segment, its dynamics originates in the expansion of the 

logistics/distribution sector and the process of relocating industrial facilities within built-up 

areas. Warehouses with flexible areas, easy to split, maximum 9 meters high and with average 

usable areas of approximately 3,000 square meters are built. If, in 2003, approximately 10,000 

square meters of industrial areas were delivered, in 2006 this value reached 61,300 square 

meters, thus reaching a total number of 260,100 square meters of new industrial areas. 

Moreover, during 2007, another 434,000 square meters were delivered in stages, showing an 

increase of 100% of the existing volume of industrial areas. Nevertheless, Romania still has a 

significant growth potential in this segment considering that Poland, a member country of the 

European Union, with an area of approximately 312.7 thousand square kilometres, holds 

industrial areas of approximately 3.52 million square meters, four times higher than Romania. 
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Starting 2005, the hotels segment has registered an ascending trend, mainly due to business 

tourism. The market is dominated by Bucharest which, in 2005, had approximately 5,400 hotel 

rooms. For the following three years another 4,000 rooms are expected to be completed and 

finalized, most of them in cities outside Bucharest with more than 100,000 inhabitants. For the 

schools and hospitals segments, the rehabilitation and capital repairs works are very important. 

In this case, the Romanian Government approved for 2007 a total amount of approximately 

EUR 1.1 billion for the construction and rehabilitation of 84 educational locations such as 

academic campuses, schools and kindergartens. These works are mainly aimed at improving the 

thermo-insulating parameters by installing thermo-insulating windows, as well as at replacing or 

repairing sanitary installations systems. 

 

Engineering constructions segment 

 
Whereas in 2001 the engineering constructions segment represented 51% of the total value of 

the constructions sector, within 5 years it tripled its value in nominal terms, reaching a value of 

RON 18.03 billion in the first semester of 2007 (the equivalent of EUR 5.23 billion). Romania’s 

deficit in terms of modern infrastructure (roads, bridges, water and sewerage systems) is also 

visible in the growth rates of new civil engineering works, much higher than the ones registered 

in the European Union. 

 

The Romanian drinkable water distribution network has a length of 47,778 kilometres, 

representing approximately 71% of the total length of roads in urban areas, while approximately 

67% of the population of rural areas did not have access to drinkable water supply in 2005. In 

On the other hand, the sewerage network has a length of 18,381 kilometres, out of which 16,397 

kilometres in urban areas, representing more than 89% of the total. This means that 92.3% of 

the urban population (or 10.3 million inhabitants) and only 7.7% of the rural population (or 1.15 

million inhabitants) have access to the sewerage systems. 
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In total, in 2006, only 52% of Romania’s population benefited from both water supply and 

sewerage systems, while 65.2% of the population benefited from drinkable water from the 

public network. In comparison, in Europe, 96-100% of the population is connected to public 

water supply systems. The conclusion is that the Romanian public utilities networks were 

downsized in 2007, considering that not all the houses in a city benefit from such facilities. 

In addition to the above, the pipes of the drinkable water supply and distribution system are 

generally made of reinforced concrete, cement-asbestos or lead, which are considered harmful 

to public health in the European Union. At the same time, approximately 30% of the pipes are 

made of steel and do not have a functional cleaning and maintenance system. Whereas the study 

of the specialized institutes show that the drinkable water in Romania is contaminated with 

corrosion products and impurities, approximately 70-75% of the current drinkable water supply 

network needs to be replaced. In this way, if the sewerage systems are downsized, more than 

70% of the drinkable water supply network does not comply with the public health norms 

promoted by the European Union. 

Despite the poor condition of the Romanian drinkable water and sewerage systems, only 32 

cities with a population exceeding 100,000 inhabitants benefited from investments in the 

rehabilitation of drinkable water and wasted water infrastructure after 1990. In this respect, in 

2007 the Romanian Government launched the Sector Operational Program for Environment 

which, among other things, aims at improving the quality and access to water and waste water 

infrastructure. According to the data included in the report regarding this program, the 

investment necessary for the period 2007-2013 for the rehabilitation and expansion of the 

Romanian drinkable water supply network is the highest of all new European Union member 

states, amounting to approximately EUR 3.8 billion. These funds will be secured from the state 

budget, local budgets, loans and European funds. The development gap as compared to the other 

new European Union member states, together with the launch of the Sector Operational 

Program for Environment, represent a considerable opportunity for increase of the market for 

manholes, pipes and fittings for sewerage and drinkable water systems. 
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Market of polymerised plastic materials 

 

Obviously the fast development of the Romanian constructions sector led to the expansion of 

the construction materials market, which thus became more and more dynamic and diversified. 

Besides the classic construction materials such as cement, dry mortar, bricks or prefabricated 

parts, new solutions appeared on the market, more economic and more efficient, created based 

on polymerized plastic materials such as polymerized vinyl chloride, polypropylene or 

polyethylene: 

� Polymerized vinyl chloride (shortly PVC) is a macro-molecular product obtained by 

the polymerization of vinyl chloride. The PVC is a white powder, without smell and 

tasteless and is widely used in the construction materials industry, packaging industry, 

vehicles and agriculture; 

� Polypropylene (known as PP) is a macromolecular product obtained by the 

polymerization of propylene at low pressures. This mainly has the form of granules and 

is widely used in the production of construction materials, mainly pipe systems; 

� Polyethylene (also called PE) is a macromolecular product obtained by the 

polymerization of ethylene at high, medium or low pressures, thus obtaining various 

types with various characteristics and uses. Thus, low density polyethylene is used for 

producing packaging foil, clothes or insulation for electric cables. On the other hand, 

the high density polyethylene has a special resistance to shock and is used in the 

production of under pressure recipients or supply pipes. 
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Polymerised vinyl chloride market 

 

Considering its wide use in the construction materials market, as well as the important increase 

registered on this market, the world’s consumption of polymerised vinyl chloride has had an 

exponential growth trend in the last fifty years. Thus, if in 1950 it was of 0.22 mil. tons, in 2000 

the consumption of PVC in the entire world was almost 25 mil. Tons. Starting with 2000 PVC 

world consumption had evolved with a yearly average increase rate of approximately 3.5%, 

reaching approximately 30.3 million tons in 2005. Moreover, in 2006, the world’s demand for 

PVC amounted to 33 mil. tons, up by 9.4% as compared to the previous year. 

 

 

Going through a period of sustained economic growth, visible especially in the evolution of 

constructions sector, China and the Central and Eastern Europe have the most important 

contributions to the international increase of PVC consumption. Thus, between 2000 and 2005, 

China registered a yearly average increase by 12.5%, reaching a consumption of approximately 

7.7 mil. tons of PVC in 2005, accounting for 25.5% of the total consumption in the world. 

During the same period, the countries of Central and Eastern Europe reported an annually 

average increase rate of PVC consumption of 8.4%, reaching a total consumption of 

approximately 1.1 mil. tons of PVC in 2005. 
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With respect to Central and Eastern Europe, the increase of PVC consumptions is correlated 

with the rapid development of the constructions sector in the area. Thus, for 2005 we can notice 

that the constructions sector held a weight of approximately 67% of the total PVC consumption, 

while the packaging sector, the agriculture or the vehicle sectors each registered weights ranging 

between 3–10%. 

 

Moreover, the analysis of the types of products for which PVC is the main raw material shows 

that approximately 55% of the PVC consumption is split between the production of profiles and 

pipes, both being considered modern and efficient types of construction materials, widely used 

in the last years. First of all, this reconfirms the close correlation between the evolution of the 

constructions sector and that of PVC consumption. At the same time, the fact that the two 
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product categories not only have the largest weights in total consumption (namely 29% of total 

PVC consumption for profiles and 26% for pipes), but also registered the highest increase rated 

on the Central and Eastern European market in 2006 (approximately 24% for profiles, namely 

22% for pipes), offer an image on the growth potential of PVC consumption. 

 

Considering the above, it is obvious that, in Romania, the growth of the constructions sector on 

all segments (residential, non-residential and engineering) has a direct influence on PVC 

consumption. The growth potential of PVC consumption is even higher as the level of 70 

thousand tons used in 2006 is still lower, in terms of absolute and relative values, than the total 

consumption level  witnessed by other countries in the region. 
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The potential of the Romanian market of PVC construction materials is also shown by the 

important gap registered in the annual PVC consumption per inhabitant in Romania as 

compared to other countries in the region. Thus, while in 2006 the PVC consumption per 

inhabitant in Romania was around 3.2 kg., in Poland it was of 8.7 kg., 2.7 times higher than the 

one registered in our country.  

Considering the above, in 2006 Hungary and Poland held one of the highest PVC production 

capacities in Central and Eastern Europe. Thus, with a yearly consumption of 95 thousand tons 

of PVC in 2006, Hungary had a PVC production capacity of 400 thousand tons per year. At the 

same time, with a total yearly consumption of 330 thousand tons, Poland held a capacity of 300 

thousand tons. On the other side, Romania had a yearly production capacity of 350 thousand 

tons, five times higher than the yearly consumption registered in 2006. Whereas the sustained 

growth of the Romanian constructions sector, the proximity of raw materials for the local 

producers of PVC construction materials is a major competitive advantage versus the 

competitors from other the countries in the region and an important element for growth of PVC 

and PVC made construction materials market. 

 

 

 

Polypropylene market 

 

With respect to the polypropylene market, the world’s consumption has constantly increased in 

the last years, growing from 30.6 million tons in 2000 to 43.7 million tons in 2006, translated in 

an increase rate of 6.4% as compared to 2005. In this case also Asia remains the main consumer 

in the world, with 37.5% in 2006. At the same time, Central and Eastern Europe registered 

increases above the world’s average, with a growth rate of approximately 10.8% in 2006. 
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At the same time, the annually production capacity available in this region, trying to recover the 

gap in comparison to Western European countries, was of 1.66 million tons in 2005, up by 26% 

as compared to 2002. Moreover, while in 2005 in the Western European countries the yearly 

average consumption of polypropylene per inhabitant was of 20.6 kilograms, only in the Czech 

Republic this amounted during the same period to a value higher by 50%, up to 30.5 kilograms. 

This comparison shows the significant potential of the polypropylene market in Central and 

Eastern Europe countries.  

In line with the positive evolution of the constructions sector, the consumption of polypropylene 

in Romania increased mainly because its use as raw material for producing construction 

materials (especially tubes). This is visible in the value of the imported PP granules, which 

increased in the period 2002-2006. 

 

 

 

In conclusion, polymerized plastic materials (such as PVC, PP and PE) are modern and efficient 

raw materials widely used for of construction materials. This is why their consumption is 

strictly connected to the constructions sector in general and the market of construction materials 

in particular, while the evolutions on emerging markets sustain this statement. 

 
Plastic materials tubes market 

 

Due to the superior physical and chemical properties and the reduced production costs, the tubes 

made of polymerised plastic materials has registered a real success on the construction materials 

market in the last years, tending to replace the use of tubes made of classic materials such as 

cement-asbestos, copper or lead. Depending on the raw material used in the production process, 

as well as their destination, plastic materials tubes are divided in three separate categories: 
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� Tubes made of polymerized vinyl chloride (PVC), used for internal and external 

sewerage systems, drilling, drainage and insulation of electric and telecommunication 

cables; 

� Tubes made of polypropylene (PP), used for the transport and distribution systems of 

drinkable and hot water, as well as industrial fluids; 

� Tubes made of polyethylene (PE), used for the transport and distribution systems of 

heat and gas, as well as for the protection of telecommunication cables. 

 

Out of these, in 2006 the polyethylene was the main raw materials used for producing plastic 

materials tubes, while holding more than half of the total in Central and Eastern Europe 

countries. 

 

 

In 2005, Romania reported a total production of tubes made of thermo-insulating plastic 

materials of approximately 48 thousand tons, four times smaller than the one in Poland. At the 

same time, Romania’s gap for this product segment also results from the production level of 

plastic materials tubes per number of inhabitants. Thus, while in 2005, in Romania 

approximately 2.23 kg of plastic materials tubes were produced per inhabitant, other countries 

in the region, also members of the European Union, reported a level at least double. 

 



 

   - 88 - 

 

 

With respect to the correlation between the market of tubes made of polymerised plastic 

materials and the Romanian constructions sector, the Issuer estimates that for the construction 

of 100 square meters of residential area (apartment), there is need of 81 lm (equivalent of 46.17 

kilograms of pipes) plastic materials tubes for the sewerage and water supply system. At the 

same time, for the construction of 1,000 square meters of industrial plant, the needed plastic 

material tubes for sewerage and water supply systems is of 202 lm (equivalent of 183.09 

kilograms of pipes). On the other hand, for an office building with an average area of 1,000 

square meters there is need of 405 lm (the equivalent of 330.84 kilograms of pipe) plastic 

materials tubes for the sewerage and water supply systems. 

 

Market of PVC tubes 

 
As the Romanian constructions market registers growth rates higher than the ones of other 

countries in the region, the size of the PVC tubes market in 2006, according to a study carried 

out by Neomar Consulting, a marketing research company, was of approximately EUR 27.9 

million, corresponding to a yearly quantity sold of approximately 23 thousand tons. The 

segmentation of the market of PVC tubes per types of uses shows, according to Neomar 

Consulting, that in 2007 the sewerage system, holding 84% of the total market, represented the 

main use of this product. Thus, the PVC tubes sold in Romania are mainly used for the 

rehabilitation of sewerage systems, while the other uses such as drainage systems or cold water 

supply systems register small shares of up to 3%. According to the same study, the 

segmentation of PVC tubes market in terms of distribution channels shows that the two 

dominant channels are construction companies that prefer to purchase directly from suppliers 

(32%) and the companies distributing construction materials, with 44% of the total market. 
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In 2006, the market of PVC tubes was dominated by four important players that, together, held 

approximately 76% of the total sales of PVC tubes in Romania. Out of them, according to the 

same study, Teraplast S.A. Bistrita held a market share of approximately 41%, followed by 

Valplast with approximately 21% of the market. Thus, according to Neomar Consulting, 

Teraplast S.A. Bistrita is the confirmed leader of PVC tubes market, and in 2006 its sales on this 

segment were almost double than the one registered by the following company, Valplast 

Industrie S.R.L. 

 

 

 

Due to the fact that tubes are products with a small value per volume unit, the weight of 

transport cost in the final price increases fast at the same time with the distance to the delivery 

point, which makes the local production facilities a major competitive advantage for the players 

on this market. In this way, the imports of tubes in Romania are not profitable and, therefore, 

they are insignificant. In 2006, the imports of PVC tubes represented only 1,500 tons, 

approximately 6% of the total size of the market, a level comparable to the one registered in 

2005. 

 

Market of PE tubes 

 

With respect to the segment of polyethylene market in Romania, in 2006 its value was of EUR 

69.3 million, up by 38.1% as compared to 2005. According to the same study carried out by 

Neomar Consulting, this level corresponds to a quantity of 45 thousand tons, up by 37.2% as 

compared to the one reported for 2005. The evolution presented above is directly connected to 

the development of the programs for financing the refurbishment and modernization works to 

water, sewerage and gas infrastructure. Thus, for 2007, Neomar estimated that 69% of the 
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market of PE tubes was used for building cold water supply networks, while 24% of the market 

value resulted from the development of gas supply networks. Considering the segmentation of 

the PE tubes market in terms of the uses mentioned above, the direct sale to constructors of this 

kind of networks appears as the first choice in the distribution process. Thus, in 2006, direct 

sales from producers to constructors accounted for 65% of the value of PE tubes market. 

In 2006, this segment was dominated by five players that, together, held approximately 77% of 

the value of polyethylene tubes market in Romania. Out of them, with local production 

capacities, Valrom ranked first with a market share of 31%, followed by Politub S.R.L. (part of 

Teraplast Group) with a market share of 13%. Thus, according to Neomar Consulting, Valrom 

is the uncontested leader of the Romanian market for PE tubes. In 2006 its sales on this segment 

were almost 2.4 times higher than the ones registered by the following company Politub S.R.L. 

(part of Teraplast Group). 

Regarding the PE pipes segment in Romania, its value amounts in 2006 approx. EUR 70 

millions, with an increase of 27.3% compared to 2005. In accordance with the same market 

report prepared by Neomar Consulting, this level corresponds to a 45,546 tons quantity, greater 

with 37.7% than 2005. The evolution presented is in strong correlation with the implementation 

of the financing programs for the refurbishment and modernization of the water, sewage and gas 

infrastructure. This segment is dominated by five players which together hold in 2006 more of 

70% of the PVC pipe market. From those, having local production facilities, Valrom is placed 

on the first place with a 13% market share. Also in this case, the imports component stays at a 

marginal level, imports representing a 5% from the total market value. 
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In this case also, the main characteristic of this product, namely the small value per volume unit 

makes the transport an important part once the distance to the delivery point increases. This is 

why the players with local production capacities dominate the market of PE tubes in Romania, 

while the imports remain insignificant. In 2006 they accounted for less than 5% of the total 

value of the market. Therefore, considering the main deficits, the positive evolution of the tubes 

consumption in Romania (both made of PVC and PE) is expected to stimulate mainly the 

domestic production, which is an important opportunity for players holding local production 

capacities. 

 

Market of thermo-insulating joinery systems 
 

The need to limit buildings’ thermal losses (occurring 9% through the floor, 24% through the 

roof, 26% through the walls and 41% through the windows), together with the increase of 

consumers’ sophistication degree, made the market of construction materials focus on the 

thermo-insulating joinery systems, considered to be more reliable and economical than the ones 

currently used. Thus, in a country registering high temperature fluctuations such as Romania, 

the option for thermo-insulating joinery systems became more and more important. 

According to the estimates of the Association of Producers of Thermo-Insulating Joinery, 

considering the evolutions in the last years with average growth rates of approximately 30%, the 

Romanian market of thermo-insulating joinery reached a total of approximately EUR 700 

million in 2006. The fast increase of the market was caused by the thermal rehabilitation of the 

existing constructions (mainly of the collective residential dwellings such as blocks of flats in 

urban areas), as well as the spectacular positive evolution of new constructions, both residential 

and non-residential. At the same time, beginning 2005, the expenses made for the acquisition 

and installation of thermo-insulating joinery systems became deductible out of the total income 

tax. 

In this respect, according to a study carried out by the marketing research company Neomar 

Consulting, the penetration of the thermo-insulating joinery on a national level registered 

remarkable evolutions in the last years. Thus, if between the years 2000 and 2004, the 

penetration tripled from approximately 3.2% in 2000 to more than 9% in 2005, starting 2005 it 

registered a fast increase and, within only one year, it doubled up to 22.6%. Moreover, in the 

last period, the increase usage rate of thermo-insulating joinery on a national level exceeded the 

growth rate of the constructions sector, which is explained by the fact that thermo-insulating 

joinery is used not only for new constructions, but also for the existing ones. 
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Thermo-insulating systems use profiles made of various types of materials, such as polymerised 

vinyl chloride, aluminium, steel, stratified wood or wood-plated aluminium. Out of these, due to 

the lower production cost and superior thermo-insulation, in 2006 PVC profiles were used more 

than the ones made of aluminium. Thus, while 70.1% of the producers of thermo-insulation 

profiles in 2006 used aluminium profiles, 93.4% used PVC profiles, by 5% more than the level 

registered in 2005. 

In 2006, PVC profiles held the most important weight in the total profile consumption, of 

approximately 73%, up by 7.1% as compared to 2004. The increase of the weight of PVC 

profile consumption generally caused the decrease of aluminium profiles, the weigh of which 

decreased substantially in the total profile consumption from 32.7% in 2004 to 26.2% in 2006. 
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At the same time, the consumers’ option for quality thermo-insulating joinery is more and more 

obvious. Thus, in 2006, 85.2% of PVC profiles used was included in the quality class A in terms 

of wall thickness, while only 13.7% of the profiles were included in the B or economic class. 

Moreover, the weight of 5-chamber profiles (of premium class) increased from 15.1% in 2004 

to 29.2% in 2006, together with the decrease in the value of 3-chamber profiles (considered as 

being part of the economic class) from 59.8% in 2004 to 45.3% in 2006. In other words, the use 

of three-chamber profiles is decreasing and the difference goes to five-chamber profiles. In this 

way, the consumers’ option for quality gives another size to the growing potential of the 

thermo-insulating joinery market. 
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The quality factor is very important not only with respect to the type of profile used in the 

production process, but also regarding the type of glass used. Thus, in the production of thermo-

insulation joinery, in 2006 the thermo-insulating glass with low emissions (low–E glass) was 

used for 60.3%, by 11.1% more than in 2005. During the same period, simple glass accounted 

for only 4.9% of total consumption, on a decreasing trend. 

 

At present, the Romanian market of thermo-insulation joinery is still very fragmented. In 2006, 

the market comprised 300 producers of thermo-insulating joinery, out of which only 17.7% 

have an annually average of more than 50 employees, while 29.3% of producers had an 

annually average ranging from 1 to 9 employees. At the same time, in 2006, 46.5% of the 

market was formed by small producers, with a monthly production capacity of 500 square 

meters. Still, we can notice that in 2006 their weight decreased in favour of producers with 

monthly production capacities exceeding 500 square meters. 
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As a consequence, we can notice that, at present, the thermo-insulating joinery market is 

dominated by small and medium players, dealers–assemblers active mainly on the segment of 

thermal rehabilitation of existing dwellings. Still, most of them do not have their own 

production capacities and acquire the profiles, glass and fittings from specialised producers. 

Thus, in 2006, only 26.9% of producers of thermo-insulating joinery used thermo-insulating 

glass produced by them, while the rest acquired it from specialized producers. Although, as 

compared to 2005, this per cent was slightly increasing, it still remains low in the total 

production. 

Moreover, most of the profiles (both of PVC and aluminium) come from import. According to 

the study carried out by the marketing research company Neomar Consulting, in 2006 the total 

size of the Romanian market of PVC profiles was of approximately EUR 133.3 million, out of 

which imports accounted for EUR 90.2 million, double than the domestic production of PVC 

profiles. On the other hand, the domestic production of PVC profiles in 2006 represented only 

32.3%, with a value of EUR 43.1 million. 

The evolution of imported values and quantities offer a fair view on the market increase. If, in 

2003, approximately 16 thousand tons of PVC profiles were imported, in 2006 the imports 

reached 45 thousand tons, representing an increase of 45% as compared to 2005. Likewise, the 

increases in the value of imported PVC profiles in the last four years range between 38 and 

45%. 
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Secondly, the incipient market development is shown by its significant potential. In this respect, 

according to Neomar Consulting, even following some considerable market increases, the 

equipment of dwellings with thermo-insulating joinery is still insufficient. Thus, in 2006, 77.4% 

of the dwellings existing in Romania were not equipped with thermo-insulating joinery. The 

market potential does not stop here, as out of the 22.6% of the dwellings equipped with thermo-

insulating joinery, only 46% were fully equipped, the rest being only partially equipped. The 

immediate conclusion is that, out of the total dwellings existing in 2006, only 10.4% were fully 

equipped with thermo-insulating joinery. 

In 2006, out of the market of thermo-insulating joinery with PVC profiles, the thermal 

rehabilitation of the existing apartments accounted for 51%, followed by the construction of 

residential buildings such as villas, accounting for 19%. While the average number of windows 

for a dwelling is of 4.87, the issuer estimates that there is need of 19.5 square meters of thermo- 

insulating joinery for an apartment of 100 square meters. 

At the same time, due to the Allotment of governmental and structural funds, the public works 

for the rehabilitation of non-residential buildings (such as schools and hospitals) accounted for 

11% in 2006. In addition, with respect to office buildings or commercial areas, the PVC thermo-

insulating joinery holds maximum 5% of total works, as in these cases the joinery made out of 

aluminium profiles is dominant. 
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At the same time, in 2006, 59.3% of the thermo-insulating joinery were distributed through own 

showroom networks, a channel mainly addressing the works for apartment rehabilitation. These 

are followed by public tenders (18.2%), mainly addressing public rehabilitation works. 

 

Thermo-insulating panels market 
 

Considering the accelerated development of non-residential constructions sector such as 

industrial and commercial works, the need to build quickly and well large areas brought up the 

solution of thermo-insulating panels of sandwich type for constructors and beneficiaries. 

The thermo-insulating panels of sandwich type are construction items with low thermal transfer, 

used in making the outside closures for large buildings such as production plants, storage areas, 

commercial centres, provisional social constructions, zoo-technical centres or construction sites. 

They are made of two sides of folded plates between which a core of polyurethane foam, 

polystyrene or mineral water of different thickness is inserted. Depending on technical 

characteristics such as sizes, loading or joining system, the destination of thermo-insulating 

panels may be the making of walls or roofs. 
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If, until recently, the construction of large areas was dominated by simple closing systems, 

made of folded plate panels, with the aggressive expansion of large commercial and industrial 

areas the solution of thermo-insulating panels expanded rapidly in Romania. In this respect, 

although in a preliminary stage, the market of thermo-insulating panels registers significant 

growth rates. Thus, according to a study carried out by the marketing research company Neomar 

Consulting, while in 2005 the total market size in terms of quantities was of 4,275,526 square 

meters, in 2006 it already amounted to 7,094,319 square meters, an increase by approximately 

66%. At the same time, in terms of value, the market size in 2006 reached EUR 133 million, up 

by 75.5% as compared to the previous year. 

 

 

 

The unique expansion of the non-residential constructions segment and the dominant weight of 

imports show that the Romanian market of thermo-insulating panels is currently undergoing an 

accelerated increase. In this respect, in 2005, the value of imports of thermo-insulating panels 

amounted to approximately EUR 56.2 million, representing 74.2% of total market. Moreover, in 

2006 the imports of thermo-insulating panels continued to dominate the market, their weight in 

total market increasing up to 77.8%. This weight translated in a value of the imports of 

approximately EUR 103.49 million, showing an increase rate of more than 84% as compared to 

the previous year. 

On the other hand, in 2006 the local production of thermo-insulating systems amounted to 

approximately EUR 29.5 million, representing only 22.2% of the market, down by 3.6% as 

compared to the level registered in the previous year. This value corresponds to a quantity of 

1,657,524 square meters of thermo-insulating panels, accounting for only 23.4% of the total 

quantity sold in 2006 in Romania. 
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In conclusion, the sustained increase of the consumption of thermo-insulating panels in 

Romania was mainly based on the imports, and their quantitative evolution reflects the increase 

of the total market. With a weight of 41.1% in 2006, Italy represents the main supplier of 

thermo-insulating panels for the Romanian market, followed by far by Greece (15.4%), 

Hungary (13.1%) and Germany (8.3%). 

 

 

 

Secondly, the competition’s structure shows that the Romanian market of thermo-insulating 

systems still has considerable room for consolidation. For this purpose, according to the study 

carried out by Neomar Consulting, in 2006 the first five players held approximately 30% of the 

total sales expressed in square meters, while small suppliers that delivered, during the same 

year, quantities ranging between 50,000 square meters and 200.000 square meters held an 

important share of 55.8%. Moreover, the latter also includes an important part of imports for 

self consumption (estimated up to 35%), carried out by the beneficiaries of large works who 

preferred to obtain panels directly from foreign suppliers to the detriment of local suppliers. 

The segmentation of local production depending on the use of thermo-insulating panels shows a 

balance between the wall panels and roof panels. Thus, in 2006, wall thermo-insulating panels 

accounted for 44% of local production, while roof panels accounted for the remaining 56%. 

At the same time, the first five local producers contributed by 88% to the total level of local 

production of approximately 1.65 million square meters registered in 2006. We should notice 

that, although the local production capacities substantially increased as compared to 2005 (from 

1.15 million square meters), the level of local production could not reach the total growth pace 

of the thermo-insulating panels market. The increasing deficit was covered by imports, which 

thus increased their weight in the total market value. 
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In 2006, local production was 60% dominated by thermo-insulating panels with polyurethane 

foam core, while panels with polystyrene core held approximately 38% of the total. Only 2% of 

the volume of local production was represented by thermo-insulating panels with mineral wool 

core. More than that, in total market consumption, panels with polyurethane foam core was used 

in 67% of constructions of plants and warehouses, while the ones with mineral wool core and 

the simple ones of folded plate contributed by 9% and 14% respectively. 

While the average number of works per construction company in 2006 was of 10.95, the 

annually average consumption of thermo-insulating panels per work was of 10,161 square 

meters. At the same time, the necessary thermo-insulating panels estimated by constructors for 

building 1,000 square meters of plant is of 615 square meters of wall panels and 1.020 square 

meters of roof panels, considering that the weight of a panel per square meter is of 

approximately 11 kilograms. 

 

At the same time, according to the study carried out by Neomar Consulting, the segmentation of 

the thermo-insulating panels market depending on the type of works showed that, in 2006, the 

main use was for various types of plants (production, storage or other types), accounting for 

93% of total consumption. 

 

In conclusion, as the Romanian market clearly chose the solution of thermo-insulating panels, 

the insufficient local production capacities led to spectacular increases of the imports of this 

type of construction materials. Still, thermo-insulating panels are products with a small value 

per unit volume, which makes the transport expense, grow rapidly as the transport distance is 

higher. This allows local producers to obtain margins higher than the ones of foreign producers, 

while the final prices are lower than the ones of imported products. 
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DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER’S ACTIVITY 

Short history 

 

Teraplast S.A. Bistrita was set up in 1990 by taking over the activities carried out by the 

Construction Materials Plant Bistrita; a state enterprise was set-up in 1977 that used to produce 

PVC profiles and tubes. In addition, this plant also included a unit producing terracotta tiles, the 

legal successor of a private workshop organized at Bistrita in 1896, its object of activity being 

hand made ceramic products. 

Therefore, Teraplast S.A. Bistrita currently has an experience of over three decades in the field 

of processing plastic materials and of 110 years in making terra-cotta tiles. In 1992, in order to 

enter foreign markets by adopting advanced production technologies, Teraplast concluded a 

strategic partnership with the Hungarian company with a similar object of activity, Gemenc 

Plast Rt, forming the mixed Romanian-Hungarian company Teraplast GP. In 1995, the company 

Teraplast GP privatized its entire capital. 

In association with the company Rompetrol S.A., as well as with the French companies Gaz de 

France and Socomo–Socotub, in 1994 Teraplast GP set-up the mixed company Politub S.R.L., 

specialized in producing and distributing polyethylene pipes for the installations supplying 

drinkable water and natural gas. Each shareholder had a 25% share in the company. During the 

same year, Teraplast GP, as main shareholder, with a participation of 17.9%  on one side, 

together with other individuals, set up the company Plastsistem S.A., its main object of activity 

being the production of injected products and PVC joinery and the trade of products 

complementary to the product range of Teraplast GP. 

In 1995, the Hungarian partner Gemenc Plast Rt was taken over by the British company Marley, 

which, in its turn, was taken over by the multinational group Etex in 1999. In the following 

years, Etex group was split in two companies, Etex and Aliaxis, corresponding to the two main 

lines of activity – roves and panels, namely tubes and cables. Thus, Aliaxis, world’s leader in 

the production and distribution of pipes and tubes, present in 88 countries and having a portfolio 

of more than 250,000 products is one of the shareholders of Teraplast S.A. Bistrita, offering the 

Issuer the advantage of belonging to an international group with an extended experience in the 

field. 

In 2006, Gaz de France assigned its shares to Socotub, and the company Socomo-Socotub 

became Socotub. In 1999, Teraplast GP took over Rompetrol S.A. stake in Politub S.R.L., thus 

becoming the main shareholder with a participation of 50%, together with the French partners 

Socotub. At the end of 2006, Teraplast S.A. became major shareholder with a stake of 67% of 

the company Plastsistem S.A., which was subsequently reorganized so as to produce thermo-

insulating panels with polyurethane foam core. 

In this way, the company Teraplast S.A., together with Politub S.R.L. and Plastsistem S.A. 

formed the basis of Teraplast Group, the main PVC processor in Romania according to the 

Issuer’s estimates. Thus, Teraplast Group is currently able to provide to the construction 

materials market modern, efficient and innovative constructive solutions such as drainage, 
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sewerage and supply systems, interior design systems, thermo-insulating joinery systems or 

systems with outside closure with thermo-insulating panels. 

 

Product range 

 

With an impressive tradition of thirty years of processing plastic materials and of more than one 

hundred years in producing terra-cotta tiles, at present Teraplast designs, produces and trades a 

diversified product range, structured in terms of functional categories such as: 

1. plastic tube systems; 

2. PVC extruded profiles; 

3. thermo-insulating joinery systems; 

4. thermo-insulating panels sandwich types; 

5. terracotta heating systems; 

6. PVC semi-finished products; 

7. Other complementary products. 

Plastic tube systems 

 
With respect to plastic tubes systems, the Issuer seeks to offer high quality and reliable products 

to its customers. For this purpose, it promotes the concept of integrated solution pipe-fitting 

according to which the customers are recommended a tube system already coupled, only 

together with the joint (also called fitting - which can be a bent pipe, branch, reduction joint, 

bung, couple or bucket). Moreover, in order to offer an extended product range, Teraplast Group 

completes its portfolio with the types of pipes and fittings for which own production would be 

economically inefficient. In this way, the category of tube systems includes the following types 

of products: 

 

� PVC pipes and fittings for drainage and sewerage systems, drilling, drainage and 

insulation of electric and telecommunication cable networks; 

� Pressure pipes and fitting of PP, PP–H and PP–R for the transport and distribution of 

drinkable water, industrial fluids and hot water; 

� PP pipes and fittings for inside sewerage systems; 

� Multi-layer tubes of PEX–AL and fittings with compression and jewel setting for the 

distribution of cold and hot water and heating systems; 

� PE pressure pipes for the transport and distribution of drinkable water and gas and 

protection of telecommunication cables; 
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� Chambers, chamber caps and other accessories for outside sewerage systems; 

� Protection PVC tubes for inside and buried in the ground electric installations systems, 

as well as frilled flexible tubes. 

Extruded PVC profiles 

 

The category of PVC extruded profiles comprises both profiles for thermo-insulating joinery, as 
well as industrial profiles for inside or outside designs. In case of profiles for thermo-insulating 
joinery, the Issuer anticipated correctly the customers’ trend for sophistication and, from the 
beginning, it chose to produce five-chamber profiles (with five insulation rooms) part of the 
premium products segment. With respect to the segment of profiles for interior or exterior 

design, it includes the following products: 
� Wainscots; 

� Folding doors; 

� Partition walls; 

� Profiles for rolling shutters; 

� Membranes for insulations; 

� Folded profiles for roofs; 

� Gutters for cable protection; 

� Special extruded profiles (ledges and angles). 

Thermo-insulating joinery systems 

 
The category of thermo-insulating joinery systems mainly includes five-chamber PVC profiles. 

At the same time, the Group has the necessary equipment for producing thermo-insulating 

windows so that, for producing the windows with PVC thermo-insulating joinery, only the 

metal joinery are acquired from specialized producers. Moreover, in order to respond to special 

requests, the Issuer also produces aluminium profile joinery systems, as complementary 

products. Thus, this category includes the following types of products: 

� Thermo-insulating window systems Orizont 5000 with  five chambers PVC profiles;  

� Thermo-insulating windows systems with aluminium profiles; 

� Inside and outside door systems with thermo-insulating glass; 

� Thermo-insulating glass. 

 

Thermo-insulating panels sandwich type 

 

The category of thermo-insulating panel’s sandwich type comprises panels with a polyurethane 

foam core used for producing exterior closures for large constructions, like: 
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� Wall panels, with thicknesses ranging between 30 and 100 mm, 1,000 wide and with 

variable lengths; 

� Roof panels, with thicknesses ranging between 40 and 100 mm, 1,000 wide and with 

variable lengths. 

Terracotta heating systems 

 
Terracotta heating systems consist in products such as terracotta tiles, stoves and fireplaces. 

Moreover, the Group also trades accessories for the assembly of terracotta stoves. 

 

PVC semi-finished products 
 

This category includes PVC granules for the processing companies producing electrical 

insulating tubes, electric cables and accessories. Depending on the finished product, PVC 

granules may be rigid, semi-plasticized or plasticized and may have various colours. 

 

Other complementary products 

 

Other complementary products are metallic confections in the form of structures for plants, 

electrical systems, fittings, cables, gutters, wainscots, electrical insulations or shoe soles. 

 

Investments carried out in the last 3 years 

 

Considering the spectacular positive evolution of the Romanian constructions sector, the Issuer 

identified and seized the opportunity generated by the increased demand on the constructions 

materials market and, during 2004-2006, it carried out an investment program exceeding EUR 8 

million for expanding its production capacities, diversifying the product portfolio and 

optimizing internal processes.  

Thus, the total amount invested by the Issuer in 2004 was of EUR 2,562,733 out of which the 

most important investment, of EUR 1,589,043, initiated in 2003 and completed in 2006, was the 

commissioning of the Windows Plant Orizont Bistrita. Other important investments, of EUR 

90,000 were made in connection to the production capacities of PVC granules and fittings. In 

the same year, in order to optimize internal processed and develop the research and 

development activity, the Research Center was inaugurated, for which an investment of EUR 

136,000 was made, out of which EUR 20,000 came from a subsidy granted by the Romanian 

government. Moreover, in 2004 the Issuer acquired the first licenses for the integrated software 

SAP, the total amount invested being of EUR 300,000. 
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In 2005, the total investments amounted to EUR 2,532,804. In order to respond to the increasing 

demand on the market, the Issuer allocated important investments both for the installation of 

new production capacities for PVC and PP products, as well as for the expansion of the existing 

storage areas. For this purpose, the production capacity of PVC profiles was extended following 

the acquisition of 3 new technological lines with a total value of EUR 1,256,990. EUR 359,100 

were invested in the production of PP pipes for putting in function  of a new plant, acquisition 

of an extrusion line and the refurbishment of the related storage area. In order for the products to 

comply with the existing quality standards and certification, the Company’s laboratory and 

research centre are certified by RENAR and benefited from a total investment of EUR 40,000 

by means of a governmental project, used for acquiring new measurement and testing 

equipment. 

The investments carried out in 2006 totalled EUR 2,975,579. In order to consolidate its position 

on the relevant markets, the company decided to integrate the distribution. Thus, in 2006, four 

warehouses located in Constanta, Galati, Iasi and Oradea was taken over from Plastsistem, with 

an approximate value of EUR 1,292,500. Additional investments of approximately EUR 

459,215 were made in technical equipment for the production of PVC and PP pipes and fittings, 

profiles and joinery in the plants located in Bistrita. As the production volume increased 

significantly as compared to the previous years, the company arranged a new warehouse for 

fittings, in which it invested approximately EUR 309,978 and extended the SAP information 

systems by acquiring new licenses and a server amounting to approximately EUR  82,793. 

 

Investment plan of the Group 

Investments plan proposed for 2008-2013 

Teraplast Group proposed for the next five years an investments plan with a total value of 

approximately EUR 56.4 millions, with a higher weight in 2008 (44% of the total investments 

planned) and in 2009 (19% of the total investments planned). This includes building the new 

factory in Saratel Industrial Park, acquisition of equipments and production lines in order to 

extend the production capacity and also starting the production of sewage chambers, corrugate 

PP pipes and fittings for the diversification of the products produced. 

Investments plan for 2008 aims the developing of production capacity in the new industrial park 

Saratel which will concentrate most of the Group’s activities in order to achieve the synergy 

generated by the optimal use of the new location’s facilities (infrastructure, depositary space, 

handling operators) 

In accordance with the schedule for the period 2008-2013, the Group planned the next 

investments: 
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 S.C. Teraplast SA
Estimated Cost EUR 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 TOTAL

PVC Pipes Plant 6,954,119 804,500 0 0 0 940,000 8,698,619

Construction of new 

plant 3,888,319 0 0 0 0 0 3,888,319

New production lines 1,520,300 804,500 0 0 0 0 2,324,800

Other equipment and  

installations for PVC 

Pipe Plant 1,545,500 0 0 0 0 940,000 2,485,500

PP Pipes Plant 5,833,581 1,004,500 2,496,000 1,884,000 350,000 0 11,568,081

Construction of new 

plant 2,868,216 0 0 0 0 0 2,868,216

New production lines 2,935,365 1,004,500 2,496,000 1,884,000 0 0 8,319,865

Other equipment and  

installations for PP Pipe 

Plant 30,000 0 0 0 350,000 0 380,000

Fittings Plant 1,903,044 1,992,500 1,000,000 1,906,000 1,100,000 1,906,000 9,807,544

Construction of new 

sewage chambers 

workshop 125,000 73,500 280,000 0 0 0 478,500

Equipment and moulds 1,778,044 1,919,000 720,000 1,906,000 1,100,000 1,906,000 9,329,044

PVC Profiles Plant 1,410,100 780,300 1,100,000 200,000 500,000 200,000 4,190,400

Extrusion lines 454,000 0 700,000 0 0 0 1,154,000

Other equipment and  

installations for PVC 

Profiles Plant 956,100 780,300 400,000 200,000 500,000 200,000 3,036,400

PVC Granules Plant 502,500 0 0 0 0 0 502,500

New production lines 502,500 0 0 0 0 0 502,500

Logistics 4,452,240 3,723,780 3,985,500 1,346,400 1,050,400 206,400 14,764,720

Warehouses 4,240,000 3,210,000 3,180,000 790,000 760,000 0 12,180,000

Other logistic equipment 212,240 513,780 805,500 556,400 290,400 206,400 2,584,720

Windows Plant 30,000 25,000 0 0 0 0 55,000

Various equipment 30,000 25,000 0 0 0 0 55,000

Other equipment 165,000 0 0 0 0 0 165,000

Communication 14,000 0 0 0 0 0 14,000

Administrative equipment 1,585,600 0 0 0 0 0 1,585,600

Construction of new 

office building 1,000,000 0 0 0 0 0 1,000,000

Other administrative equipment 585,600 0 0 0 0 0 585,600

Total 22,850,184 8,330,580 8,581,500 5,336,400 3,000,400 3,252,400 51,351,464

Source: Management Reports  
 

 S.C. Politub SRL
Estimated Cost EUR 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 TOTAL

PE Pipes Plant

Relocation and 

construction of new 

office building 890,000 0 0 0 0 0 890,000

Warehouses 0 0 0 95,000 0 0 95,000

Equipment 210,000 485,000 0 350,000 0 250,000 1,295,000

Total 1,100,000 485,000 0 445,000 0 250,000 2,280,000

Source: Management Reports  
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 S.C. Plastsistem SA

Estimated Cost EUR 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 TOTAL

Thermo-insulating Panels Plant 647,790 2,010,000 0 0 0 0 2,657,790

Expansion of Production Area 0 230,000 0 0 0 0 230,000

Various equipments 

and installations 227,790 0 0 0 0 0 227,790

New Production Line 420,000 1,780,000 0 0 0 0 2,200,000

Iron Joinery 124,800 0 0 0 0 0 124,800

Various equipments 

and installations 124,800 0 0 0 0 0 124,800

IT&Marketing 22,311 0 0 0 0 0 22,311

Other Investments 5,800 0 0 0 0 0 5,800

Total 800,701 2,010,000 0 0 0 0 2,810,701

Source: Management Reports  
 

The estimated production capacity of the new production line of thermo-insulating panels is of 

approximately 1.500.000 sqm/year/3 shifts/. 

The estimated production capacity of the new production equipment for PE pipes will be 9.500 

tons/year. 

The production capacity for corrugated pipes in 2008 is estimated at 3.000 tons/year and by 

2010 the intention is to double this capacity by adding a new production line. 

The sewage chambers production will start in 2008 by putting in function a production line with 

a capacity of 1.400 tons/year. By 2010, the production capacity is expected to be double by 

using an additional production line. 

The Issuer intends to cover the financial needs for its investment plan with the amount obtained 

from the Offer and also by contracting new loans. 

New products that will be launched in 2008 

 

Sewage chambers are component parts of the external sewage systems. In accordance with the 
construction legislation, at each 50 meters of sewage external network a sewage chambers must 
be placed. Compared with the concrete ones, frequently used till today, PVC and PP sewage 
chambers have the advantage of a reduced weight which facilities the mounting. 
 
Corrugated pipes extend the types of larger diameter pipes. They have increased rigidity but 

they can replace with success the concrete tubing used in exterior sewage systems. Technical 
parameters of these products are agreed with European legislation in this regard. 
 

PVC fittings complete the types of PP fittings produced, have larger diameters and are used as 
links in the exterior sewage systems.  

 

Machinery and Equipment 

 

Teraplast Group investment philosophy aims at continuously improving productivity and 

quality by assuring an efficient production base. Thus, following the investments made in the 

last three years, most of the equipment that the Issuer currently has are new and include state of 

the art technologies, while the ones installed before were modernized and revamped. This 

approach allows the production at the European Union quality standards while the personnel 
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and maintenance expenses are low. The high automation of the production technological lines 

allows the permanent monitoring of the functioning parameters so that, in case a technical 

problem occurs, the operators are warned in real time by system computers. The maintenance 

operations are scheduled for lower activity periods (December – February), when the production 

lines are switched off for approximately two weeks. The current repairs of production 

equipment are carried out in house, while the spare parts and consumables are delivered based 

on the warranty and post-warranty agreements. In such cases, the buffer stock of finished goods 

assures the continuous delivery to the customers. 

The Construction Materials Plant Bistrita started the production of plastic materials back in 

1977, so that the plant for PVC profiles and granules is one of the first functional productive 

entities taken over and modernized by Teraplast S.A. in the following years, the production 

activity increased constantly both in terms of volumes and product range. Thus, in 2000, the 

PVC main plant started its activity, and in 2004 the plant for thermo-insulating joinery Orizont 

Bistrita was put in function. In 2006 the production of PP pipes and fittings was initiated. At 

present, Teraplast Group carries out its main production activities through production entities 

relatively separate in terms of location, such as: 

• PVC pipes plant; 

• PP pipes and fittings plant; 

• PVC profiles and granules plant; 

• Glass and thermo-insulating joinery plants; 

• Terracotta plant; 

• PE pipes plant; 

• Thermo-insulating panels sandwich type plant. 

 

PVC pipes plant 

The PVC pipes plant is a productive unit belonging to Teraplast S.A. and includes two dosing-

mixing lines with an annually production capacity of 21.054 tons of PVC slurry and four tube 

extrusion lines with an annually production capacity of 11.322 tons of PVC pipes, with a 

diameter range between 12 and 400 mm. Most of the production equipments are Austrian and 

were acquired and installed during the period 1996 – 2006. The usage degree determined by the 

effective production of PVC pipes carried out in 2006 was of 82%, whereas the maximum limit 

stated in the technical specifications of the equipment for the extrusion of plastic pipes is of 70 – 

80% in general. The high degree of adjusting the production capacities depending on the 

seasonality during activity peaks (May-October) allows the production to increase by up to 

41%, with a working schedule of 7 days a week, 3 shifts of 8 hours per day. 

Through a computer assisted automated system, the main raw material – polymerised vinyl 

chloride is mixed with stabilizers, lubricants, auxiliary materials, changers and colours in 

various proportions depending on the type and dimension of the finished product. The final 

mixture is stored in warehouses that supply the dosing-mixing line and is homogenized and 

plasticized using the extruder and co-extruder. The material thus obtained is taken over and 

shaped in the mould modelling the finished products. After the fixing and gradual calibration by 
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cooling and exhaustion, the finished products are marked. The last stage of the production 

process is the cutting, attaching a joint and transporting the finished products in the end area, 

where they are taken over by operators to be packed manually. 

PP pipes and fittings plant 

The PP pipes and fittings plant is a productive entity of Teraplast S.A.. It contains two extrusion 

lines with a yearly production capacity of 1,224 tons of PP pipes. The production of 

polypropylene pipe completes the usage of PVC pipes for uses at temperatures of maximum 

95ºC and pressures of maximum 25 bars. The production equipments were produced in 

Germany and were put in function in 1999 and 2005. The usage level determined by the 

effective production of PP pipes in 2006 was of 71%, within the maximum range recommended 

by the technical specifications of the equipment. 

The automated production system is also used for producing this type of products. The 

polypropylene granules and the colour are dosed and mixed for plasticization, by melting and 

transforming them in tubes with the help of the extrusion lines. The finished product, in the 

desired form and size, is obtained by cooling the melted mixture, previously shaped with the 

help of the mould. The product completion stages consist in marking, cutting and attaching the 

joint. The final packaging stage is done manually, similarly to the product categories mentioned 

above. The fittings production process is similar with the pipes ones, except that, due to the high 

number of finished goods types produced, the plasticized mixture is introduced in various 

moulds also containing marking elements. 

PVC profiles and granules plant 

The PVC profiles and granules plant is a productive entity of Teraplast S.A.. It includes 12 

extrusion lines with a yearly capacity of 7,864 tons of PVC profiles and five graining machines 

with a yearly maximum capacity of 14,688 tons of PVC granules. The equipments were 

produced in Italy, Germany and Poland and were acquired and installed in the period 1996-

2006. The usage degree determined by the effective production of PVC profiles obtained in 

2006 was of 59%, whereas the maximum limit set the by technical specifications of the 

equipment for the extrusion of plastic pipes ranges between 50 – 60%. On the other side, for a 

maximum limit of 100% stated by the technical specifications for graining machines, their 

usage degree in 2006 was of 79%. 

In order to produce the thermo-insulating joinery systems, Teraplast Group exclusively 

produces five-chamber PVC profiles. With respect to the profiles produced for interior and 

exterior arrangements, the range of equipments and moulds allows the manufacturing of various 

products from decorative glass thin rods and profiles for wainscots to folded profiles for roofs. 

PVC profiles are obtained as a result of a production process similar to the one for the 

production of PVC tubes, the raw material being extruded with the help of the automated 

system in profiles that are subsequently calibrated through gradual exhaustion and cooling. 

After that, for obtaining the final sizes, the manual operator measures and decided the cutting 

length. With the help of a swinging device, the profiles thus dimensioned are brought to the 

final stage of manual packaging. 
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Depending on the recipe, we can obtain plasticized (used in cable insulation), semi-plasticized 

(for producing shoe soles) or rigid (for tubes) PVC granules. The main raw material is mixed 

with stabilizers, calcium carbonate, lubricants and colours dosed with the help of an automated 

dosing-mixing line. The mixture thus obtained is homogenized, processed in leak free bins and 

transferred to graining machines. Inside them the mixture is plasticized, homogenized and 

extruded in the form of wires. After that the cutting equipment supplies the finished product – 

the granules, which are packed in bags of various capacities. 

Glass and thermo-insulating joinery plant 

The plant producing the thermo-insulating joinery systems is a productive entity of Teraplast 

S.A.. It is equipped with a line producing thermo-insulating glass with an annually production 

capacity of 122,400 square meters, as well as line of thermo-insulating confections with a yearly 

production capacity of 103,428 square meters. The production equipments are made in Germany 

and were commissioned in 2004 and 2006. The production of thermo-insulating glass is carried 

out in two shifts of 8 hours per day, 255 days a year. For the production of thermo-insulating 

joinery five-chambers PVC profiles, thermo-insulating glass and metal joinery are used. Out of 

these, the main component purchased from specialized suppliers is the metal joinery, the five-

chamber PVC profiles and the thermo-insulating glass being produced by Teraplast S.A. 

In case of production of thermo-insulating glass, the laminated glass foil is automatically taken 

over in the production line and cut as per the desired size, while, on a parallel line, the distance 

frames are automatically formed from the aluminium baguette. Subsequently, an absorbing 

substance is introduced in the aluminium frame, and a butyl layer is applied on the glass foil for 

sealing and sticking. The assembly of the thermo-insulating glass is made by transporting the 

glass sheets, automatically, to the plant assembling the distance frame. This enters the 

assembly-pressure machine where the passive gas is inserted and the sealing material is applied 

on the entire window. After that the thermo-insulating glass is stored in racks. 

The process of producing thermo-insulating systems with PVC profiles is semi-automated. It 

consists in the manual feeding of the production lines with PVC profiles and metal joinery and 

the equipment assembles them accordingly. Depending on the final destination, the frames are 

stored as finished products. The thermo-insulating glass is assembled manually, with the help of 

fixing bars, after which they are delivered as thermo-insulating finished products (doors and 

windows). 

Terracotta plant 

The plant for terracotta tiles, stoves and fireplaces is one of the first productive entities of 

Teraplast S.A.. It is equipped with a preparation-pressure-finishing-drying line with an annually 

production capacity of 3,250 thousand equivalent units and two burning furnaces commissioned 

in 1983 and 2000, with a total annually burning capacity of 2,668 thousand equivalent units. 

The effective production of terracotta in 2006 indicates that the furnaces’ burning degree was of 

97%. Depending on the orders received, the furnaces burning the terracotta tiles function both 

for a certain period, in a shift of 8 hours a day, as well as continuously, 3 shifts of 8 hours per 

day, 255 days a year. 
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The production process of terracotta tiles is mainly traditional. The terracotta tiles are the result 

of a technological process during which the basic mass is prepared through grinding, consisting 

in a mixture of heat-proof clay, sand, argil, ceramic frits, colours and pigments. Through 

moisturizing, this mixture forms a paste that, following drying, is transformed in bars. After 

drying, the bars are processed and a glazing is applied. The most important stage of the 

production process is the tile burning in the two furnaces (a micro-tunnel furnace functioning 

continuously and a furnace functioning during a limited period). The finished products thus 

resulted are sorted in separate quality categories. 

PE pipes plant 

The PE pipes plant is the productive entity of Politub S.R.L.. It has three production lines made 

in Germany with a yearly production capacity of 8,000 tons. The production line is computer 

assisted during the entire production process and is equipped with ultra-sound equipment 

permanently measuring the wall thickness over the entire pipe length. The extrusion lines are 

connected to automated additional installation for drying the granules and cooling the 

technological water. Moreover, there is a testing laboratory, equipped with information systems 

equipment that assures a permanent control over the quality of raw materials and finished 

products. 

The production process is similar to the one of PVC and PP pipes. Thus, the raw materials in the 

form of polyethylene granules are absorbed from the silos through the vacuum created by the 

automatic supply pumps and transported to the extruders’ supply funnels. The melted material 

goes from the mould to the shaping machine which shapes the pipe. This goes through the 

calibration baths where it is cooled in stages by sprinkling and reaches the marking machine that 

writes the specific identification data. Subsequently, the pipe enters the circular cutting device 

that, according to the prior settings, cuts the pipe according to the desired length. In the end, the 

pipes are taking over and packed with protection caps at the ends and labelled accordingly for 

the delivery. 

Thermo-insulating panels sandwich type plant 

The production of thermo-insulating panels with polyurethane foam core started in August 2007 

at Plastsistem S.A. by putting in function an automated line made in Italy, with a yearly 

production capacity ranging between 1-1.5 million square meters depending on the type and 

size of the finished product. Although recently started, the production of thermo-insulating 

panels with polyurethane foam core is currently carried out in 2 shifts of 8 hours per day. 

For producing thermo-insulating panels, the raw materials used are the zinc plated sheet for the 

panel’s sides, as well as an aggregate of five chemical compounds (isocyanate, polyol, additive, 

catalyst and pentane) which make the polyurethane foam. The production line is fully automated 

and is formed of plate processing installations (assuring plate unfolding and processing until 

obtaining two profiles in the shape desired for the panel), installations for obtaining 

polyurethane foil and the production of thermo-insulating panels. Moreover, the line is equipped 

with two installations for handling, storing and packaging of finished products. The installations 

making the polyurethane foam have the role of pre-heating the plate foils and dosing and 

homogenizing the mixture of chemical compounds. This is uniformly spread on the inside area 
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of one of the plate foils and, due to the heat, it expands between the two sides of the panel, 

forming the polyurethane foam core. In the end, the thermo-insulating panel is cut according to 

the length set and transported to the warehouse. 

Sources of raw materials 

 
The main raw materials used by Teraplast Group for production activities are PVC suspension, 

polypropylene granules, polyethylene granules, folded plate and chemical compounds for 

polyurethane foam. The Issuer’s policy regarding the supply with raw materials is to conclude 

strategic partnerships with local or regional suppliers, with the capacity to deliver the required 

quantities in time and at international quality standards. Moreover, through its policy, the Group 

seeks for the optimum relation between the diversification of the suppliers portfolio and the 

control of raw materials costs. 

The PVC slurry is the main raw materials for producing tubes and profiles. At present, Teraplast 

Group does not have hedging strategies in order to cover the possible volatility in PVC price. 

Following the price methodology included in the frame agreement concluded between parties, 

approximately 97% of the production needs of Teraplast Group are secured by the local 

producer Oltchim S.A. At the same time, the Issuer purchases PVC from an alternative source, 

namely the regional supplier BorsodChem Rt Hungary. Being part of a buyer consortium 

together with Aliaxis and other affiliated companies in Europe, in 2007 the issuer concluded a 

contract for PVC supply with monthly deliveries with BorsodChem Rt Jungary. 

Polypropylene in the form of granules is the main raw material for tubes and is provided by 

Rompetrol Petrochemicals Constanta, a strategic partner of the Issuer within the last years. At 

the same time, Teraplast Group has alternative production sources such as the producers 

Borealis AG and Tisza Chemical Group Public Limited Company (TVK). The polyethylene in 

the form of granules is mainly imported from Hungary, Austria, Belgium and the Netherlands, 

the main suppliers being Plastrans Petrochemicals GmbH, Belucon N.V., Ineos Group and 

Sabic Europe B.V., assuring more than 70% of the production needs of Politub S.R.L. 

For the production of thermo-insulating joinery, the metal fittings are acquired from the 

specialized German producer ROTOX. Zinc plated sheet and the chemical compounds used for 

obtaining the polyurethane foam are the main raw materials for the production of thermo-

insulating panels sandwich type. Out of them, 80% of the zinc plated sheet is acquired from the 

producers Mittal Steel Poland and Ferrum International Taiwan, while the chemical compounds 

are supplied by the producers Huntsman Polyurethanes Netherlands and Mol Hungary. 

 

Distribution and sale 

 

Teraplast Group created a system of sales based on a network of own warehouses located in the 

key cities of the country, while the distribution is assured by the partners in the entire country. 

In addition to covering the internal market, Teraplast Group exports both to Central and Eastern 

Europe, as well as to Western Europe. 

Considering that Teraplast Group is active on the construction materials market, the seasonality 

is an essential factor in the monthly evolution of sales. Moreover, the sales also fluctuate in 
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close connection to the level of the general activity in the constructions sector. The analysis of 

the monthly sales in 2006 show that the peak period is of approximately 6 months and includes 

the summer and autumn, especially August, September and October. The most reduced activity 

in registered during the winter, mainly in January and February. 

 

 

In 2006, the sales structure in terms of regions showed that the main market of Teraplast Group 

is Ardeal region, accounting for 47% of total sales, followed by Bucharest and Oltenia–Banat 

regions with 12%. At the same time, 11% of the sales go to Moldova. In order to assure an 

efficient coverage of these regions, Teraplast Group has a fleet of 64 vehicles and developed a 

system of sales based on its own logistic centres with medium and large areas, such as: 

• Bistrita – logistic centre with an area of 20,000 square meters; 

• Brasov – logistic centre with an area of 11,400 square meters; 

• Bucuresti – logistic centre with an area of 5,300 square meters; 

• Galati – logistic centre with an area of 5,000 square meters; 

• Oradea – logistic centre with an area of 3,000 square meters; 

• Constanta – logistic centre with an area of 2,000 square meters; 

• Iasi – logistic centre with an area of 1,800 square meters. 

 

The distribution policy of Teraplast Group is mainly aimed as specialized customers in the field 

of instllations and constructions, and the distribution channels are according to that: 

• Sales though partners; 
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• Sales through standard contracts; 

• Sales to processing customers; 

• Sales through contracts – tenders; 

• Sales through export contracts; 

• Direct sales to occasional customers. 

 
The Issuer has built-up a strong and diversified distribution system, as shown in the table below. 

 

 
 
 

Sales though partners 

 

With a weight of 31% in total sales in the first six months of 2007, this channel continues to be 

a key component of the Issuer’s distribution strategy. In its opinion, partners are defined as large 

customers that concluded distribution contracts for monthly sales of minimum RON 50,000. 

Depending on the activity carried out, these may be divided in two categories: 

• Specialized retail chains with national coverage and own warehouses such as 

Practiker, Dedeman, Ambient, Arabesque or Baumax, with the role of assuring the 
permanent and in real time availability of the products provided by Teraplast 

Group. In 2006, the sales through specialized retail chains represented 
approximately 11% of the total sales of Teraplast Group. At the same time, the most 
important retail chain had a weight of approximately 2% of the Group’s sales; 

• Specialized companies in the field of constructions and construction materials with 
the role of authorized distributors, offering regional or national coverage. Moreover, 
this distribution channel contributes to the increase of the Group’s visibility by 

addressing directly the end customer. In the first half of 2007, the most important 
specialized customer in the constructions field held a weight of 4% of the Group’s 
sales. 

 
The main objectives of the partnership with distributors is to assure a minimum monthly level of 

acquisitions, to promote Teraplast products and brand, as well as the permanent contact with the 

market by monitoring the period during which the products are kept in the warehouse or on the 
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shelf. In this way, the partner offers Teraplast Group essential information on the market and 

product evolution, which is subsequently used for the corresponding production adjustments. 

Depending on the groups of products distributed, the Issuer applies a unitary discount policy for 

its partners, granted depending on the volumes sold yearly or quarterly, joint publicity and 

advertising and payment of invoices in time. 

 

Sales through standard contracts 

 

With the current distribution and sale policy, the Issuer aims to permanently balance the 

customer portfolio and limit the risk of dependence on a reduced number of large customers. In 

this respect, the weight of standard contracts in the Group’s total sales increased constantly to a 

level comparable to the one registered by the contracts for distribution through partners. Thus, 

in the first six months of 2007, the sales through standards contracts represented 28% of the 

Issuer’s total sales. This corresponds to more than 2,600 standard contracts concluded in the 

first six months of 2007. 

Standard contracts are concluded with customers making monthly acquisitions of minimum 

RON 5,000 and contain a special price appendix referring to a certain work and are valid over a 

limited period. These customers are mainly local installation and construction companies. 

 

Sales through contracts with processing customers 

 

In the first six months of 2007, this segment accounted for 15% of the Issuer’s total sales. It is 

represented by producing companies using the production process the PVC granules produced 

by Teraplast S.A. as raw material. The most important processing customers of Teraplast Group 

are important companies such as Iproeb S.A.  Bistrita, Electroplast S.A., Romcab S.A. Targu 

Mures or RCB 97 S.A. Bistrita. At the end of 2006, there were approximately 50 contracts 

concluded with processing customers, the most important customer holding a share of up to 6% 

of the sales of Teraplast Group. 

 

Sales through contracts – tenders 

 

The Issuer concludes supply contracts with the entrepreneurs participating in tenders for 

construction works and, depending on their activity, the price and delivery terms are adjusted to 

the tendered work. Each contract is concluded over a limited period and contains an appendix 

with the prices negotiated according to the volume of delivered products. In the first semester of 

2007, the weight of this channel in the Issuer’s total sales was of 16%. Whereas the increase of 

the amounts allocated from the state budget and through structural funds for financing the works 

for the improvement of drinkable water and sewerage infrastructure, the weight of tender 

contracts becomes an important part of the business carried out by Teraplast Group. 
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The customers included in this category are utilities providers – autonomous water, sewerage 

and gas companies, as well as many construction companies. Until now Teraplast Group has 

concluded tender contracts with ApaNova Bucuresti (sewerage of Bucharest), Hidroconstructia 

S.A. Bucuresti (sewerage of Craiova), Sade France C.G.T.H. (sewerage of Cluj–Napoca), 

Distrigaz Sud S.A., R.A.J.A. AquaBis (Regia Autonoma de distributie a apei Bistrita), Grup 4 

Instalatii S.A. Cluj (sewerage of Turnu Rosu), Scamoter S.A. Italy (sewerage of Focsani).  

In the first semester of 2007, there were 212 tender contracts. During the same period the most 

important customer of the Group amounted to approximately 1%. 

 

Sales through export contracts 

 

In the first six months of 2007, the sales through export contracts accounted for 7% of the 

Issuer’s total sales. Most of the Issuer’s export activity is carried out with the countries in the 

region such as Hungary, Republic of Moldova, Bulgaria and Serbia. Also, the Group exports its 

products to other European countries such as Italy, France, Austria, Germany, Slovenia, Czech 

Republic and Slovakia. 

 

Direct sales to occasional customers 

 

The direct sales to occasional customers consist in the spot contracts that, in the first semester of 

2007, represented 3% of the Issuer’s total sales. Their weight is decreasing as the distribution 

and sale policy of Teraplast Group is focused on partner customers and standard contracts. As 

of the end of 2006, Teraplast Group concluded 86 export contracts, up by almost 32% as 

compared to the previous year. 

 

Relocation of production facilities 

 

Following the gradual business development carried out during almost 18 years of activity, the 

production and storage facilities of Teraplast Group are currently placed in relatively distinct 

locations, in the built-up area of Bistrita city. This leads to operational difficulties, connected to 

current procurement, distribution and administration activities, as well as major strategic 

problems regarding the compliance with the environmental norms or limiting subsequent 

developments of the Issuer’s activities depending on the evolution of relevant markets. 

Analysing all these aspects, Teraplast Group conceived and started, in 2007, a large process of 

relocating its facilities outside Bistrita city. Thus, except for the terra-cota and the thermo-

insulating joinery plant Orizont Bistrita, all the other productive entities, including the one held 

by Politub S.R.L. are to be relocated and integrated in an industrial park. With a total designed 

area of approximately 20 hectares, this industrial park is developed at Saratel, 10 km far from 
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Bistrita city. At present, Plastsistem S.A., the producer of thermo-insulating panels with 

polyurethane foam core already carries out its activities in this location. 

Due to the relocation of the Teraplast’s and Plastsistem’s production facilities, the Issuer intends 

to free the following pieces of land located at a distance of 1.2 kilometers from the center of 

Bistrita City: 

- A land consisting of a total 22,018.5 square meters located on Zefirului Street and 

having a built area of 10,079.58 square meters which includes the production facility for 

plastics, PVC granules and others deposits. This land has access to a European road by 

Romana Street of 37 meters and having the possibility for access by Zefirului Street. 

The land has access to water, gas, electric of low and medium voltage utilities system; 

- A land consisting of a total 15,847.5 square meters located in Drumul Cetatii Street and 

having a built area of 8,826 square meters which includes the production facilities for 

PVC tubing and fittings. This land has access to city belt road of 198.5 meters and 

direct access to the railroad. The land has access to the water, gas, electric of low and 

medium voltage utilities system; 

- A land consisting of a total 11,035 square meters located in Drumul Cetatii Street 

having a built area of 200 square meters which includes the PVC tubing deposit. This 

land has access to the city belt road of 109 meters and has access to the water, gas, 

electric of low and medium voltage utilities system; 

- A land consisting of a total 6,166 square meters located in Drumul Cetatii Street and 

having a built area of 1,880 square meters which contains an administrative building 

and two deposits owned by Plastsistem. This land has access to the city belt road of 

69.5 meters and beneficiates of access to the water, gas, electric of low and medium 

voltage utilities; 

With regard to the plots of land to be freed following the relocation, it is the Issuer’s intent to 

either sell them immediately, or to be part, as a passive partner, of a real estate project to be 

developed by a specialized developer. 

Scheduled to be completed by the end of 2008, the relocation of Teraplast Group facilities 

triggers certain major operational and strategic advantages, such as: 

• SYNERGIES: making significant scale economies by concentrating all the activities, 

from five locations within city limits, to one main location outside the city and two 

secondary locations in the city. The immediate effect are lower administrative and 

logistic costs and obtaining important efficiency gains by optimizing production flows 

and integrating the procurement and distribution activities; 

• ROOM FOR EXPANSION: as long as current locations allow no space for expansion, 

following the relocation process, the increase of production capacities can be obtained 

by acquiring state of the art machines and equipments, as well as creating the bases for 

the future development of some activity lines depending on the evolutions of the 

relevant markets; 



 

   - 118 - 

• EFFICIENT CAPEX: current locations need also infrastructure rehabilitation; 

• IMPROVED RETURN ON ASSETS (ROA): freeing a built-up land with an area of 5.5 

hectares, located 1.2 kilometres from the centre of Bistrita, with access to European 

road and adjacent road and connections to water, sewerage, gas and power systems. As 

the geographic position makes the expansion of this city difficult, this assets currently 

has a significant potential of development on the residential segment. 

At the same time, considering the specifics of the production processes described above, the 

relocation process of Issuer’s production facilities does not involve major operational risks, due 

to: 

� RELOCATION SCHEDULE: there is a detailed, day by day relocation plan for each 

production line; 

� FLEXIBILITY: highly automated and flexible production lines, depending on very few 

people allow restart of production in only one week; 

� SUPPLEMENTARY INVENTORIES: buffer inventory built-up in order to cover 

demand during off-periods, represent an additional safety net 

Besides, the Issuer estimates that, due to the automated production lines, following the 

relocation the number of employees will be increased with only 5%. 

 Issuer’s competitive advantages 

In order to comply with its strategic objective, Teraplast Group benefits from certain 

competitive advantaged such as: 

• Business size, translated in important product volumes distributed to the customers. 

This advantage leads to scale economies and assures the Issuer’s negotiation power in 

with customers and suppliers; 

• Diversity of product portfolio offered to the customers, consisting in a wide range of 

pipes, fittings and tubes for interior and exterior sewerage, transport and distribution of 

drinkable water, industrial fluids and hot water, transport and distribution of water, gas 

or protection of telecommunication cables; 

• National coverage represented by the distribution network through the logistic centres 

located in Bistrita, Bucharest, Constanta, Brasov, Galati, Iasi and Oradea. This is a 

major competitive advantage compared to its competitors, considering the weight of the 

transport cost in the products’ final cost; 

• Modern production facilities including state of the art technology that, due to the 

automated production processes, contribute to the constant maintenance of the quality 

standards and obtaining the scheduled quantities at low operating costs, consumption, 

maintenance and repairs. This allows the Issuer to increase volumes while keeping the 

margins constant; 
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• Premium quality of the products offered by the Issuer, certified according to SR EN 

ISO 9001:2000 by TUV CERT Suddeutchland for doors, windows and PVC profiles. 

Moreover, the company complies with the Total Quality Management objectives TQM. 

Teraplast Group has two laboratories authorized and certified by RENAR, endowed 

with modern equipment, where all the laboratory tests required by European standards 

are made. Moreover, starting 2003, a Research Centre was created within the group, in 

charge with the design of new products and the preparation of the documentation for 

producing own products or other products based on license. 

• Information Management System SAP, implemented by the Issuer approximately 4 

years ago, allowing due to the 8 modules of 10 installed, the monitoring of flows in real 

time and an efficient management of the company’s resources; 

• Personnel, few and well trained, out of which approximately 30% have university 

degrees, with reduced fluctuations. 

 

Issuer’s Strategy 

 
With a competitive consolidated position in its field of activity, Teraplast Group aims to become 

the largest supplier of integrated solutions and systems in the field of installations and 

constructions in Romania. The expansion of the distribution area, the continuous quality 

improvement and the portfolio enlargement by launching innovative products are the means 

considered by the Issuer for achieving the proposed strategy. At the same time, the water and 

sewerage infrastructure less developed in Romania than in other countries in the region and the 

extraordinary expansion of the local constructions market currently represent a favourable 

environment for reaching this strategic objective. 

• Presently, the Issuer activates on a market within certain hundreds of kilometres around 

the production centre. This type of market corresponds to products such as plastic 

materials tubes and thermo-insulating panels with polyurethane foam, with a small 

value per transported volume. As a consequence, for these product categories, the 

transport cost per kilogram increases fast one the distance is higher, making inefficient 

the distribution of the respective products beyond a certain distance around the 

production point; 

• On the other hand, regarding the PVC profiles for windows the Issuer activates on a 

market, located over a much larger area around the production centre. This product 

category has a high value index per transported volume. As a consequence, the transport 

cost per kilogram increases slowly with the distance, which allows the efficient 

distribution of these products even to significant distances from the production centre. 

In case of pipes and thermo-insulating panels the Issuer’s strategy is to increase or consolidate 

the market share so as to take advantage of the scale economies related to high production 

volumes and, in this way, to be able to preserve the profit margins on the long term. A strong 

presence on the relevant market also has the strategic advantage of discouraging the entrance of 

new players as it is difficult to obtain sales volumes that may justify the location of production 

capacities within the relevant market. 
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The market of plastic tubes is mostly consolidated, the Issuer being one of the market leaders. 

For this reason, the strategic objectives with respect to tubes are to develop the production 

capacity so as to face the market increase, to increase market share on certain product 

segments and to diversify the product range. On the other hand, the market of thermo-

insulating panels with polyurethane foam is dominated by imported products that have a 

substantial competitive disadvantage due to the distance versus the production point. In this 

case, the Issuer’s strategic objective is to be one of the first five players on the market of 

thermo-insulating panels, capitalizing on the cost advantage of local production. 

In case of PVC joinery profiles, the Issuer’s strategy is to integrate its own profile production 

with their processing into windows. As a consequence, the sale to joinery profiles to processing 

companies account for a small part of the production of joinery profiles, the rest being processed 

and sold as PVC joinery, with a much higher added value. 

The growth pace of the constructions and construction materials market registered in the last 

years is the key factor for Teraplast Group for developing its own distribution system that, 

through the seven local warehouses assures the real time supply of all customers and partners. 

For the following years, the Issuer intends to continue the expansion of the distribution area to 

the areas in the country where significant opportunities for economic growth were identified. At 

the same time, considering the important weight of the business carried out with the retail 

chains with national coverage and the specialized companies in the field of installations, 

constructions and construction materials, Teraplast Group aims to consolidate and develop its 

current position on this customer segment. 

This strategy can be achieved only if the productivity level is comparable with the other players 

of the industry, local and foreign. This is why the Issuer aims to keep investing in modern 

equipment that allow a productivity comparable to that of the most advanced players in the 

field. Thus, besides a uniform local presence which, in the field of installations and construction 

materials is a major competitive advantage, the experience and the critical mass are factors that 

contribute decisively to keeping the position on the market as compared to the competition 

shown by other domestic and international producers. For this purpose, Teraplast Groups wants 

to develop the production capacity together with improving operating efficiency and reducing 

the production costs by relocating the current production facilities located in Bistrita to the 

industrial park from Saratel. Started in 2007, this program also includes investments in the 

expansion and modernization of production capacities. 

Not last, selling such a diversified product range depends on the creation of a diversified 

customer base. The Issuer wished to strengthen the relations with current customers 

(distributors, large shop chains and construction companies) and to increase their number, while 

efficiently managing the maximum exposure per customer. At the same time, in order to 

respond to its customer needs, Teraplast Group completes its product portfolio with system 

components belonging to other producers. 

Thus, focusing mainly on the partnership with large specialized customers in the field of 

installations, constructions and construction materials, the Issuer launched and will develop in 

the future the concept of “system”. It represents the reorganization of the portfolio in terms of 

complementary product ranges with specialization and single purpose (drainage, sewerage, 
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supply, power installation, heating systems and windows this offering complete solutions and 

integrated systems to its customers. Moreover, Teraplast Group considers higher standards for 

products for installations, constructions and construction materials field by launching innovative 

solutions and installation and construction systems. At the same time, in order to benefit from 

certain volume discounts for the main raw materials purchased, the Issuer wants to continue to 

have a main supplier for each of the main raw materials, but also to permanently keep 

alternative supply sources. At the same time, on the longer term, the Issuer follows a prudent 

strategy, maintaining a constant and limited indebtness level, which can leave enough room for 

taking benefit from an unexpected market opportunity, or on the contrary side, for surpassing a 

liquidity crisis. 

Research and development  
 

The Issuer is a member of the Research and Development National System and is registered 
with the Registry of Potential Contractors as it owns a Research Centre. The Issuer carries out 
research-development programs financed by its own national and European funds. In the last 
three years, Issuer has spent 0.2 % of the annual turnover in research and development. 

In 2004, the Research Centre was provided with a Brabender Forger for the study of rheological 
and processing characteristics of the polymeric mixtures. Also, an amount of EUR 350,000 was 
invested in a project of modernisation of the Research Centre with an Experimental Pilot 

installation for the analysis of new/improved recipes for the PVC pressure and sewage pipe 
which will also allow the simultaneous obtainment of the experimental prototype. This new 
installation will determine increase of the quality and volume of the range of research and 

development activities and employment of a highly-qualified person. The control and research 
of the physical-mechanical characteristics of the polymers and polymeric products are mainly 

performed in cooperation with the own trial laboratory and also with external partners. 

Investment in research-development will aim at increasing the weight of the expenses incurred 
with the research and development out of the turnover. The Issuer is also preparing to obtain 
certification for its research-development activities, which will create the premises for larger 
access to programs financed from European funds. 

At present, the personnel of the Research Centre consists of two persons holding an university 
degree. The labour contracts concluded with these two employees do not contain special 

provisions with respect to the intellectual property rights related to the activity carried out 
within the Research Centre. However, according to law, in the case of inventions, if the 
employing company explicitly assigned to its employee an invention task or an object of 

research and if not provided otherwise, the invention license shall be granted to the employer for 
the inventions made by the employee either in exercising his/her duties or within the 
institution's field of activity.  

 

Intellectual property  

The Issuer used in its activity a series of assets related to intellectual property, such as 

trademarks, drawings and industrial designs aimed at protecting its name and products on its 

relevant market.  

Trademarks  

The Issuer’s trademarks portfolio includes the trademark „TP” with a figurative element, the 

trademark „Orizont”, with a figurative element and  
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"Drain System" – individual combined trademark with a figurative element representing the 

exterior sewage system and containing the following categories of products: PVC pipes and 

fittings, fireplaces, fireplaces lids and accessories. Also, the Issuer initiated the registration 

procedure for the following trademarks related to the systems created by the Company: 

• "Decor System" - individual combined trademark with a figurative element representing 

the interior finishing system and containing the following categories of products: PVC 

panels, PVC partition walls and accessories. The trademark was registered and 

published on 30 November 2007. Taking into account that no objections were made to 

this registration, the Issuer will pay the issuance tax for the trademark registration 

certificate in order to obtain it. 

• "Aqua System" - individual combined trademark with a figurative element representing 

the water supply system, and containing the following categories of products: PP-R and 

PP-H, PVC pressure and PE pipes and fittings. The trademark was registered and 

published on 30 November 2007. Taking into account that no objections were made to 

this registration, the Issuer will pay the issuance tax for the trademark registration 

certificate in order to obtain it. 

• "Clean System" - individual combined trademark with a figurative element representing 

the interior sewage system,  and containing the following categories of products: PP and 

PVC pipes and fittings for interior sewage network. The trademark was registered and 

published on 30 November 2007, and the interested parties had a 3-month term to 

oppose thereto. Taking into account that no objections were made to this registration, 

the Issuer will pay the issuance tax for the trademark registration certificate in order to 

obtain it. 

•  - the figurative trademark. The trademark was registered and published on 31 

January 2008, and the interested parties had a 3-month term to oppose thereto. 

The Company has also applied for the registration with the Romanian State Office for 

Inventions and Trademarks (OSIM) of the trademarks "Teraplast", "Totalplast" and 

"Sistemplast". Up to the present, regulated national deposits have been established for the 

trademarks with a figurative element "Teraplast" and "Totalplast". For the "Teraplast" 

trademark, the Company has received a Provisional Rejection Notification from OSIM with 

respect to which the Company has presented its point of view, which is currently being 

examined. Also, the Company was rejected temporarily to register the trademark "Sistemplast", 

due to the existence of an opposable trademark. The company replied to this rejection by 

limiting the protection of the "Sistemplast" trademark, while waiting for the OSIM decision 

regarding the approval of the trademark registration.  

Drawings and industrial designs  

The Issuer owns a number of 19 drawings and industrial designs for PVC profiles, auxiliary 

profiles and parts and stoves. In addition, the company has initiated formal actions to register 

two other industrial designs whose registration certificates are undergoing a review from OSIM.  
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Information technology 

In accordance with the Company's investment policy and in order to improve the operational 

processes and its activity, Teraplast purchased a series of "business software" licenses for the 

purpose of managing the Company's activity in a more professional manner, such as: QPR 

ScoreCard, ConnAct, Klaes Software and SAP R/3. 

SAP R/3 is a computerised program of management, economic analisys and planning which 

renders the Company competitive advantages and development of efficiency at arm's length. 

SAP R/3 allows for a competent planning both of the operations and of the material and 

financial resources. The following modules are implemented within Teraplast: Financial 

Accounting, Stock Management (including warehouse management), Sales and Distribution, 

Cost Control, Installations Maintenance, Production Planning and Quality Management. These 

modules represent modules which offer complex and efficient solutions for the development 

and improvement of the processes included in each module.  

ConnAct represent a solution built on the IBM Lotus Notes/Domino Server platform, which 

facilitates the transfer of documents inside the Company, centralises them and allows direct 

access (according to the level of security access for each user) to all the relevant information 

used within the Company. This computerised program which is provided with data base and 

intranet functions, provides for a faster communication and optimisation of the internal 

processes related to the date transfer. 

Klaes Software allows for the designing of any types of windows and facilitates the production 

operations of the Company. This program allows for the calculation of the value of the orders 

and their administration. Klaes is also used in the production process and provides an efficient 

control of the tools and optimisation of the production process. 

Real Estate Properties, Machines and Equipment  

Teraplast 

According to the Issuer's statements, as of the Prospectus date, it ownsreal estate properties 

situated in Bistrita locality, 17 A Romana St., Drumul Tarpiului, Drumul Cetatii (the ring road 

area) and 17 A Zefirului St. and also in the Iasi, Oradea, Galati, Constanta, Brasov and Otopeni 

counties with an approximate area of 115,143 sqm. On these real estate properties is located the 

terracotta plant, the PVC pipes plant, the PVC rigid profiles and plastic granules plant, the PP 

pipes and fittings plant, the glass and thermo-insulating joinery plant Orizont, various 

warehouses, fittings and hardware warehouse, the administrative pavilion and offices, studio 

blocks and offices.The names currently used by the Issuer with respect to some production units 

do not correspond to their names as registered with the land book. 

In order to fulfil the investment plan, including to relocate the production units, Teraplast has 

also purchased a number of real estate properties consisting in land with a total area of 

approximately 135,300 sqm, located at Sieu Magherus, Saratel village, Bistrita-Nasaud county, 

the Issuer also being in the process of purchasing other real estate located at the same location. 

Also, as at the Prospectus date, the Issuer had obtained a building permit for erecting a PVC 

pipes, profiles and granules plant, and certian warehouses, at the same location. 
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However, the Issuer has not yet obtained any authorisations and/or protocols of reception upon 

completion of works, final reception protocols, issued upon observance of law, with respect to 

certain warehouses.  

A part of the Issuer's land located in Bistrita locality was acquired by the Romanian state 

pursuant to issuance of certain decrees of expropriation during the communist regime and were 

owned by the Construction Materials Plant, out of which the Issuer demerged. According to the 

Romanian law in force, the former owners can recover their property rights over the real estate 

abusively taken over by the Romanian state during the communist regime in certain conditions, 

as provided under special laws. Although the period available for filing requests under these 

special laws with a view to recovering their property expired, many of these requests are still 

pending with various local authorities. However, there is still a risk that the former owners file 

an action for restitution based on the general principles provided by the Civil Code. The judicial 

practice is inconsistent in respect of the recognition of the right of the former owners to file 

action for restitution under these general principles; therefore, for the purpose of settling this 

inconsistency, the general prosecutor of Romania promoted an extraordinary appeal sustaining 

the law which is to be settled by the Supreme Court of Justice. 

The majority of the real estate owned by the Issuer on some of which the plants and some of the 

warehouses are located, are encumbered with mortgages (and also interdictions of alienation, 

encumbrance, and in certain cases renting, demolition, dismemberment and/or creation of rights 

in rem in favour of the following banks: HVB Bank Romania SA, Banca Comerciala HVB 

Tiriac SA, BRD Group Societe Generale SA Bistrita-Nasaud branch, BRD Group Societe 

Generale SA Iasi branch, Banca Comerciala Romana SA Bistrita-Nasaud branch, Raiffeisen 

Bank SA Brasov branch (see chapter " Material Agreements "). 

Plastsistem 

As of the date of this Prospect, Plastsistem owns real estate properties in Bistrita, 79 Drumul 

Cetatii and also in Crainimat – Sieu Magherus, Bistrita-Nasaud county with a total area of 

30,866 sqm. The thermo-insulated panels sandwich type plant, the Company's administrative 

office and a production unit for metallic confections are all located oh these real estate 

properties.  

Most of the real estate properties owned by Plastsistem, including those on which the plant, the 

office and the production unit are located are encumbered by mortgage (including an 

interdiction of alienation, encumbrance, renting and in certain cases demolition) in favour of the 

following banks: Banca Comerciala Romana – Bistrita branch and Banca Comerciala HVB 

Tiriac SA (see chapter "Material Agreements"); 

Politub 

As of the Prospectus date, Politub holds real estate properties in Bistrita, 66-69 Lucian Blaga 

St., consisting of land with a total area of approximately 11,843 sqm. The PE pipe plant and the 

administrative office are located on the real estate properties.  
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In order to fulfil the investment plan, including to relocate the production units, Politub has also 

purchased a number of real estate properties consisting in land with a total area of 

approximately 32,800 sqm, located at Sieu Magherus, Saratel village, Bistrita-Nasaud county. A 

significant part of the equipment and installations used by the Group companies in the 

production process are encumbered by mortgages under the security agreements related to the 

loans contracted (see chapter " Material Agreements "). 

Employees 

Evolution of the average number of employees:  

 

 

 

According to the collective bargaining contract, the Issuer must pay its employees, upon their 

retirement, an amount equal to a multiplier of their gross salary, depending on the period during 
which they were employed, work conditions etc. The Issuer has made provisions for these 
payments. Besides the contributions to the state budget and to social security budgets, the Issuer 
does not have other obligations related to post-retirement benefits.  

The Issuer also incurs expenses with gifts given on holidays (Easter, Christmas etc), as well as 
the partial discount of vacation and treatment tickets. These benefits are granted to the Issuer’s 

employees according to the provisions of the collective bargaining contract currently in force.  

 

Evolution of the Group’s number of employees  

     Source: Management reports   

 

During the analysed period, there were no significant changes in the Group’s number of 
employees.  

 

 2004 

 

2005 2006 30.06.2007 30.11.2007 

Number of employees at the end of the 

period 

491 553 597 649 682 

SC Teraplast SA 464 521 562 553 569 

SC Politub SRL 27 32 35 36 40 

SC Plastsistem SA     60 73 

Average number of employees 

SC Teraplast SA 408 466 507 527
SC Politub SRL 27 32 35 36 
SC Plastsistem SA 98 93 71 60 

Total 533 591 613 623

Source: Management reports 

2007 2006 2005 2004 
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Number of employees depending on their work seniority   

  30.11.2007 

under 10 years seniority  210 

from 10 to 20 years (unfulfilled) seniority 202 

from 20 to 30 years (unfulfilled) seniority 197 

from 30 to 40 years (unfulfilled) seniority 71 

over 40 years seniority  2 

TOTAL EMPLOYEES 682 

Source: Management reports   

According to the collective bargaining contract, each employee is entitled to receive upon 

retirement, regardless of the retirement cause, a certain number of salaries depending on their 
work seniority, ranging between 2.5-5 basic salaries. 

  

Number of employees depending on their age 

  30.11.2007 

Under 20 years 3 

from 20 to 30 years (unfulfilled) 161 

from 30 to 40 years (unfulfilled) 215 

from 40 to 50 years (unfulfilled) 215 

from 50 to 60 years (unfulfilled) 86 

over 60 years 2 

TOTAL EMPLOYEES 682 

Source: Management reports   

 

Evolution of employees’ number depending on their studies  

  30.11.2007 

Graduate education 204 

Vocational education 184 

High school education 245 

8 GRADES + QUALIFICATION 

COURSES 

26 

NO STUDIES 23 

TOTAL EMPLOYEES  
682 

Source: Management reports   

There is only one union active within the Issuer's structure – the Teraplast union established by 

decision no. 699 of 6 February 1997 of the Bistrita Court. 

Employee benefits 

According to the collective bargaining agreement currently in force, at Teraplast level, the 

minimum salary cannot be lower than RON 868. 

 The collective bargaining agreement stipulates that the salary comprises the basic salary, the 

indemnities, the increments and also other additional amounts. The Issuer pays the following 

categories of increments: service increments, special conditions increment, night increment, 



 

   - 127 - 

overtime increment, loyalty increment, increment for working Saturdays and Sundays, and 

increment for working at high altitude. 

Insurance 

The Issuer has concluded group insurance policies for occupational accidents for the company’s 

workers and administrative staff. The Company has insured only certain movables assets and 

real estate properties owned (production plants, production lines and other equipment) these are 

generally assigned as security according to the loan agreements concluded by the Issuer.  

Politub has concluded insurance policies against fires and other risks for several equipment 

related to the manufacturing process, and a third party liability insurance for a total amount of 

EUR 50,000, valid until March 20
th
 2008.  

Plastsistem has concluded insurances for certain of the movable assets and real estate owned 

(production plants, production lines and other equipment). However, it has not concluded third 

party liability insurances, insurance for activity disruptions or for product flaws. 

Litigation 

The Issuer is involved, in its capacity as plaintiff, in several commercial litigations criminal 

litigations where the Issuer is a civil part, the total amounts to be recovered amounting to around 

RON 400,522. The most important commercial litigation, in terms of value, is the one against 

SC MOZAIC SRL for the recovery of an outstanding debt together with the related penalities in 

a total amount of approximatley RON 58,100. The defendant entered into insolvency 

proceedings and the Issuer is in the process of filing its claim in such proceedings. The Issuer's 

claim against the defendant is not secured. In connection with such litigation, the Issuer filed a 

criminal claim for the issue of bounced cheques by the defendant, the investigation being under 

way. Also, the Issuer is in the process of filing a claim in an insolvency proceeding commenced 

against SC COMARVI SRL for the recovery of an outstanding debt of approximately RON 

56,900. The claim is unsecured. In connection with such litigation, the Issuer filed a criminal 

claim for the issue of bounced cheques by the defendant, the investigation being under way. The 

procedures are under way in accordance with the payment summoning procedure. The Issuer 

also filed a criminal complaint in a different matter related to the issue of bounced cheques for 

the recovery of a prejudice of about 85,000 RON, the investigation being under way.  

The Issuer is also involved, in its capacity as defendant, in a litigation regarding the mandatory 

conclusion of sale-purchase agreements with the plaintiffs for the dwellings in the apartment 

building located in Bistrita, Bistrita-Nasaud county, 5 Zefirului St., owned by the Company, by 

virtue of the Decree-Law no. 61/1990 regarding the sale to the population of dwellings built 

with state funds and Law no. 85/1992 regarding the sale of dwellings and areas with other 

destinations built with state funds and funds of state companies. The value of the litigation, 

according to the constructions technical expertise report, is RON 744,220 RON.  

Notwithstanding the above, neither the Issuer nor the Group are involved in any government, 

judicial or arbitrage procedure besides those mentioned above, and are not aware of any such 

potential procedure which may have significant effects on the financial condition or profitability 

of the Issuer and the Group. 
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INDUSTRY REGULATIONS  

 

Chemical industry 

Romania has not yet implemented any specific law regarding companies operation in the field 

of plastic items production. Therefore, the Issuer’s activity is governed by the general 

provisions included in the civil and commercial legislation.  

Legislation regarding environmental protection  

General regulations 

According to the Government Emergency Ordinance no. 195/2005 regarding environment 

protection (“Law on Environmental Protection”), all activities that have an impact on the 

environment must be authorised by the environment protection authorities, by issuing 

authorisations, permits and approvals. Regular environmental authorisations are valid for five 

years, whereas the integrated ones, which are issued for certain activities with major impact on 

the environment, must be valid for ten years. The environmental permits or approvals must be 

obtained for new economic activities or in case of changes in the current objects of activity, 

including in case of transfer or termination of some projects related to activities with major 

environmental impact. In order to obtain the environmental approval, the new project must be 

subject to a environmental assessment. Environmental approvals are valid over the entire period 

of the project development, but if the building/investment works have not been started within 

two years after the issue date, the environmental permit expires. Environmental approvals or 

authorisations must be re-assessed in case of new elements which may have a major impact on 

the environment and which were not known upon issuance. Environmental approvals or 

authorisations can be suspended if the provisions or the obligations provided therein are not 

complied with. A company whose authorisation or permit has expired has six months to remedy 

these breaches. Otherwise, the authority may decide to cancel the authorisation or approval and 

terminate the project or the activity, if the conditions established by the environmental authority 

are not complied with and remedied.  

In order to carry out its production activity, Teraplast has obtained: 

(i) An environmental authorisation for the production of plastic boards, sheets, tubes, 

profiles and plastic items for constructions at the production plant located in 

Bistrita, 17A Romana St., valid until July 21st 2010, subject to annual visa. The last 

revision of the authorisation was on February 2
nd
 2007. The authorisation visa 

expires on July 21st 2008;  

(ii) An environmental authorisation for the production of PVC joinery items with 

thermo-insulating glass for the production plant located in Bistrita, 27/A Tarpiului 

St., valid until July 21st 2010, subject to annual visa. The last revision of this 

authorisation dates back to March 12
th
 2007. The authorisation visa expires on July 

21st 2008;  
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Regulations regarding the integrated environmental authorisation  

According to the Government Emergency Ordinance no. 152/2005 regarding prevention and 

integrated control of pollution, the integrated environmental authorisations are obtained based 

on the documentation submitted to the environmental authority by the installation operator. The 

environmental authorisations must be obtained for industrial installations which exceed certain 

pollution limits for certain industrial branches, such as power industry, metal processing 

industry, chemical industry and waste managements industry. This ordinance implemented in 

the Romanian legislation the Directive 96/61/EC regarding the prevention and integrated control 

of pollution.  

The Issuer has obtained an integrated environmental authorisation for the production of 

terracotta tiles and bricks at Bistrita, 17A Romana St. The authorisation was extended on 30 

November 2007 for a 10-year period. The Issuer does not need  integrated environmental 

authorisations for the other locations. 

Regulations regarding atmosphere protection  

The general framework regarding atmosphere protection is governed by the Government 

Emergency Ordinance no. 243/2000 regarding atmosphere protection. According to this 

ordinance, undertakings have, among others, the following obligations: (i) to maintain and 

preserve air characteristics; (ii) to adopt measures in order to limit the effect caused by polluting 

emissions into the atmosphere; (iii) to observe and implement the measures established by the 

environmental authorities. 

The ordinance implemented in the Romanian legislation some provisions of the Directive 

96/62/EC regarding the air quality assessment and management, of the Directive 99/30/CE 

regarding the limit values for sulphur dioxide, dioxide and nitrate oxides, particles in suspension 

and lead in the air, of the Directive 2000/69/EC regarding the limits of benzene and carbon 

monoxide in the surrounding air and of the Directive 2002/3/EC regarding the ozone in the 

surrounding air.  

The Issuer observes the provisions regarding the protection of the atmosphere in all locations 

where its activities are performed. 

Regulations regarding gas emissions with greenhouse effect 

The general framework regarding gas emissions with greenhouse effect is governed by the 

Government Decision no. 780/2006, which transposed into Romanian legislation the provisions 

of the Directive 2003/87/EC regarding the establishment of the trading schedule of certificates 

for gas emissions with greenhouse effect within the European Union, as modified through the 

Directive 2004/101/EC. 

Moreover, the Order of the Ministry of Environment and Water Management no. 1108/2006 

approved the procedure for issuing the authorisation for gas emissions with greenhouse effect. 

According to this procedure, the operators who use equipment that emit gases with greenhouse 

effect are compelled to obtain such an authorisation. Authorisations regarding gas emissions 

with greenhouse effect are issued after submitting certain documents to the relevant 

environment authority, including a questionnaire for detecting the emission levels and a plan for 
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monitoring and reporting gas emissions with greenhouse effect. The permit for gas emissions 

with greenhouse effect is defined as an authorisation which entitles its holder to emit into the 

atmosphere one tone of carbon dioxide during a limited period of time. Operators are not 

allowed to emit a quantity of carbon dioxide larger than that provided in the respective permit, 

unless penalties are paid or a permit for gas emissions with greenhouse effect is acquired from 

the market in order to cover the excess emissions.  

Teraplast has obtained the authorisation regarding gas emissions with greenhouse effect no. 17 

on December 29
th
 2006 for the activity of burning the terracotta tiles and bricks in Bistrita, 17/A 

Romana St. The authorisation does not have a validity term and is valid as long as the data 

based on which it was isssued do not change. 

Upon the proposal of the European Commission, the National Allotment Plan establishing the 

total number of gas emissions with greenhouse effect allocated for Romania was re-approved by 

the Romanian authorities by reducing approximately 10% for the first stage and 20% for the 

second stage. This reduction influences the authorisation issued for the Issuer, namely the 

number of emission certificates granted to the Issuer will be reduced accordingly.  

Regulations regarding waste management  

The Government Emergency Ordinance no. 78/2000 regarding the status of wastes establishes 

the obligations of undertakings to ensure a high level of environmental protection and public 

health. The methods and processes used for the wastes recovery and removal must not endanger 

public health or the environment, especially by complying with the following principles: (i) it 

should not involve any risks for the water, air, soil, fauna or vegetation; (ii) it should not cause 

phonic pollution or unpleasant smell, (iii) it should not affect protected landscapes or areas.  

This ordinance transposes into Romanian legislation the Directive 2006/12/EC regarding 

wastes. 

The Issuer observes the legal provision regarding the management of wastes in all locations 

where its activities are performed.  

Regulations regarding water management 

According to Waters’ Act no. 107/1996, undertakings must not pollute or modify the 

characteristics of water sources. In order to prevent water pollution, undertakings must observe 

the provisions of the authorisation for water management issued by environmental authorities. 

This act transposes into Romanian legislation the Directive 2000/60/EC for the establishment of 

a community policy with respect to water.  

The Issuer obtained a water management authorisation for the terracotta division in Bistrita, 

17A Romana St., which is valid until 22 October 2017. The Issuer does not perform activities in 

the other locations which would require a water management authorisation.  

Regulations regarding the prevention of water pollution   

The provisions of the Government Decision no. 351/2005 approving of the program for 

gradually removing exhausts, emissions and losses of priority hazardous substances aim at 
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reducing or eliminating pollution caused by hazardous substances. The Government Decision 

transposes into the Romanian legislation the Directive 6/464/EEC and the “corresponding 

directives” regarding pollution caused by certain hazardous substances released into the water 

environment of the Community. 

The Issuer does not perform activities involving such hazardous substances.   

Regulations regarding the environmental noise management  

The Government Decision no. 321/2005 regarding the release and management of environment 

noise established the regulatory measures of noise levels, informs the public on the noise levels 

and applies action plans for the prevention and reduction of noise levels. The decision 

transposes into the Romanian legislation the Directive 2002/49/EC regarding the release and 

management of environment noise. The Issuer observes the legal requirements regarding the 

management of environmental noise. 

Regulations regarding the measures for the prevention and repair of environment liabilities 

The Government Emergency Ordinance no. 68/2007 regarding environmental liability with 

respect to the prevention and remedying of environmental damage stipulates that (i) the 

undertakers are objectively liable for all the damage unintentionally caused to the environment; 

and that (ii) the undertakings will bear all the costs related thereto, except when the damage is 

caused by a third party or when the production of the operator was carried on, on the basis of 

certain compulsory instructions received from a public authority or which involves any activity 

which would make impossible to prevent the damage from a technical point of view. 

The Ordinance implemented into Romanian law the Directive 2004/35/EC regarding 

environmental liability with respect to the prevention and remedying of environmental damage. 

Regulations regarding the assessment of certain plans and programs on the environment  

The Government Decision no. 1076/2004 regarding the framework for the public participation 

to drawing up certain plans and programs regarding the environment establishes the assessment 

procedure of the plans and programs which may have a major impact on the environment. This 

decision transposes into the Romanian legislation the Directive 2001/42/EC regarding the 

assessment of certain plans and programs on the environment.  

Regulation regarding major accidents caused by hazardous substances   

The Government Decision no. 804/2007 regarding the control on major accident dangers where 

hazardous substances are involved establishes measures for the prevention of these accidents, as 

well as for the limitation of their consequences on people’s safety and health and on the 

environment.  
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COMPANY ORGANISATION AND MANAGEMENT  

 
General overview 

The Issuer implemented a unitary management system focused on the Board of Directors, made 

up of four non-executive directors and one executive director, who also has the position of Sole 

General Manager.  

The company is managed by the Board of Directors, who operates according to the provisions 

of the Companies Law and Articles of Association. The management responsibilities are 

delegated to the General Manager according to the legal provisions.  

For a more detailed presentation of the Company’s management and responsibilities of the 

Board of Directors and managers, please refer to chapter "Description of Share Capital and 

Articles of Association". 

Board of Directors 

The members of the Board of Directors are appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholders 

by secret vote, for a 4-year mandate, with the possibility of being re-appointed. The Board of 

Directors is chaired by a President who also has the position of General Manager. 

The table below contains the name, position and appointment term of the members of the Board 

of Directors:  

Name  Appointment date   Mandate expiry 

date  

 Position  

Emanoil Ioan 

Viciu 

 March 9
th
 2007  March 9

th
 2011  President of the Board of 

Directors   

Gheorghe Grosan  March 9th 2007  March 9th 2011  Member of the Board of 

Directors   

Alexandru Stanean  March 9th 2007  March 9th 2011  Member of the Board of 

Directors   

Ioan Popa  March 9
th
 2007  March 9

th
 2011  Member of the Board of 

Directors   

Emmanuel Titrent  March 9th 2007  March 9th 2011  Member of the Board of 

Directors   

Emanoil Ioan Viciu was born in 1951 in Balauseri, Mures county and graduated the 

Polytechnic Institute Iasi – faculty of chemistry and chemical engineering - "Organic chemical 

technology" in 1975, majoring as chemist engineer. During 2005-2007 he attended a master of 

business administration. He has been part of Teraplast team since 1990 as general manager and 

president of the Board of Directors.   

Gheorghe Grosan was born in 1946 and graduated in 1972 the Agronomic Institute Petru 

Groza-Cluj Napoca, specialized as economist in agriculture – agriculture economy. He attended 
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several training courses in the country and abroad. Since 1995 he has been branch manager with 

SIF Banat Crisana SA, having as main activities and responsibilities the coordination of the 

activities of SIF Banat Crisana branch with a view to monitoring the shares of the companies in 

the portfolio. Since 14 decembrie 2001, he has been elected member in the Issuer’s Board of 

Directors.  

Alexandru Stanean was born in 1982 and in 2005 graduated from Babes-Bolyai University, 

Faculty of Economic Sciences and Business Management, specialised as an economist. In 2006 

he attended a masters in Economic Sciences. Since 2005 he has been an economic adviser in 

finance and management at Magis Investment, Cluj Napoca. Starting from March 2007 he has 

been a director and member of the audit committee of the Issuer’s Board of Directors.  

Ioan Popa was born in 1950 in Custelnic, Mures county and graduated from the Faculty of 

Economic Sciences, accounting department in Cluj Napoca in 1973. In 1995 he became doctor 

in economy. Starting 1986 and until now, he also graduated several specialisation courses: 

modern techniques of costs calculation, capital markets, liquidation procedures of trading 

companies, trainer in International Accounting Standards. He is a professor at the Faculty of 

Economic Sciences in Babes Bolyai University in Cluj Napoca, president of CECCAR branch 

in Cluj, censor, financial auditor and director in two accounting companies. Since March 9
th
 

2007 he is an independent member of the Issuer’s Board of Directors. 

Emmanuel Titrent was born in 1974 and in 1996 graduated the Higher School of International 

Commerce in Pas-de-Calais. He also graduated a specialisation course in business management 

at the Newcastle-upon-Tyre University, Great Britain. Over the years, he has been general and 

business manager in Marley Magyarorszag Zrt –Aliaxis Group, Hungary, trend adviser and 

management controller, Poliplast Grup Aliaxis, Poland and account responsible and marketing 

responsible Rawibox, Grup Rossman, Poland. From March 9
th
 2007 he was appointed director 

in the Issuer’s Board of Directors. 

Positions held by the members of the Board of Directors in other companies/partnerships  

The table below shows a list of all the companies where the members of the Board of Directors 

were members of an directors, management or supervision body in the last 5 years. The table 

also mentions whether the person still has the respective position or not:   

Name  Company/Partnership 

name  

 Position  Current position 

(Yes/No) 

Emanoil Ioan 

Viciu 

 SC Plastsistem SA  Member of the Board 

of Directors   

 Yes  

  SC Politub SRL  Member of the Board 

of Directors   

 Yes  

Emmanuel 

Titrent 

 Marley  Member of the Board 

of Directors 

 Yes  

Gheorghe 

Grosan 

 SC Mebis SA Bistrita  Member of the Board 

of Directors 

 Yes  

  SC Mobex SA Mures  Member of the Board  Yes  
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Name  Company/Partnership 

name  

 Position  Current position 

(Yes/No) 

of Directors 

  SC Hora SA Reghin  Member of the Board 

of Directors 

 Yes  

Ioan Popa  SC Euroaudit SRL  Member of the Board 

of Directors 

 Yes 

  SC Audit Consult Rosia 

Montana SRL 

 Member of the Board 

of Directors 

 Yes 

 

Managers  

According to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Board of Directors delegated the 

Company management to a sole general manager, Mr. Emanoil Ioan Viciu. 

The table below contains details regarding the General Manager’s mandate and responsibilities: 

Name  Appointment 

date  

 Mandate expiry 

date  

 Responsibilities 

Emanoil 

Ioan Viciu  

 June 1st 2007  June 1st 2011  Organising, leading and managing the 

Issuer’s activity based on the 

objectives and performance criteria 

established in the income and 

expenses budget and the investments 

program approved by the  General 

Shareholders Meeting, representing 

the company in third party 

relationships.  

 

For details regarding the experience of Mr. Emanoil Ioan Viciu, please refer to the section 

"Board of Directors" above. 

Department managers 

At the date hereof, the management of the Issuer’s departments is ensured by: 

Name  Appointment 

date  

 Mandate 

expiry date  

 Position/ Responsibilities 

Florin Urite   April 1
st
 2006  n/a  Business Deputy General Manager – 

coordinates, controls and is in charge of 

the activity of direct sales department, 

warehouse sales department, windows 

sales department, supply department, 

import-export, approves sale, supply and 

marketing strategies, controls the 

activity of the subordinated employees  
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Name  Appointment 

date  

 Mandate 

expiry date  

 Position/ Responsibilities 

Dana Tatar   17 decembrie 

2007 

 n/a  Financial Manager – coordinates and 

controls the activity of the financial-

accounting department, IT department 

and financing department, supervises 

and controls the activity of the 

subordinated employees    

Ioan Vasile 

Galea  

 April 2006  n/a  Technical – Production Deputy General 

Manager – coordinates and is in charge 

of the activity of the technical 

department, profiles-granules plant, 

pipes and fittings plant, windows and 

terracotta plant, supervises and controls 

the activity of the subordinated 

employees    

Pop 

Maricica   

 2006  n/a  Quality Control Manager – coordinates 

and controls the activity of the quality 

control department – company, 

laboratories and the quality assurance 

office, supervises and controls the 

activity of the subordinated employees 

Iulia Nadia 

Pop Oprea 

 2006  n/a  Human Resources Manager – elaborates 

and coordinates the implementation of 

the human resources strategy, 

coordinates the human resources activity  

Jancsika 

Sandor  

 2006  n/a  Warehouse Sales Manager – 

coordinates, controls and is in charge of 

the activities of Teraplast warehouses 

and the logistics office   

Petri Zosin 

Sergiu  

 2006  n/a  Manager of the profiles-granules plant – 

coordinates, controls and is in charge of 

the activity of the plants manufacturing 

PVC profiles, joinery profiles and 

granules based on yearly and weekly 

objectives 

Birtas 

Rodica  

 7 ianuarie 

2008 

 n/a  Financial-accounting Manager – 

organizes and supervises the operative 

performance of financial-accounting 

operations, ensures the enforcement of 

accounting principles, draws up 

accounting notes    

Muresan 

Daniel 

Corneliu 

 2006  n/a  IT manager – is directly involved in 

executing the design and configuration 

details of the enterprise processes with 

the aid of SAP R/3 system for the 
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Name  Appointment 

date  

 Mandate 

expiry date  

 Position/ Responsibilities 

identification of the impact and 

requirements of the enterprise processes; 

coordinates the design and drawing-up 

of reports, forms of user interfaces and 

data conversions.    

Sacu 

Marinel 

 2007  n/a  Sales Manager Orizont systems -  is in 

charge of carrying out the promotion of 

the company’s products, directly and 

through commercial agents and the 

subordinated staff, analyses the bids in 

the country and draws up offers, contacts 

potential clients and follows the 

exploitation behaviour of the delivered 

products, proposes suggestions and 

solutions for possible claims  

Rosu 

Nicolae 

 2006  n/a  Manufacturing manager pipes and 

fittings – coordinates and is in charge of 

the PVC plant and PP pipes-fittings 

plant, based on yearly and weekly 

objectives  

Ciocirlan 

Mihaela 

 2006  n/a  Direct sales manager – coordinates, 

controls and is in charge of the Direct 

Sales Office, responsible for obtaining 

the targeted turnover, the enforcement 

and compliance with the company’s 

sales strategy  

Pop Ioana 

Nicoleta 

 2006  n/a  Marketing Image manager – coordinates, 

controls and is in charge of the 

marketing-image department  

Popovici 

Larisa 

 2006  n/a  Import export supply manager – 

coordinates, controls and is in charge of 

activity of the import export supply 

office based on the annual objectives 

schedules and on the weekly activity 

schedules   

 

Urite Florin was born in 1966 in Nasaud city, Bistrita Nasaud county, and in 1990 graduated 

from the Polytechnic Institute Bucharest Faculty of Machine Construction technology – 

mechanical profile, specialty – machines-tools. He worked as an engineer at IUT Bistrita and 

SC Comelf SA Bistrita, a general manager at SC Tegro SA Bistrita, and in 1999 he joined the 

Issuer’s team as Supply Manager. During 2005-2006 he was a sales manager with the Issuer’s 

company and in 2006 he was appointed Business Deputy General Manager.  
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Galea Ioan Vasile was born in 1965 and in 1990 graduated the Politechnic Institute Cluj-

Faculty of mechanics. He worked as an engineer at the mechanic enterprise Alba Iulia and in  

1991 he joined the Issuer’s team as an engineer, being then appointed chief of the pipes 

division. During 2003-April 2006, he worked as an Executive Manager for investments and 

quality insurance, and in 2006 was appointed Technical-Manufacturing Deputy General 

Manager within the Issuer.  

Pop Maricica was born in 1966 in Stanita, Neamt county and in 1990 graduated the Faculty of 

Technology-Chemistry Iasi, as a chemist engineer with the specialty organic chemistry. She 

worked as an engineer at SC Cesom SA and then as chief of laboratory at Raj Aquabis, and in 

2002 joined the Issuer as chief of laboratory, then she was appointed on April 4
th
 2006 AQ 

manager.  

Iulia Nadia Pop Oprea was born in 1964 in Bistrita and in 1988 graduated the Mines Institute 

Petrosani – Faculty of machines and installations, specialising as mechanical engineer. In 2003 

she graduated an MA course at Babes Bolyai University, the Faculty of European Studies, MA 

in labour and human resources.  She was a deputy director at the general Department for Labour 

and Social Protection, having as main responsibility – the coordination of programs related to 

employment and in 2004 she joined the Issuer as chief of Human Resources Department, wage 

and salary division, and since 2006 she has been appointed Human Resources manager within 

the Issuer.  

Jancsika Sandor was born in 1971 in Bistrita and graduated the West University "Vasile 

Goldis" Arad, Faculty of marketing, management, informatics specialisingin accounting and 

management informatics. In 1998 he joined the Issuer, having the positions of commercial agent 

and chief of sales office, and in 2006 he was appointed Warehouse Sales Manager.    

Petri Zosin Sergiu was born in 1971 and in 1992 he graduated the University Babes Bolyai 

Cluj – Faculty of chemistry and chemical engineering, specialising as chemist. He joined the 

issuer in 1997 as intern chemist and was in turn: chief of dosing-mixing line – pipes plant, Chief 

of QA laboratory, chief of profiles-granules plant, and in 2006 he was appointed Manager of the 

profiles-granules plant.   

Birtas Rodica graduated the Economics Academy, economic section, finance-accounting 

specialisation, within the "Babes Bolyai" University of Cluj-Napoca. Mrs Birtas became a 

chartered accountant in 1996 and expert accountant in March 2007. On 7 January 2008, Mrs 

Birtas joined the Teraplast team.  

Tatar Dana was born in 1973 and graduated the University Babes Bolyai Cluj in 1997, 

specialising as economist. In 2002 she was employed as economist within the Issuer and since 

2006 she is an accounting financial manager.  

Muresan Daniel Corneliu was born in 1966 and in 1990 he graduated the Polytechnic Institute 

Cluj Napoca - Faculty of Electronics, electric profile, specialising in automations and 

computers. He joined the Issuer in 1990 as engineer and was in turn: chief of computers 

department, chief of calculation office and since 2005 he is IT Manager. 
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Sacu Marinel was born in 1965 and in 1991 graduated the Polytechnic Institute Gh. Asachi 

Iasi- Faculty of machine constructions technology, specialising as engineer of machine 

constructions technology. He joined the Issuer’s team in 1992 as engineer and was promoted 

within the company as chief of office and chief of division, then manager of windows plant 

during April 2006-March 2007 and since March 2007 he is Sales Manager Orizont systems.  

Rosu Nicolae was born in 1974 and graduated the Faculty of Constructions and Architecture 

Iasi in 1999, specialising as engineer in constructions installations. In 2002 he joined the Issuer 

as a manufacturing engineer and since April 2006 he is Manufacturing manager for pipes and 

fittings.   

Ciocirlan Mihaela was born in 1974 and in 1997 graduated the University Babes Bolyai Cluj 

Napoca – Faculty of economic sciences, specialising as economist. She joined the Issuer’s team 

in 2003 as commercial agent, being then chief of distribution office, warehouses and related 

management, and in 2006 she was appointed Direct Sales Manager.  

Pop Ioana Nicoleta was born in 1974 and graduated the University Babes Bolyai Cluj Napoca 

specialising as economist. Over the years, she worked as an assistant chemist, chief of general 

registry office, assistant manager, and in 2006 she was promoted, being now Marketing Image 

Manager.  

Popovici Larisa was born in 1964 and graduated the Polytechnic Institute Gh Asachi Ias- 

Faculty of mechanics – specialising in metallurgic processing. She joined the Issuer’s team in 

1998 and in 2006 she was promoted, being now Import export supply manager.  

Positions held by department managers in other companies  

The table below shows a list of all the companies where the department managers were 

members of an administration, management or supervision body during the last 5 years. The 

table also mentions whether the person still has the respective position or not:   

Name  Company/Partnership 

name  

 Position  Current position 

(Yes/No) 

Larisa 

Popovici 

 Chamber of commerce 

and industry Bistrita-

Nasaud 

 Member of the 

Managing 

Committee  

 Yes  

 

Audit committee  

According to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Board of Directors set up an 

audit committee, made up of the following non-executive members: Stanean Alexandru and 

Popa Ioan. For details regarding the responsibilities of the Audit Committee, please refer to the 

Chapter "Description of the Share Capital and Articles of Association".  

Additional information regarding the members of the Board of Directors and the 

managers  

The members of the Board of Directors, the managers and the department heads carry out their 

activity at the Issuer’s headquarters.  
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Behaviour of the Issuer’s management bodies  

In the last five years, none of the members of the Board of Directors or no manager or 

department head 

(i) suffered a fraud conviction;  

(ii) was member of the administration, management or supervision bodies of a company 

under bankruptcy, requisition or liquidation; 

(iii) no incrimination or official public sanction was ruled by statutory or regulatory 

authorities (including by the assigned professional entities) and was never prevented by 

a court of law to act as member of an administration, management or supervision body 

of any company or to intervene in the management or development of the business of 

any company.  

There are no family relationships between any of the members of the Issuer’s management 

bodies.  

Conflicts of interests  

There are no potential conflicts of interests between the obligations to the Issuer and the private 

interests or other obligations of the members of the Board of Directors, managers or people with 

management responsibilities. 

There is no understanding or agreement with the main shareholders, customers, suppliers or 

other people, based on which any of the members of the Board of Directors, any Manager or 

department head was appointed member of an administration, management or supervision body.  

The shareholders owning more than 5% of the Teraplast share capital – Mr Goia, Mr Viciu, 

Marley Magyarorszag Zrt., SIF Banat Crisana, concluded a Contract regarding the Share 

Transfer Restrictions on 17th of March, 2008. Each abovementioned shareholder undertook 

thereunder not to alienate or transfer in any way whatsoever the shares owned in the Company 

for a 180-day period as of the commencement date of the Offering subscription period. In case 

of breach of the contractual undertakings, the shareholders shall pay the amount provided under 

the penal clause. 

Remunerations and benefits  

Board of Directors 

The gross remuneration received by the members of the Board of Directors in the financial year 

2006 was situated around RON 203,000. The Issuer also concluded life insurance policies for 

the members of the Board of Directors. The remuneration includes the incentives granted by the 

Company as a percentage of the net profit of the Company. 

Managers  

The gross remuneration received by Mr. Emanoil Viciu as Sole General Manager amounted to 

RON 666,260 in the financial year 2006. 
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Heads of departments 

The gross salary received by the heads of departments in the financial year 2006 was in the 

region of RON 2,279,484. 

The Issuer implemented a program whereby the heads of the departments are granted incentives 

out of the net profit of the Company, in a percentage computed on the basis of the global 

coefficient of the performance indicators. These incentives are conditioned upon the monitoring 

and fulfilment of certain reference indicators, and performance objectives and criteria. Also, in 

order to benefit from incentives, the employee involved should observe certain requirements 

regarding the confidentiality and loyalty to the company, such obligations being valid also after 

the expiration of the contracts regarding the incentive granting. 

The Issuer did not allot or accumulate any amounts for the payment of pensions or other 

benefits to the members of the Board of Directors, the Managers or the Heads of Departments 

and did not enter into agreements with the members of the Board of Directors, the Managers or 

the Heads of Departments providing for grant of benefits at the expiry of such agreements. 

Participations and options of the members of management bodies  

At the date hereof, the following members of management bodies own participations in the 

Issuer’s share capital: (i) Mr. Emanoil Viciu owns 60,888,854 shares representing 24.52% of the 

share capital, (ii) Mr. Gheorghe Grosan owns 40,856 shares representing 0.016% of the share 

capital, (iii) Mr. Nicolae Rosu owns 8,171 shares representing 0.003% of the share capital.  

The Issuer is not aware of any other member of the management bodies who may own, directly 

or indirectly, interests in the share capital and it has not concluded agreements for employees’ 

participation to the Issuer’s capital.  

Corporate governance  

As of the Prospectus date, the Issuer observes the corporate governance in force, according to 

the Companies Law. 
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MAIN SHAREHOLDERS 

The table below presents the shareholders with stakes exceeding 1% of the Issuer’s share 

capital, as of the Prospectus date.  

Shareholder  Number of shares owned 

Percentage of the owned joint 

stock  

Dorel Goia 97,711,512 39.36% 

Emanoil Viciu 60,888,854 24.52% 

SIF Banat Crisana 32,476,578 13.08% 

Marley Magyarorszag Zrt. 22,885,589 9.21% 

Mr. Dorel Goia and Mr. Emanoil Viciu are the main shareholders of the Issuer, individuals. 

The latter mentioned joined Teraplast team in 1990, subsequently becoming the Issuer’s main 

shareholder by participating to the privatisation of MEBO and through successive shares 

acquisitions.  

The Financial Investment Company Banat-Crisana S.A. (SIF Banat-Crisana) is a Romanian 

self-managed private investment company, falling under the category "Other collective 

investment undertaking, having a diversified investments policy in accordance with the Capital 

Market Act, and is admitted to trading on BSE. On June 30th 2007, the value of the net asset of 

SIF Banat-Crisana reached 1,748.38 million lei (approx. 558 million euro). The stock exchange 

capitalisation on June 30th 2007 was of 2,095.83 million lei (approx. 669 million euro). The 

company has its main seat in Arad and has a network of 10 branches established in the cities: 

Alba-Iulia, Baia Mare, Bistrita, Bucharest, Cluj-Napoca, Deva, Oradea, Satu-Mare, Timisoara 

and Zalau  

Marley Magyarorszag Zrt. – Marley Magyarorszag Zrt. is a Hungarian company 

headquartered in Szekszard and having a personnel of 90 employees. Marley Magyarorszag was 

established in 1970, and in 2003 became a member of the international group Aliaxis, a group 

which currently owns 88 production and distribution companies, being the sales leader on the 

plastic pipes and fittings market in 2005. Marley Magyarorszag Zrt. is currently active in the 

field of production and distribution of industrial profiles used in construction, plastic 

construction materials and interior design profiles with an annual turnover of EUR 7 million and 

exporting its products in 15 European countries to approximately 600 clients. 

None of Issuer’s main shareholders presented in the table above has voting rights different from 

those of the other shareholders. 

The Issuer is not aware of any other person who is not a member of any administration and 

management body of the Issuer, and owns either directly or indirectly, more than 5% of the 

share capital or of the voting rights of the Issuer. Also, the Issuer is not aware of any direct or 

indirect control over the company, nor about any agreement the enforcement of which may 

generate a change in its control at a subsequent date. 
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OPERATIONS WITH INVOLVED PARTIES 

Partnership contract concluded between the Issuer and Plastsistem 

On February 16
th
 2007, the Issuer and Plastsistem concluded a partnership contract whereby the 

Issuer undertook to sell its products to Plastsistem (pipes, PVC profiles, fittings) offering 

discounts similar to those granted to other business partners depending on the sales targets 

reached. The products delivered by the Issuer will be further sold by Plastsistem to third parties. 

On 11 January 2008, the Issuer and Plastsistem concluded a new contract under similar terms 

and conditions.  

Sale-purchase contract between the Issuer and Plastsistem regarding certain business units 

The Issuer and Plastsistem concluded a sale-purchase contract authenticated under number 1567 

of April 21st 2006, whereby the Issuer bought from Plastsistem four working units located in 

Oradea, Iasi, Galati and Constanta. The sale price for the land and other real estate properties 

related to the four working units was of RON 3,999,626. The parties agreed that the sale price 

should be partially paid from the Issuer’s own resources (20%) and partially from bank loans 

(80%). 

Contract for supply of pipes and fittings concluded between the Issuer and Politub 

On June 27
th
 2006, the Issuer and Politub have concluded the contract number 376 whereby the 

Issuer sells to Politub pipes and fittings from its own production. The contract was initially 

concluded for 2006, but taking into account that none of the parties notified its termination, it 

was automatically extended for 2007. The estimated value of the contract for 2006 was around 

RON 900,000 and the agreed discounts were 14% for pipes and 15% for fittings.  

If Politub does not observe the payment deadlines for the products delivered, it will lose any 

discount and will pay penalties of 0.2% from the invoiced amount per day. The Issuer will pay 

penalties of 0.2% per day from the value of the products not delivered in time.  

Contract for the supply of polyethylene pipes concluded between the Issuer and Politub 

The Issuer concluded a supply contract with Politub, according to which Politube undertakes to 

sell to the Issuer polyethylene pipes in the quantities and types provided under the contract. For 

2008 the estimate value of the contract is RON 12,000,000 and a 29% discount is applied to the 

price of products. The contract is terminated de jure in case of failure to perform the payment 

obligation in due time, without notification and without the intervention of any court, the delay 

penalties being 0.15% per day, calculated upon the value of the unpaid invoice or upon the price 

of the undelivered products, as applicable. The Contract is valid for one year and can be 

automatically extended. 
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MATERIAL AGREEMENTS 

The following selected contracts (other than contracts entered into the ordinary course of 

business)  were concluded by the Issuer or any member of the Group during the two years prior 

to the Prospectus date and are or could be important or were concluded by and provide for 

obligations to be fulfilled by any Group member important or undertakings by the entire Group, 

as of the Prospectus date. The following selected contracts should not be interpreted as 

representing all the Group’s important contracts.   

Teraplast 

Loan contract with the Banca Comerciala Ion Tiriac SA, Bistrita Branch (290/09.06.2006) 

On 9 June 2006 the Issuer concluded a loan contract with Banca Comerciala Ion Tiriac SA, 

Bistrita Branch as lender (the “Bank”) for a credit line of EUR 300,000 EUR for financing the 

Issuer’s current expenses.  

The credit line was granted to the Issuer for 12 months. This period was extended with the 

parties consent, until 30 May 2008. Over the entire contract period, the Company will not 

request or receive a loan from another bank without the Bank’s prior written approval.  

The loan was guaranteed by the Issuer by a pledge over the receivables with respect to all the 

Company’s current and future receipts and revenues resulted from the contracts with 4 of the 

Issuer’s commercial partners. Another guarantee refers to the Issuer’s current and future 

inventories of goods and finished products, to the credit balances of the Issuer’s accounts 

opened with the Bank and to the insurance policies for the finished products stocks pledged. 

The Contract stipulates for the Issuer's obligation to ensure that the amount of the assigned 

receivable and the stock of goods pledged will each cover, at any moment, 100% of the used 

value of the credit/loan.  

The Issuer also undertook, during the entire contractual term, not to encumber any of its assets 

without the Bank’s written approval and not to sell such assets unless according to the limit 

necessary for carrying out its current activities. The bank must be notified in writing with 

respect to the changes occurred to the value and constituency of the guarantees. Moreover, such 

notification must be communicated to the Bank 10 Business Days before the occurrence of the 

respective change.  

Moreover, the contract provides that any legal action, sequester or foreclosure judgement issued 

against the Issuer is a case of default and may lead to contract cancellation and/or the amount 

due by the Issuer immediately becomes payable and claimable, the Company being in delay.  

Loan contract with HVB Bank Romania SA (283/26.05.2006) 

On 26 May 2006 the Issuer concluded with HVB Bank Romania (the “Bank") a loan contract 

for the amount of EUR 3,500,000, due on 24 April 2008, which can be extended until 30 May 

2008. The loan was granted for financing current expenses and for the issuing of some letters of 

guarantee.  
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As a guarantee, the Issuer set up in favour of the Bank: (i) a 1st ranking mortgage over the real 

estate located in Bistrita, 17A Romana St., made up of buildings and land  – LR 6563 (terracotta 

production plant, terracotta fuel storage, terracotta gas adjustment box, terracotta metalwork 

workshop, compressor station and land); also, the Company undertook not to sell, lease, change 

or dispose of the mortgaged asset in any other way without the Bank's prior consent; (ii) a 

pledge over the credit balances of the Issuer’s current and future accounts opened with the 

Bank, as well as a pledges over the Issuer’s future and present inventories of goods and finished 

products. Moreover, the Issuer assigns, as guarantee, all the present and future receivables from 

the debtors accepted by the Bank.  

According to the contract, the Issuer undertakes to circulate through the Bank a certain 

percentage (40%) of its annual flow and to submit monthly to the Bank written reports 

regarding the status of receivables and receipts subject to the guarantee granted according to the 

contract.  

Loan convention concluded with UniCredit Romania SA Bucharest –Bistrita Branch (290-

010/CRD-BS/2006) 

On 2 February 2006, the Company concluded with UniCredit Romania SA Bucharest – Bistrita 

branch (the “Bank") a loan agreement for the amount of EUR 1,000,000 usable in RON, EUR or 

USD, due on 31 January 2008. The loan purpose is to ensure the Company’s working capital.  

The guarantees consist in a pledge without expropriation over the inventories of finished 

products owned by it according to the pledge contract concluded with the Bank, a receivables 

assignment under the contracts concluded with 10 commercial partners as well as a pledge on 

the credit balances of some accounts opened by the Company with the Bank, the Company does 

not have the right to create any security on the creditor balances mortgaged in favour of the 

Bank. Moreover, the Company assigns to the Bank as guarantee all the receivables resulted 

from the commercial contracts concluded with its customers.  

According to the contract, the Company undertakes that the quarterly credit flow operated 

through the Bank be of at least EUR 1,500,000. Otherwise the Bank reserves the right to 

renegotiate the loan terms.  

Loan contract concluded with Unicredit Tiriac Bank SA – Cluj Branch (CLU3/605/2007) 

On 28 November 2007, the Company concluded with Unicredit Tiriac Bank SA – Cluj branch a 

loan contract for the amount of EUR 3,500,000 in view of financing/refinancing the purchase of 

new equipment and the opening of letters of credit for the payment of equipment.  

The credit is granted until 28 November 2014 and can be drawn either in USD or in EUR. If 

other currencies are used beside the reference one the NBR exchange rate valid at the date of 

each drawing will be applicable to the drawings so made. 

The company guarantees the loan by creating a second ranking mortgage in favour of the Bank 

over the building owned by it, located in Bistrita, registered with the Land Book under no. 

11002, a security having as object the equipment acquired from the loan, a security having as 

object all the liquid assets and current and future credit balances opened with the bank, the 

assignment of the rights under the contracts concluded with the assigned debtors in amount of a 
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minimum of EUR 1,000,000 and the assignment of the rights under the insurance policies ("all 

risks" type) issued by an insurance company agreed with the Bank and having as object the 

pledged movable and immovable assets – in this respect, the company is obliged to insure the 

pledged movable and immovable assets.  

The Company undertakes not to create any guarantees over any of its assets in favour of a third 

party, not to contract any debts towards another credit and/or financial institution without 

previously notifying the Bank in writing and not disposing of the assets mortgaged, without the 

Bank's previous consent. 

During the loan agreement period, the Company shall not cause or allow for changes to the 

shareholding, the issue of new shares or the initiation of the merger or division with the prior 

approval of the Bank.  

Loan contract concluded with BRD Groupe Societe Generale SA - Bistrita Branch (182J) 

On 20 June 2006, the Company concluded with BRD Groupe Societe Generale SA – Bistrita 

branch (the “Bank") a loan contract amounting to EUR 1,551,500 in order to finance the 

construction of production plant and its related equipment. 

The loan is granted over a period of 72 months from the signing date and the Company is 

entitled to waive of all or part of the unused loan amounts in advance, by notifying the Bank in 

advance. The waiver will be irrevocable.  

The Company guaranteed the loan by mortgages on the real estate properties owned by the 

Company ("Politub" production plant including raw materials warehouse and laboratories – land 

book 6567; maintenance workshop, accumulators station, auto parts shop – land book 6565; 

power setting station, warehouses, railways, crane ways – land book 6564; warehouse, 

compressed air installation – land book 6533; land for construction – land book 6798; access 

road land book 6626; platform for PVC pipes storage PVC – land book 8952; in-city land– land 

book 8940; land and production base – land book 8753) and identified in the contract, as well as 

on the building to be built out of the loan, after it is built and registered in the land register. The 

Company undertakes to set a pledge over all the equipment acquired from the loan in favour of 

the Bank.  

The Company undertakesto request the Bank’s prior approval in case of organisational and 

statutory changes, not to alienate the guarantees based on which the loan was granted, not to 

alienate without the Bank’s consent essential assets and not to assign the guarantees created in 

favour of the Bank a rank equal to that of any guarantee to be created in favour of any other 

parties.  

Moreover, the Bank is entitled to debit at any time and without notification the credit balance of 

any other account open by the Company with the Bank in order to pay the amounts due.   

If the cost increases or the Bank’s revenues decrease due to market or legal changes, the Bank 

and the Company will negotiate a solution in order to avoid additional costs incurred by the 

Bank. If no agreement is reached, the Bank is entitled to request anticipated repayment for all 

the amounts due under the contract.  
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Loan contract concluded with BRD Groupe Societe Generale SA - Bistrita Branch (183J) 

On 21 June 2006, the Company concluded with BRD Groupe Societe Generale SA – Bistrita 

branch (the “Bank") a loan credit of EUR 232,000, for a 60-month period from the conclusion 

date. The purpose of the contract is to finance the purchase of land in Timisoara and/or Bistrita 

The Company is entitled to waive of all or part of the unused loan amounts in advance by 

notifying the Bank in advance. The waiver will be irrevocable.  

The Company guaranteed the loan by some mortgages over the real estate properties owned by 

the Company ("Politub" production plant including raw materials warehouse and laboratories – 

land book 6567; maintenance workshop, accumulators station, auto parts shop – land book 

6565; power setting station, warehouses, railways, crane ways – land book 6564; warehouse, 

compressed air installation – land book 6533; land for construction – land book 6798; access 

road land book 6626; platform for PVC pipes storage PVC – land book 8952; in-city land– land 

book 8940; land and production base – land book 8753) and identified in the contract, as well as 

on the land to be acquired out of the loan. The Company undertakes to create a pledge over all 

the goods acquired from the loan in favour of the Bank.  

The Company undertakes to request the Bank’s prior approval in case of organisational and 

statutory changes, not to alienate the guarantees based on which the loan was granted, not to 

alienate without the Bank’s consent essential assets and not to give the guarantees set in favour 

of the bank a rank equal to that of any guarantee to be set in favour of other parties.  

Moreover, the Bank is entitled to debit any time and without notification the credit balance of 

any other account open by the Company with the Bank in order to pay the amounts due.   

If the of cost increases or the decrease of the Bank’s revenues due to market or legal changes, 

the Bank and the Company will negotiate a solution in order to avoid additional costs incurred 

by the Bank. If no agreement is reached, the Bank is entitled to request anticipated repayment 

for all the amounts due under the contract. 

Loan contract concluded with BRD Groupe Societe Generale SA – Bistrita Branch (184J) 

On 21 June 2006 the Issuer concluded with BRD Groupe Societe Generale SA – Bistrita branch 

(the “Bank") a loan contract for the amount of EUR 1,034,020 over a period of 84 months from 

the signing date. The loan is contracted in order to purchase 4 commercial areas from SC 

Plastsistem SA. The Company is entitled to waive of all or part of the unused loan amounts in 

advance, by notifying the Bank in advance. The waiver will be irrevocable.  

The Company guaranteed the loan by some mortgages over the real estate properties owned by 

the Company ("Politub" production plant including raw materials warehouse and laboratories – 

LR 6567; maintenance workshop, accumulators station, auto parts shop – land book 6565; 

power setting station, warehouses, railways, crane ways – land book 6564; warehouse, 

compressed air installation – land book 6533; land for construction – land book 6798; access 

road land book 6626; platform for PVC pipes storage PVC – land book 8952; in-city land– land 

book 8940; land and production base – land book 8753) and identified in the contract, as well as 

on the real estate properties to be acquired out of the loan. The Company undertakes to create a 

pledge over all the goods acquired from the loan in favour of the Bank.  
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The Company undertakes to request the Bank’s prior approval in case of organisational and 

statutory changes, not to alienate the guarantees based on which the loan was granted, not to 

alienate without the Bank’s consent essential assets and not to give the guarantees set in favour 

of the bank a rank equal to that of any guarantee to be set in favour of other parties.  

Moreover, the Bank is entitled to debit any time and without notification the credit balance of 

any other account open by the Company with the Bank in order to pay the amounts due.   

If the cost increases or the Bank’s revenues decrease due to market or legal changes, the Bank 

and the Company will negotiate a solution in order to avoid additional costs incurred by the 

Bank. If no agreement is reached, the Bank is entitled to request anticipated repayment for all 

the amounts due under the contract. 

Loan contract concluded with BRD Groupe Societe Generale SA – Bistrita Branch (144J) 

On 22 May 2006, the Issuer concluded with BRD Groupe Societe Generale SA – Bistrita branch 

(the “Bank") a contract for an overdraft amounting to EUR 450,000, due 18 May 2008. The 

purpose of the loan is to finance the Issuer’s supply-production-sales activities. The loan can 

also be repaid in advance, with the Bank’s approval and in accordance with the terms negotiated 

therewith.   

The Company guaranteed the loan by some mortgages over the real estate properties owned by 

the Company ("Politub" production plant including raw materials warehouse and laboratories – 

LR 6567; maintenance workshop, accumulators station, auto parts shop – LR 6565; power 

setting station, warehouses, railways, crane ways – LR 6564; warehouse, compressed air 

installation – LR 6533; land for construction – LR 6798; access road LR 6626; platform for 

PVC pipes storage PVC – LR 8952; in-city land– LR 8940; land and production base – LR 

8753) and identified in the contract. Also, Teraplast undertook under a contract to allow the 

Bank to create a security over the balances of all its current or future accounts opened with 

BRD-GSG Bistrita. 

According to the Contract, the Issuer undertakes to bear a possible increase in the loan costs 

resulted from legal changes subsequent to the contract signing date. At the same time, the Bank 

has the right to automatically debit the Issuer’s current account in case of Issuer's failure to pay 

the due amounts in time.  

The Company undertakes to request the Bank’s prior approval in case of organisational and 

statutory changes, not to alienate the guarantees based on which the loan was granted, not to 

alienate without the Bank’s consent essential assets and that no member of the Group may 

encumber any of the assets.  

The contract also provides that, if the Issuer has weaker financial results than those initially 

considered, the Bank is entitled to change the loan conditions or even to request the anticipated 

repayment of all the amounts resulted from the contract. Moreover, if any financial debt of a 

group member is not paid in time, the Bank is entitled to request the anticipated repayment of 

the loan.  
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Loan contract concluded with BRD Groupe Societe Generale SA – Bistrita Branch 

(69J/2005) 

On 15 March 2005, the Issuer concluded with BRD Groupe Societe Generale SA – Bistrita 

Branch (the "Bank") a loan contract with a total value of EUR 357,760 over a period of 48 

months, due 5 March 2009. The loan is used for acquiring 10 production lines of thermo-

insulating windows, software licenses and plots of land in Brasov and Targu Mures. 

According to the contract, the Bank grants the Issuer a 12-month grace period, during which the 

interest rate and the related fees are calculated based on the balance of the loan used. The 

repayment is made by the debiting by the Bank of the Company’s current account according to 

a repayment schedule. 

The loan is secured by the Issuer with mortgages on some of the company’s properties 

identified in the contract ("Politub" production plant including raw materials warehouse and 

laboratories – land book 6567; maintenance workshop, accumulators station, auto parts shop – 

land book 6565; power setting station, warehouses, railways, crane ways – land book 6564; 

warehouse, compressed air installation – land book 6533; land for construction – land book 

6798; access road land book 6626; platform for PVC pipes storage PVC – land book 8952; in-

city land– land book 8940; land and production base – land book 8753) as well as by creating a 

pledge on some machines owned by the Company (apparently expired). At the same time, the 

Company will submit to the Bank the necessary documents and will agree to create a pledge on 

the goods purchased out of the loan within 30 days from using the loan. Otherwise the contract 

is terminated de jure. Moreover, the Company pledged the premises registered in the land book 

– 2682/N/Mureseni and 2556/N/Mureseni.  

The Company undertakes to require the Bank’s prior agreement in case of organisational and 

statutory changes, not to sell the guarantees based on which the loans were granted, not to sell 

without the Bank’s agreement essential assets and that no group member is allowed to 

encumber any asset. 

The contract also states that, if the Issuer has weaker financial performance than those initially 

considered, the Bank has the right to change the lending conditions or even to request the 

anticipated repayment of all the amounts resulted from the contract. At the same time, if the 

loan is not repaid or if any amount due is not paid upon maturity, the Bank may automatically 

debit the Company’s current account and, after 30 days, even the Company’s deposit accounts, 

thus the Company losing the interest thereon.  

Loan contract concluded with HVB Bank Romania SA 

On 13 July 2004, the Issuer concluded a loan contract with HVB Bank Romania SA (the 

"Bank") for 3 facilities of 1,400,000 USD, 700,000 EUR and 1,520,000 EUR. Facility 1 will be 

used for refinancing a loan granted by CITIBANK Romania (such facility being fully repaid at 

present), Facility 2 will be used for financing the current working capital needs and Facility 3 

will be used for financing 75% of the acquisition price of certain equipment and the land 

described in the contract.  
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Maturities are different depending on the facilities: Facility 1 was granted over a period of 3 

years from the signing date and is due is no later than 15 July 2007. Facility 2 is due on 28 

February 2006, and Facility 3 is due after four years from the signing date but no later than 28 

February 2009.  

The loan contracted is guaranteed for each facility separately, as follows: 

(i) Facilities 1 and 3 are guaranteed with a 1st ranking mortgage over a building located in 

Bistrita (LR - 11002) and evaluated at EUR 1,085,000, a 1st ranking mortgage over a 

plot of land located in Timisoara and financed with Facility 3, as well as a pledge over 

the equipment acquired with Facility 3. At the same time, the Company assigns with 

full title guarantee the amounts to be received from the contracts with the Company’s 

debtors agreed by the Bank; 

(ii) Facility 1 is also guaranteed with a pledge over the equipment acquired with the loan 

that was refinanced by Facility 1; 

(iii) Facility 2 is guaranteed with a pledge over the inventories of finished products at the 

Company’s headquarters and the balances of all the current or future accounts held by 

the Bank. At the same time, the Company’s present and future trade receivables are 

assigned as guarantee.  

According to the contract, the Company undertakes to circulate through the bank a minimum of 

35% of its yearly circulation. 

Loan facility contract concluded with Raiffeisen Bank SA (0021/M/2005) 

On 17 May 2005, the Issuer concluded with Raiffeisen Bank SA (the "Bank") a loan facility 

contract with a total value of EUR 1,048,000 in order for the Company to finance a project for 

the restoration and changes to some premises, another construction project and the acquisition 

of the equipment necessary therefor. 

The loan is repaid in equal monthly instalments, and is due on 31 August 2012.  

The Issuer guarantees the loan by a first ranking mortgage on the premises located in Brasov 

(land book - 1257), a first ranking mortgage over the new building constructed on the respective 

land, a pledge over the equipment to be purchased with the loan, a security and assignment over 

all the rights resulting from the construction agreements having as object the performance of the 

project and the amounts available in the Issuer’s accounts. At the same time, the Issuer assigns 

to the Bank, as guarantee, all its rights of any nature resulted from the construction contracts 

concluded for carrying out the project financed by means of the loan agreement.  

The Issuer must notify the Bank in writing regarding any circumstance which might change the 

current status as of the signing date of the contract. 

According to the contract, the Company commits itself to circulate through the accounts opened 

with the Bank at least 20% of its sales.  
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Contract for the provision of financial investment services concluded between SC Teraplast 

SA, Raiffeisen Capital & Investment SA and Raiffeisen Services SRL  

On 23 July 2007, the Issuer concluded with Raiffeisen Capital & Investment SA and Raiffeisen 

Services SRL (the "Advisor") a contract for the provision of financial investment services for 

the preparation, development and completion of the process for the Company’s shares to be 

accepted to trading on Bucharest Stock Exchange.  

According to the contract, the Advisor undertakes to provide to the Issuer assistance regarding 

the schedule, structure and strategy of the public offering, to issue recommendations to the 

company regarding the final price and the number of Shares, to carry out all the necessary steps 

for obtaining the approvals from the relevant authorities. 

In exchange for the services mentioned above, the Issuer will pay the Consultant a retainer fee, 

in two instalments, on the date of submission of the preliminary Prospectus and on the date on 

which the final Prospectus is submitted. If, for reasons independent from the Advisor, the 

contract is extended over a period exceeding 6 months, the Company will pay an additional 

monthly fee. At the same time, upon completion of the project, the Issuer will pay the Advisor a 

success fee of  2% of the subscribed value.  

In case of unilateral termination of the contract by the Issuer, the Advisor will be entitled to a 

compensation fee of EUR 100,000. 

Financing agreement concluded with the Management of the Environmental Fund 

On 27 September 2007, the Issuer concluded a financing agreement with the Management of the 

Environmental Fund for a non-reimbursable financing amounting to RON 242,333.7 (VAT 

excluded), representing 30% of the value of the eligible expenses incurred with the 

implementation of the re-technologisation project of the terracotta production sector. According 

to this agreement, the re-technologisation project must be finalised within 8 months as of the 

signing date. The Issuer must create in favour of the Management of the Environmental Fund a 

security under the form of a promissory note in blank issued by the Issuer. The contract period 

is of 5 years starting the re-technologisation project completion date; during this period, the 

Issuer shall deliver the Management of the Environmental Fund a report on the activity every 6 

months.   

Politub 

Loan contract concluded with Banca Comerciala Romana SA (359/18409) 

On 14 April 2006 Politub concluded with Banca Comerciala Romana SA – Bistrita-Nasaud 

Branch (the "Bank”) a loan contract amounting to RON 700,000 for financing the production 

activity. According to the contract, the loan will be fully repaid on 12 April 2008, the interest 

rate being 8.75% per year.  

The interest may increase by up to 20% per year. If this value is exceeded, the Bank is obliged 

to notify Politub with respect to the new interest rate. If within 10 days from Politub's 

notification the latter does not fully repay the loan and the related interest, the Bank has the right 

to consider that the Company accepted the new interest rate. 
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The loan is guaranteed by 2 pledges over the credit balances of the current accounts opened with 

the bank and over some fixed assets identified in the contract (2 extrusion lines for polyethylene 

pipes). 

Politub thereby undertakes to maintain the level of receipts carried out through the Bank at a 

minimum of 50% of the total receipts during the entire lending period. Otherwise the Bank is 

entitled to increase the interest or the non-usage fee.  

Plastsistem 

Loan contract with Banca Comerciala Romana SA, Bistrita Branch (351/22045/27.05.2005) 

On 27 May 2005, Plastsistem concluded a loan contract Banca Comerciala Romana SA, Bistrita 

Branch as lender (the "Bank"), for an investment loan of RON 530,600 for financing the 

Company’s investment plan for 2005.  

The loan is granted for a period of 5 years and Plastsistem has a grace period of 12 months. 

According to the contract, the loan will be repaid in 47 equal instalments of RON 11,054 and a 

last instalment of RON 11,062. The interest rate agreed in the contract is valid only if the 

Company circulates through the Bank at least 80% of its total receipts. 

The loan is guaranteed by Plastsistem with a first ranking mortgage over a building and related 

land in Bistrita (production and storage plant – LR 7794) and a second ranking mortgage over a 

construction and related land in Bistrita (warehouse and production area – LR 7309). Moreover, 

the loan is also guaranteed by a pledge over the credit balances of Plastsistem accounts and sub-

accounts opened with the Bank  

Loan contract with HVB Tiriac Bank SA (27.11.2006)  

On 27 November 2006, Plastsistem concluded with Banca Comerciala HVB Tiriac SA (the 

"Bank") a loan contract for the amount of EUR 3,300,000 for financing or refinancing up to 

75% of the construction of the plant for thermo-insulating panels of Crainimat, Sieu-Magherus. 

The loan is granted by a first ranking mortgage over 4 plots of land with areas of 8800 square 

meters, 7800 square meters, 6100 square meters and 2000 square meters located at Sieu 

Magherus, Bistrita county (LR 1238, LR 1554/N, LR 990, LR 1599). According to the 

mortgage contract, Plastsistem also accepted an interdiction to sell, encumber, lease and 

demolish the land mentioned above. The loan is also guaranteed with a first ranking mortgage 

over the construction to be built, the equipment to be acquired from the loan, over the credit 

balance of the current and future accounts opened by Plastsistem with the bank, as well as over 

the receivables resulted from he current and future contracts concluded by Plastsistem with its 

customers with a minimum value of EUR 1,000,000.  

According to the contract, Plastsistem's shareholders undertake not to alienate any ownership or 

separation right in connection to the shares they held in the share capital of Plastsistem without 

the Bank’s prior agreement, which will not be rejected unreasonably. 

At the same time, the contract states that any legal action, foreclosure or similar action initiated 

against Plastsistem, as well as any kind of sequester or encumbrance of the assets pledged as 
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guarantee in this contract will be considered a default by Plastsistem and may lead to the 

cancellation of the entire loan or the request to immediately repay all the amounts due.  

Loan contract with Banca Comerciala Romana SA, Bistrita Branch (637/17.08.2001) 

On 17 August 2001, Plastsistem concluded a loan contract with Banca Comerciala Romana SA, 

Bistrita Branch (the "Bank"), for a credit line of RON 2,999,999. The purpose of the loan is the 

production and trading of polyethylene, PVC, terracotta products and installation of apartment 

micro-systems. 

The loan is secured by the following guarantees: first and second ranking mortgage over a 

building in Bistrita (constructions, technological platforms – LR 6286), third ranking mortgage 

over a building in Bistrita (production and storage plant - LR 7794), second ranking mortgage 

over a building located in Bistrita (warehouse and production area - LR 7309). The loan is also 

guaranteed by a pledge over the credit balances opened by Plastsistem with the Bank and the 

inventories of goods identified in the contract. 

According to the loan agreement, Plastsistem undertakes to maintain the level of receipts carried 

out through the Bank at a minimum of 80% of the total receipts circulated through banks. The 

Bank will check the compliance with this condition on a monthly basis. At the same time, the 

Bank has the right to debit directly Plastsistem accounts with the due amounts without its 

approval. 
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INFORMATION REGARDING THE ISSUER 

History and evolution of the Issuer 

The Issuer was set up in 1992, being organised and functioning as a joint stock company in 

accordance with the Romanian laws. 

In 1992 the Issuer concluded the partnership with the Hungarian company Gemenc Plast Rt 

(subsequently called Marley Magyarorszag Zrt.), with a profile similar to that of the issuer and a 

high technological level. In 1995, the company Gemenc Plast Rt (subsequently called Marley 

Magyarorszag Zrt.) was taken over by the large British company Marley, which, in its turn, was 

acquired by the multinational group Etex in 1999. Thus, the Etex Group, subsequently 

transformed into Aliaxis Group, became a shareholder of the Issuer. 

In 1994 the Issuer was privatised using the MEBO (Management and Employees Buy Out) 

method and, one year later, it privatised its entire share capital. 

The Issuer currently owns several production facilities having rather different objects of 

activity: the PP pipe and fittings plant, the PVC pipe plant, the PVC profile and PVC 

thermosetting graining plant, the PVC profiles and inflexible graining plant, the glass and 

thermo-insulating Orizont joinery plant, the terracotta plant. In addition, there is also the PE 

pipe plant owned by Politub and the thermo-insulating sandwich panels owned by Plastsistem. 

As of the Prospectus date, the Issuer holds interests in the companies SC Plastsistem SA and SC 

Politub SRL, together with them forming the Teraplast Group (see chapter “Teraplast Group”).  

Name, legal status, registered office, period 

The Issuer is organised and functions as joint stock company in accordance with the Romanian 

law under the name SC Teraplast SA, with registered office at 17/1 Romana Str.,  Bistrita, 

Bistrita-Nasaud county. The issuer is registered with the Trade Registry Office under no. 

J6/735/1992 of 1 July 1992 and has the unique registration code 3094980. It was set up for an 

unlimited period of time. The Issuer’s telephone and fax numbers, e-mail address and website 

are: +40263238202, +40263231221, office@teraplast.ro, www.teraplast.ro. 

Object of activity 

According to article 6 of the Articles of Association, the Issuer’s main object of activity is the 

production of plastic articles and the main activity is the production of plastic panels, foils, 

tubes and profiles. At the same time, Issuer’s secondary objects of activity include internal 

trade, services, import-export, constructions. 

Auditors 

According to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Company is subject to the 

following types of financial audit: external audit, internal audit and audits carried out by the 

audit committee within the board of directors. 

The Issuer’s external audit for the years 2004, 2005 and 2006 was carried out by SC Contpriv 

SRL headquartered in Cluj-Napoca, 9 Gavril Muzicescu, Str., registered with the Trade Registry 
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under no. J12/1057/1991, having unique registration code 207287. SC Contpriv SRL is member 

of Romanian Auditors Chamber . 

Following the general meeting of 19 September 2007, SC Contpriv SRL was dismissed from the 

position of external auditor and "SC Deloitte Audit SRL" was appointed instead, with registered 

office in Bucharest, 4-8 Soseaua Nicolae Titulescu, 3
rd
 floor, sector 1, registered with the 

Bucharest Trade Registry under no. J40/6775/1995, having unique registration code 7756924.  

The Group’s external audit according to IFRS for the years 2004, 2005 and 2006 was carried 

out by SC Deloitte Audit SRL. The revision of the Group’s financial statements in accordance 

with IFRS for the six-month period ended on 30 June 2007 was carried out by SC Deloitte 

Audit SRL. Delloitte is member of Romanian Auditors Chamber . 

Starting with 19 September 2007, the Issuer’s internal audit is carried out by SC G5 Consulting 

SRL, a limited liability company headquartered in Dej, 24/2 Alecu Russo Str., Cluj county, 

registered with the Cluj Napoca Trade Registry under no. J12/ 943/2002, having unique 

registration code 14650690. SC G5 Consulting SRL is member of Romanian Auditors 

Chamber. 
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TERAPLAST GROUP 

Group’s structure 

Teraplast Group is composed of the Issuer, its subsidiary SC Plastsistem SA headquartered in 

79 Drumul Cetatii, Bistrita, Bistrita-Nasaud County, Romania (where the Issuer holds 70.42% 

of the share capital) and the entity under a common control, SC Politub SA headquartered in 66-

68 Lucian Blaga Street, Bistrita, Bistrita-Nasaud, Romania (where the Issuer holds 50% of the 

share capital). The Issuer's shareholdings in Plastsistem and Politub have a significant impact on 

the valuation of the patrimony, financial condition and results of the Issuer (please refer to 

Chapters "Selected Financial Information" and  "Issuer's Financial Statements and Results"). 

The diagram below presents the structure of Teraplast Group as of the Prospectus date: 

 

 

 

 

 

Politub 

Politub SRL was set up in 1994 by the Issuer, together with the company Rompetrol SA, each 

holding 50% of the share capital. In 1995 two new shareholders joined the company: Socomo-

Socotub SA of France and Gaz Marine SA of France (subsequently GDF International). 

Subsequent to successive changes of the shareholding, the issuer currently owns 50% of Politub 

which it controls jointly with Socotub which also owns 50%. 

The object of activity of Politub is the production, through extrusion, of tubes and pipes of 

medium and high density polypropylene for transport networks and distribution networks for 

water, natural gas, telecommunications. Sewerage, irrigations and other fluids. 

Plastsistem 

Plastsistem was set up in 1994 as a limited liability company, its sole shareholder being 

Teraplast. In 1996, 49 new shareholders joined the company, resulting in a share capital 

increase and the changing of Plastsistem into a joint stock company.  

The main object of activity of Plastsistem is the production of metallic constructions and of 

component parts of metallic structures. Starting with 2007, Plastsistem commissioned a 

production capacity for thermo-insulating panels with polyurethane foam and a plant of metallic 

confections for plant structures and plate accessories for closures, in order to promote on the 

market a “complete product” for the customer. 

As of 30 June 2007, the Issuer held investments in the following companies: SC Certind SA 

(7.50%) and Parteneriat pentru Dezvoltare Durabila (7.14%) 

TERAPLAST 

POLITUB PLASTSISTEM 

70.42% 50% 
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Information regarding the gaining of the main shareholding in Plastsistem 

According to Competition Law, an economic concentration must be notified to the Competition 

Council if the following conditions are simultaneously observed: (a) the aggregate turnover of 

the two undertakings involved exceeds the RON equivalent of EUR 10,000,000; and (b) there 

are at least two undertakings involved in the operation which each obtain in Romania a turnover 

higher than the RON equivalent of EUR 4,000,000. The turnover will be calculated for the 

financial year previous to the date of the notification according to the instructions issued by the 

Competition Council, and the RON equivalent is calculated at the exchange rate communicated 

by the National Bank of Romania, valid on the last day of the financial year of the year previous 

to the respective operation.  

The economic concentration must be notified to the Competition Council by the party gaining 

control, within 30 days as of the signing date of the legal document leading to the performance 

of such an economic concentration. The notification enters into force on the date when it was 

registered with the Competition Council, except when the information contained in the 

notification is incorrect or incomplete.  

Within 30 calendar days as of the date when the notification came into force, the Competition 

Council: (i) will issue a non-intervention decision (if it considers that the notified economic 

concentration does not fall under the law); (ii) will issue a non-objection decision (if it 

determines that even though the notified economic concentration falls under the law, there are 

no serious doubts regarding the compatibility with a regular competition environment); (iii) will 

decide the initiation of an investigation. 

The Issuer gained a main shareholding of approximately 70.42% of the Plastsistem shares, by 

means of successive acquisitions during March-December 2007. Although, according to the 

calculation of the Issuer the aggregate turnover of Plastsistem and Teraplast exceeded the RON 

equivalent of EUR 10,000,000 and both Teraplast and Plastsistem had in 2006 a turnover of 

more than EUR 4,000,000, the Issuer considered that there was no need to notify the operations 

regarding the purchase of the main shareholding of Plastsistem. In December 2007, the Issuer 

initiated a correspondence with the Competition Council to obtain a confirmation from the 

Council in this respect. At the moment, the Issuer cooperates with the Competition Council by 

supplying the necessary information for the analysis by it of the letter whereby the Issuer 

requested confirmation from the Competition Council on the above mentioned operation.  

If, as a result of supplying information and completing the analysis, the Competition Council 

will consider that the operation should have been notified as a economic concentration, then the 

Issuer may be subject to sanctions under the Competition Law, as follows:  

 (i) omission to notify an economic concentration or to supply incorrect or incomplete 

 information or documents, registrations and evidence, or failure to supply the 

 requested information or documents, is sanctioned with a fine of up to 1% from the total 

turnover obtained by the offender in the financial year previous to the issuing of the 

sanction decision;  

(ii) performing an economic concentration operation which is incompatible with the law 

(an economic concentration which, having as effect the establishment or consolidation 
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of a dominant position, leads or it is likely to lead to the limitation, dismissal or the 

significant distortion of the competition on the Romanian market or only of part of this 

market) is sanctioned with a fine of up to 10% from the total turnover obtained by the 

offender in the financial year prior to the sanctioning of  the respective operation; 

performing an economic concentration operation before a decision is reached by the 

Competition Council, in this respect, or before a derogation be granted by the same 

authority, is also sanctioned with a fine of up to 10% from the total turnover obtained 

by the offender in the financial year prior to the sanctioning of the respective operation. 

The applicable sanction is established on the basis of certain criteria determined in accordance 

with the Competition Law and by secondary legislation, and also on the basis of the seriousness 

and duration of the offence and its consequences on the competition, of the conduct of the 

company which performed the respective operation, etc.  

In accordance with the Competition Law, the validity of any operation of economic 

concentration performed until the Competition Council issues a decision in this respect, depends 

on the decision issued by the Competition Council in accordance with the Competition Law 

with respect to the respective notified economic concentration.  
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DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

Share capital 

As of the Prospectus date, the Issuer had a subscribed and fully paid in share capital of RON 

24,822,990, divided in 248,229,900 nominal dematerialised Existing Shares, with a nominal 

value of RON 0.1. The share capital also includes a cash contribution and a contribution in kind 

of RON 2,430,280. As of the Prospectus date, the Company owns 31 own Shares with a total 

nominal value of 3.1 RON and an accounting value of 3.1 RON. 

Evolution of changes in the Issuer’s share capital 

The table below presents the changes in the Issuer’s share capital since 2004 until present times: 

Date Number of shares Share capital value (RON) 

31 December 2004 121,514 3,645,420 

31 July 2007 248,229,900 24,822,990 

Prospectus date 248,229,900 24,822,990 

Regulations regarding changes in the share capital 

The Issuer’s share capital may be changed in accordance with the Articles of Association and 

the legal provisions in force. The Articles of Association do not provide for conditions 

regarding changes in the share capital more restrictive than those required by law. 

The share capital may be increased by issuing new shares or by increasing the nominal value of 

the existing share in exchange of new contributions in cash and/or in kind. If the share capital is 

increased by contributions in kind, the general meeting deciding this will suggest the delegated 

judge to appoint one or more experts for evaluating such contributions. 

The share capital increase by increasing the shares nominal value may be decided only with the 

vote of all shareholders, unless it is carried out through the incorporation of reserves, benefits or 

issue premiums. 

The share capital may be decreased by: (i) decreasing the number of shares; (ii) reducing the 

nominal value of the shares; (iii) acquiring own shares and then cancelling the same. The share 

capital may also be decreased, when the decrease is not determined by losses, by (i) total or 

partial exemption of the shareholders from the due amounts; ii) return a share of their 

contribution to the shareholders, pro rata with the share capital decrease and calculated equally 

for each share; (iii) other procedures mentioned by law. 

The share capital decrease may be carried out only after two months from the date on which the 

decision was published in the Romanian Official Gazette. 

 

 

 

 



 

   - 159 - 

Acquisition by the Issuer of its own shares 

The Companies Law allows the Issuer to acquire own shares based on the related decision of the 

Extraordinary General Meeting and in compliance with the legal regulations. In the respective 

decision the Extraordinary General Meeting authorises the acquisition of own shares and 

decides the acquisition terms, especially: 

(i) the maximum number of shares to be acquired; 

(ii) their minimum and maximum value (in case of acquiring with certain obligations); as 

well as 

(iii) the period for which the authorisation is granted, which can not exceed 18 months from 

the date on which the decision is published in the Romanian Official Gazette.  

In any case, the nominal value of own shares held by the issuer (or by the other companies 

within Teraplast Group, as stated below) cannot exceed 10% of the subscribed share capital, 

while only unencumbered shares may be acquired. 

The shares acquired by the Issuer will be paid only from the Issuer’s profit to be allocated and 

reserves, save for the legal reserves, as stated in the latest approved financial statements. 

If the Issuer sets a pledge over its own shares, whether directly or through persons acting on its 

behalf but on the Issuer’s account is similar to the acquisition of own shares and will be subject 

to the same restrictions.  

Such restrictions apply, according to the law, also if any of the companies included in Teraplast 

Group acquires Issuer’s shares. 

The restrictions mentioned above will not apply if the acquisition’s purpose was to (i) decrease 

the share capital, (ii) distribute to the issuer’s employees a higher number of own shares when 

distributed within 12 months from the acquisition date; or if the acquisition: (i) was carried out 

with free title over the shares fully unencumbered; (ii) was carried out following a transfer with 

universal title; or (iii) was carried out based on a court decision issued within a foreclosure 

procedure against one of the issuer’s debtors over the fully freed shares. 

Moreover, if the nominal value of own shares acquired according to the paragraph above (unless 

the purpose of the acquisition is the share capital decrease) exceeds 10% of the subscribed share 

capital, the Issuer will have to sell the shares exceeding this quota within three years from the 

acquisition. 

If the Issuer acquires own shares without complying with the restrictions mentioned herein, it 

will be obliged to sell the same within 1 year from the acquisition. 

The sanction for not complying with the selling obligation (within 3 years and 1 year, 

respectively) is to cancel the respective shares, leading to the related decrease of the share 

capital. 
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With respect to the shares obtained by the Issuer, the dividend rights and the voting rights 

related to the shares will be suspended during the entire period in which the issuer holds the 

shares. 

General Shareholders Meetings 

General Shareholders Meetings may be ordinary or extraordinary. The General Meetings take 

decisions regarding the changes in the shareholders’ rights. The Articles of Association do not 

provide for conditions regarding changes in the shareholders’ rights more restrictive than those 

required by law. 

General Shareholders Meetings are convened by the Board of Directors whenever necessary. 

Also, general meetings may be convened upon the request of shareholders representing 

separately or jointly at least 5% of the share capital. 

The general meeting is convened at least 30 days prior to the date of the general meeting or by 

publishing the convening notice in the Romanian Official Gazette and in a newspaper having a 

wide coverage in the city where the Company’s headquarters are located. 

The convening notice must contain the place, date and time of the general meeting, the agenda 

explicitly mentioning all the issues to be debated within the meeting, the reference date for the 

shareholders entitled to be notified and vote within the general meeting, deadline by which the 

powers of attorney may be submitted. When the agenda contains proposals for the amendment 

of the Articles of Association, the convening notice will include the full text of the proposals.  

Ordinary General Meeting 

The Ordinary General Meeting convenes at least once a year, within a maximum of 5 months 

from the end of the financial year and has the following tasks: 

(i) to discuss, approve or change the annual financial statements based on the reports 

submitted by the board of directors and, as the case may be, the auditor and to decide de 

dividends; 

(ii) to appoint and dismiss the members of the Board of Directors; 

(iii) to decide the remuneration for the current period of the members of the Board of 

Directors unless decided in the Articles of Association; 

(iv) to issue an opinion regarding the management of the Board of Directors; 

(v) to appoint and decide de minimum period of the audit contract, as well as to dismiss the 

auditor; 

(vi) to decide the income and expense budget and the activity schedule for the following 

year; 

(vii) decides the pledge, lease or cancellation of one or more of the Issuer’s units. 

The Ordinary General Meeting is valid and may make decisions if, at the first call, the 

shareholders present or those represented hold at least half plus one of the total number of 
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voting rights. Decisions are made based on the majority of the votes cast, while at the second 

call, the meeting may discuss any of the items on the agenda, irrespective of the existing 

quorum, making decisions based on the majority of the votes cast. 

Extraordinary General Meeting  

The Extraordinary General Meeting makes decisions regarding: 

(i) changing the company’s legal status; 

(ii) changing the company’s registered office; 

(iii) changing the company’s object of activity; 

(iv) increasing or decreasing of share capital or its replenishment by the issue of new shares; 

(v) merger or split; 

(vi) anticipated winding-up of the company; 

(vii) conversion of nominative shares into bearer shares or of bearer shares into nominative 

shares; 

(viii) any other change in the articles of association or any other decision that needs the 

approval of the Extraordinary General Meeting. 

The Extraordinary General Meeting is valid and may make decisions if, at the first call, the 

shareholders present or those represented hold at least half plus one of the total number of 

voting rights; for the following calls, decisions may be made if shareholders representing at 

least one quarter of the total number of voting rights are present. Decisions are made based on 

the majority of the votes cast by present or represented shareholders.  

Board of Directors 

According to the Articles of Association, the Issuer is managed by a Board of Directors formed 

of 5 members appointed by the General Meeting by secret vote for a period of 4 years with the 

possibility to be re-elected. At least one of the directors is an independent director. The period 

for which the members of the Board of Directors are elected, as well as their competencies may 

be changed at any time by a decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders.  

The members of the Board of Directors may be elected by cumulative voting method. This 

method states that each shareholder is entitled to assign his/her cumulated votes (the votes 

obtained as a result of multiplying the votes owned by any shareholder, according to the 

participation in the share capital, with the number of directors which are part of the board of 

directors) to one or several persons nominated to be elected in the Board of Directors. Upon the  

request of a shareholder who owns directly or indirectly a participation of at least 10% of the 

share capital, election based on this method will be compulsorily conducted in this manner. 

In case of vacancy of one or more director positions, the Board of Directors will appoint one or 

more provisional directors until the Ordinary General Meeting is held. The Board of Directors 
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elects from its members a President of the Board of Directors who, according to the Articles of 

Association, is also the Issuer’s General Manager.  

The Board of Directors will carry out all the acts necessary and useful for the company’s object 

of activity, except for the ones provided for in the law as being handled by the general 

shareholders meeting and decides with respect to the set-up or cancellation of secondary 

locations. The decisions of the Board of Directors are made based on simple majority rule. In 

case of equality of votes, the president of the Board of Directors will not have the decisive vote 

and the decision subject to the vote will be rejected. 

The Board of Directors may delegate part of its duties to the managers, except for the following: 

(i) decide the Company’s main business and development lines; 

(ii) decide the accounting and financial control system and approve the financial planning; 

(iii) appoint and dismiss managers and decide their remuneration considering the specific 

duties and the company’s economic condition; 

(iv) supervise the activity of managers; 

(v) prepare the annual report, organise the general shareholders meeting and implement its 

decisions; 

(vi) submit the request for the initiation of the Company’s winding-up procedure, according 

to Law 85/2006 regarding winding-up; 

The President of the Board of Directors chooses a president who, among other things, has the 

following duties: coordinates the activity of the Board of Directors and reports it to the General 

Meeting of Shareholders; supervises the good functioning of the company’s bodies; represents 

the company towards third parties and in the court of law except for Company’s representation 

in relation with the Managers, which is carried out by the Board of Directors. 

Managers 

The Board of Directors may delegate the Company’s management to one to three Managers, 

one of them being the General Manager. The decision of the Board of Directors appointing the 

managers will also include their rights and obligations. The Board of Directors delegated the 

Company’s management to a sole General Manager, Mr. Viciu Emanoil Ioan. 

Audit committee 

As of the Prospectus date, the Issuer's Audit Committee is formed of the following non-

executive members of the Board of Directors: Stanean Alexandru and Popa Ioan. For carrying 

out their mandate, the members of the Audit Committee will make investigations and will issue 

recommendations for the Board of Directors, submitting to it regular reports on their activity. 
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LEGAL STATUS OF THE SHARES 

General characteristics of the Shares 

The Issuer’s Existing Shares, as well as those to be issued within the Offering are part of the 

same category of ordinary shares, denominated in RON, nominative and issued in 

dematerialised formed in accordance with Romanian laws. The Issuer’s Shares grant equal 

rights to their holders. The Allotment Rights do not entitle the Investors to the rights granted by 

the Shares as they are presented in this Chapter. 

Rights granted by the Shares 

A company that has its shares accepted to trading should provide equal treatment for all the 

shareholders holding shares of the same category, while the shareholders have the obligation to 

exercise the rights granted by shares in good faith, in compliance with the rightful rights and 

interests of other shareholders and the Issuer’s priority interest.  

Each share subscribed and paid by the shareholders grants them the right to vote in the General 

Meeting, the right to elect and be elected in the Company’s management bodies, as well as the 

right to participate at profit distribution. 

Also, the shares grant the shareholders, among others, the following rights: 

(i) the right to withdraw from the company, in accordance with the applicable legislation;  

(ii) distribution of a part of the Issuer’s net assets in case of liquidation; 

(iii) the right to be represented in the General Meeting by another person, except for the 

directors, by means of a special power of attorney in accordance with NSC regulations; 

(iv) the right to be informed on the Issuer’s activity, the organisation of General Meetings 

and the decisions of its statutory bodies;  

(v) the right to call the General Meeting if they hold at least 5% of the share capital 

separately or jointly.  

Right to vote 

Any share paid gives the right to one vote in the Issuer’s General Meeting of Shareholders. As a 

general rule, the shareholders exercise their right to vote in the General Meeting pro rata with 

the numbers of shares held.  

As an exception from the rule above, after the Shares are accepted to trading, the members of 

the Issuer’s Board of Directors may be elected based on the cumulative vote method. According 

to this method, each shareholder will have the right to distribute the cumulated votes (votes 

obtained following the multiplication of the votes held by any shareholder, according to its 

contribution to the share capital, by the number of the directors who are to be members of the 

Board of Directors) to one or more people proposed to be elected in the Board of Directors. 

The Board of Directors will decide on a reference date for the shareholders having the right to 

be notified and to vote within the General Meeting. This date will also remain valid in case the 
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general meeting is convened again due to lack of quorum. The reference date thus decided will 

be at least 4 days after the publication of the convening notice and will not exceed 60 days 

before the date on which the General Meeting is convened for the first time. 

The shareholders registered on the reference date may participate in General Meetings directly 

or may also be represented by other persons than the shareholders, except for the directors, 

based on a special power of attorney. 

Right to dividends 

Each Share gives the right to dividends. Dividends are distributed to the shareholders pro rata 

with their participation to the paid in share capital.  

According to the Capital Market Law and by derogation from the provisions of the Companies 

Law, in the case of a company the shares of which are traded on a regulated market, the general 

meeting should identify also the shareholders that will benefit, at a certain time, from dividends 

or other rights, as well as the period during which the same will be paid, based on the following 

criteria: 

(i) all the company’s shareholders existing on the registration date, that will be set after at 

least 10 business days from the date of the General Meeting of Shareholders deciding 

the dividend, are entitled to dividends; and 

(ii) the dividend payment period cannot exceed 6 months from the date of the decision of 

the general meeting deciding the dividends. 

If the General Meeting does not decide a deadline, the dividends will be paid within a maximum 

of 60 days from the publication of the respective decision in the Official Gazette. The 

Companies Law states that the company will pay delay penalties for the delay period, according 

to the legal interest rate. 

See also the Chapter “Dividend Policy”. 

Preference right  

The share capital increase by new shareholder contributions will be carried out by granting a 

preference right to the shareholders existing upon the subscription of new shares. Shareholders 

have a preference right when the company issues bonds convertible into shares. 

The preference right can only be exercised within the period decided by the general meeting, 

which cannot be less than one month from the publication of the decision of the General 

Meeting in the Romanian Official gazette. After the expiry of this term, the shares may be 

offered for public subscription. 

Shareholders’ preference right may be limited or cancelled only by a decision of the 

Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting based on the written agreement of the Board of Directors 

stating the reasons of the limitation or cancellation of the preference right. The decision will be 

made in the presence of shareholders representing three quarters of the subscribed share capital, 

based on the majority of votes cast by the present shareholders. 
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Right to participate to an excess in case of liquidation 

Upon liquidation, a company ceases to exist and its share capital is liquidated, by exercising the 

related rights and complying with the related obligations. 

The remaining amounts will be allocated by the liquidators who, at the end of the liquidation, 

will prepare the annual financial statements, as well as the distribution project, showing the part 

of the company’s assets related to each share held in the share capital, accompanied by the 

censors’ report or, as the case may be, by the auditors’ report. The financial statements, signed 

by the liquidators, will be submitted with the Trade Registry Office and will be published in the 

Official Gazette. 

If no shareholder opposes within 15 days from the publication, upon the expiry of this period, 

the financial statements are considered approved by all shareholders, and the liquidators are 

discharged subject to the distribution of net asset. 

Share transfer 

As a general rule, the shares accepted to trading on a regulated market are transferred only by 

means of a transaction on the market. 

The settlement of transactions on the BSE is carried out within three business days calculated 

from the day following (but not included) that on which the transaction was carried out, based 

on the delivery/payment principle. The transfer of the ownership right in the securities register 

is registered on the settlement date. See also chapter "Romanian Capital Market". 

Disclosure obligations 

The shareholders shall, within at most three business days, notify the company, the NSC and the 

regulated market at the same time if the acquisition or sale of securities issued by a company 

accepted to trading on a regulated market determines that the voting rights held in it reach, 

exceed or drop below any one of the limits 5%, 10%, 15%, 20%, 25% 33%, 50%, 75% or 90% 

of total voting rights. See chapter "Romanian Market Regulations". 

Public takeover offerings 

According to the Capital Markets Law, if a person or persons acting together holding directly or 

indirectly more than 33% of the voting rights in a company, they are obliged to launch a 

takeover offering addressing all the shareholders and for all their holdings as soon as possible, 

but no later than 2 months from the date on which the respective quota is reached. See chapter 

"Romanian Capital Market Regulations". 

 

. 
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TAXATION 

The information presented below is a summary of the most important consequences of holding 

and selling securities (shares other than those held in private companies) in terms of the 

Romanian taxation system. 

This information is based on the laws, norms and regulations in force on the date of the present 

Prospectus and is not intended to be a legal opinion or an approach of all the tax issues related 

to the acquisition, holding or selling the Shares traded on a regulated market. 

The Issuer recommends potential investors, before deciding on the opportunity to buy the 

shares, to consult their own financial advisors regarding the specific tax regulations, including 

the conventions for the avoidance of double taxation and possible changes in the tax legislation. 

Taxation of dividends 

Romanian residents 

Natural persons 

Dividends paid by Romanian entities to resident individuals are subject to an income tax of 

16%. The tax is held by the company paying the dividends, when the payment is made. If the 

dividends have not been paid until the end of the year in which the annual financial statements 

were approved, the tax on such dividends is payable until 31 December of the respective year. 

The tax payment is considered final and the natural person is deemed to have fulfilled the tax 

payment obligations.  

Legal persons 

Dividends paid by Romanian legal persons to another Romanian legal person are subject to a 

tax of 10% withheld by the company paying the dividends. The tax is payable until the 25
th
 day 

of the month following that in which such dividends were paid. No tax is paid in the case of the 

dividends paid by a Romanian natural person to another Romanian natural persons if the 

beneficiary of the dividends holds a minimum of 15% (and 10% respectively starting 2009), of 

its interests on the date on which dividends are paid, over a period of more than 2 years until 

payment date thereof. If the dividends have not been paid until the end of the year in which the 

annual financial statements were approved, the tax on such dividends is payable until 31 

December of the respective year. The tax payment is considered final and the natural person is 

deemed to have fulfilled the tax payment obligations. 

The dividends received from the Romanian legal persons are not considered taxable income, 

therefore they are not taken into account upon the computation of the profit tax. 

Non-residents 

Natural persons 

Dividends paid by Romanian legal persons to non-resident natural persons are subject to a tax of 

16%, withheld by the company paying the dividends, when the payment is made. The tax is 

payable until the 25
th
 day of the month following that in which such dividends were paid. 
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Depending on the country in which the natural person has its tax residence, this tax may be 

reduced or eliminated based on a convention for the avoidance of double taxation. In order to 

benefit from the provisions of the convention for the avoidance of double taxation, the non-

resident person should obtain and submit to the dividend payer a tax certificate issued by the tax 

authorities of its country of residence, in original or copy, and the notarised translation thereof.  

Legal persons 

Dividends paid by Romanian legal persons to non-resident legal persons are subject to a tax of 

16%, withheld by the company paying the dividends, when the payment is made. Depending on 

the country in which the foreign legal person has its tax residence, this tax may be reduced or 

eliminated based on a convention for the avoidance of double taxation. In order to benefit from 

the provisions of the convention for the avoidance of double taxation, the non-resident person 

should obtain and submit to the dividend payer a tax certificate issued by the tax authorities of 

its country of residence, in original or copy, and the notarised translation thereof. 

Dividends paid by a Romanian legal person to a legal person resident in another member state 

or to a permanent office of a company of a member state, located in another member state, are 

tax free if the dividend beneficiary holds minimum 15% of the interests in the Romanian legal 

person over a period of more than 2 years until payment date thereof. The minimum holding 

limit will be of 10% starting 2009. As regards the dividend paid before the expiration of the 2-

year term, a tax shall be paid in accordance with the Fiscal Code or the convention for the 

avoidance of double taxation applicable, and the repayment of this tax can be requested by the 

non-resident legal person after the expiration of the 2-year period. 

Taxation of capital gains 

Romanian residents 

Natural persons 

A tax of 1% or 16% of the gains obtained by resident natural persons from the sale of listed 

shares is payable, as follows: 

(i) by applying 16% to the net yearly gains, determined as the balance between the gains 

and losses registered during the respective year following share trading, obtained by the 

resident individual for the shares sold within a period of less than 365 days from the 

acquisition date. The loss or profit shall be determined as the balance between the sale 

price and the weighted average price to which the intermediaries' commissions shall be 

added;  

(ii) by applying 1% to the net yearly gains, determined as the balance between the gains and 

losses registered during the respective year following share trading, obtained by the 

resident individual for the shares sold within a period exceeding 365 days from the 

acquisition date. 

The intermediaries have the obligation to determine, withhold and pay a 1% tax of the profit 

obtained from each transaction, and such tax shall represent an advance payment. The natural 

person must file an income statement based on which the tax authority will calculate the annual 
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tax due and payable, and the amount of the annual tax repayable to the resident natural person 

respectively, until the 15th of May of the year following the year in which such income was 

obtained. The tax decision issued by the tax authority shall take into account the tax withheld by 

the intermediaries which shall be considered an advance payment of the tax due. The balance 

shall be payable within 60 days as of the date the tax decision is communicated to the tax payer. 

The losses registered at the end of the year from the securities trading are not carried over to the 

next fiscal years. 

Legal persons 

The gains obtained by a Romanian legal person from the sale of shares held in a Romanian legal 

person are part of its taxable income, to which the 16% quota is applied. 

Non-residents 

Natural persons 

Gains obtained by non-resident natural persons from the sale of shares held in a Romanian legal 

person are subject to the Romanian income tax, according to the regulations applicable to the 

Romanian legal persons. A non-resident natural person can appoint a proxy or a fiscal 

representative (Romanian natural or legal person) which shall fulfil the tax payment and 

statement obligations. 

Depending on the country in which the foreign legal person has its tax residence, this tax may 

be reduced or eliminated based on a convention for the avoidance of double taxation. In order to 

benefit from the provisions of the convention for the avoidance of double taxation, the non-

resident person should obtain and submit to the dividend payer a tax certificate issued by the tax 

authorities of its country of residence, in original or copy, and the notarised translation thereof. 

Legal persons 

The gains obtained by a non-resident legal person from the transfer of shares held in a 

Romanian legal person are subject to the Romanian income tax, of 16%. 

A non-resident legal person which obtains capital gains may appoint a proxy or a fiscal 

representative in Romania, which shall fulfil the tax payment and statement obligations.  

Depending on the country in which the foreign legal person has its tax residence, this tax may 

be reduced or eliminated based on a convention for the avoidance of double taxation. In order to 

benefit from the provisions of the convention for the avoidance of double taxation, the non-

resident person should obtain and submit to the intermediaries a tax certificate issued by the tax 

authorities of its country of residence, in original or copy, and the notarised translation thereof. 

If the non-resident legal person holds the shares through a permanent office in Romania, the 

profit obtained by such a permanent office – including, if applicable, gains from the sale of 

shares – will be subject to the Romanian income tax, of 16%. With respect to the permanent 

office, the non-resident legal person will have tax obligations similar to those of the residents. 
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Other taxes and fees 

VAT 

Transactions with share are expressly exempted from value added tax. 
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ROMANIAN CAPITAL MARKET 

The presentation below of the Romanian capital market is for information purposes only and 

should not be considered as legal advice and should not lead to the conclusion that it represents 

the entire relevant information on the Romanian capital market that is of interest or might be of 

interest for an investor. 

Introduction 

The history of the Romanian capital market according to the modern meaning of the word goes 

back in 1994 when, following the Government’s initiative to restructure and modernise this 

sector, Law no. 52 of 7 July on securities and stock exchanges was adopted. BSE, the main 

regulated market in Romania, was set up on 24 April 1995 by a decision of the NSC,which was 

set-up according to Law no. 52 of 1994. 

The wish to harmonise the Romanian legislation in the field with the one of Western European 

countries and Romania’s efforts to accede to the EU led to various amendments to the capital 

market legislation. Thus, in 2002, the Emergency Ordinance no. 28 regarding securities, 

financial investment services and regulated markets was adopted, part of a wider legislative 

framework, that replaced the law issued in 1994. 

The harmonisation efforts continued and, on 28 June 2004, the Capital Market Law was adopted 

and entered into force on 29 July 2004. The Capital Market Law meant a return to the 

homogenous regulation of all the issues connected to the capital market. 

At present, besides Capital Markets Law, the NSC adopted a series of instructions and 

regulations that, together with EU regulations, apply directly to our legal system, forming the 

secondary legislation. 

NSC 

NSC is an autonomous administrative authority with legal form regulating and supervising the 

capital market, regulated markets of commodities and derivatives, and also the related 

institutions and operations. The NSC is managed by 7 members out of which a president, 2 

vice-presidents and 4 commissioners, which may be appointed or dismissed by the Parliament 

in the common meeting of the two Chambers. 

The fundamental objectives of the NSC are to establish and maintain the framework necessary 

for the development of regulated markets, to promote trust in regulated markets and the 

investment in securities, to ensure the protection of operators and investors against disloyal, 

abusive and fraudulent practices, to promote the correct and transparent functioning of the 

regulated markets, to ensure the integrity of the regulated markets, to establish the standards of 

financial strength and honest practice on the regulated markets, to adopt the measures necessary 

for avoiding systemic risk on regulated markets, to prevent the influence on equal information 

and treatment of the investors or their interests. 
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Central Depository 

SC Depozitarul Central SA is the legal entity in the form of a joint stock company, organised 

according to Companies Law, authorised and supervised by the NSC that supplies depository, 

register, clearing and settlement services in connection to the transaction with financial 

instruments and also other operations related thereto as defined by the Capital Market Law. The 

Central Depository is the administrator of RoClear (Romanian Clearing-Settlement, Custody, 

Depository and Registry System) payment system assuring funds clearing and the settlement of 

transactions with financial instruments, according to the legal provisions. 

All the categories of securities traded on a regulated market or within an alternative trading 

system, including the Shares, will be mandatory submitted to the Central Depository in order to 

perform the securities' operations in a centralised manner and maintain records of such 

operations. The securities accepted in the Central Depository system are dematerialised and 

registered in electronic accounts, according to the legal provisions in force. 

BSE 

SC Bursa de Valori Bucuresti SA, as market operator, manages two types of regulated markets, 

according to the provisions of the Capital Market Law: (i) the spot market and (ii) the futures 

market. 

The spot market is structured in three sectors: (i) Equity Sector divided in categories depending 

on the type of securities (shares or certain rights) and also depending on the quality of the 

respective securities (1
st
 tier, 2

nd
 tier, 3

rd
 tier and International tier); (ii) Debt Notes Sector 

including corporate bonds, municipal bonds, mortgage bonds and other lending instruments and 

(iii) Undertakings for the Collective Investments Sector. 

Additional information regarding the BSE and other services such as daily quotations and other 

general information on the companies listed on the BSE may be found at www.bvb.ro.  

Shares admission to trading 

The legal terms to be complied with for a company to be accepted to trading on a regulated 

market mainly refer to aspects regarding the company that is requesting the admission for 

trading its shares. 

Thus, the company requesting to be accepted for trading must (i) be established and function 

according to the legal provisions in force; (ii) have an anticipated capitalisation of at least the 

RON equivalent of EUR 1,000,000 or, to the extent that the value of the capitalisation cannot be 

anticipated, to have the capital and reserves, including the profit or loss of the latest financial 

period of at least the RON equivalent of EUR 1,000,000, calculated according to the reference 

exchange rate communicated by the National Bank of Romania on the date of the application 

for admission to trading and (iii) have functioned in the last three years prior to the application 

for admission to trading and have elaborated and communicated the financial statements for this 

period, according to legal provisions. 

The NSC may also approve the admission to trading of the shares belonging to companies that 

do not comply with the criteria mentioned above if it considers that: (i) there will be an 
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appropriate market for the respective shares and that (ii) the issuer is capable to comply with the 

continuous and periodical information requirements resulted form the shares admission to 

trading and the investors have the necessary information so as to evaluate the respective 

company and shares accurately, in case that, following the analysis, the NSC considers that a 

certain issuer may prejudice the investors; interests, the securities of the respective issuer will 

not be accepted for trading. 

In order to be accepted to trading, the Shares must (i) be registered with the NSC, (ii) be freely 

transferable and fully paid, (iii) issued in dematerialised form, registered in an account and (iv) 

25% of the shares must be distributed to the public. In order to be accepted to trading, the 

Shares must also be registered with the Central Depository. If a share issue to the public prior to 

the admission to trading, such an admission to trading may take place only after the end of the 

subscription period and closing of the offering. The application for admission to trading on a 

regulated market must cover all the shares of the same class that were already issued. 

For a company to be registered with the BSE it is necessary that the Issuer: (i) be a company 

that carried out a public offering for the sale of shares in order to be accepted to trading based 

on an Offering prospectus approved by the NSC; (ii) submit to the BSE all the documents 

requires and pays the fees due to the BSE, (iii) appoint two people that will keep permanent 

contact with the BSE; (iv) comply with the terms and conditions of the commitment for 

accepting and maintaining the shares to trading. 

Moreover, for each qualitative share category separately, additional requirements exist in the 

BSE– Market Operator Code that the Issuer must fulfil in order for its shares to be accepted to 

trading within the respective category. 

Allotment Rights admission to trading 

In order to admit the Allotment Rights to trading on BSE, these rights must either be registered 

with NSC or be freely transferable, issued in dematerialised form and evidenced by book entry, 

and the Issuer must file all the documents requested with BSE, pay all due tariffs to BSE in 

accordance with its rules and ensure it has no outstanding liabilities towards BSE. 

 Allotment Rights admission to trading is performed under a request to BSE accompanied by the 

Prospectus as approved by NSC, by the certificate of registration with NSC of the Allotment 

rights, and other documents requested by BSE in accordance with its own regulations. 

The registration certificate for the Allotment Rights is issued by NSC based on a request 

delievered by the Issuer, and on a notification regarding the Offer results.   

Trading and settlement 

The commencement date of trading the Allotment Rights can be established as follows: (i) the 

calendar date calculated by adding two business days to the date of receipt of the notification 

from the Central Depository, whereby the same notifies BSE that the technical operations 

related to the registry of the holders of the Allotment Rights were completed; (ii) the calendar 

date jointly agreed by the Issuer and BSE executive management  and which cannot be agreed 

earlier than after two Business Days as of receipt of the notification of the Central Depository. 
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The last trading day fof the Allotment Rights will be calculated by adding two business days to 

the date of receipt by the BSE from the Central Depository of the notification regarding the 

receipt by the Issuer of the complete documentation with respect to the share capital increase 

operation. BSE will communicate the last trading day in its own system at least one Business 

Day in advance. 

The Allotment Rights will be withdrawn from trading at their maturity dates. The maturity date 

of the Allotment Rights is the date when the rights cease to exist by way of registration of the 

Shares with the Central Depository, after the prior registration of the Capital Increase with the 

Trade Registry.  

The transfer of the ownership right over the Shares takes place on the settlement date, in the 

clearing-settlements system managed by the Central Depository. The settlement of transactions 

in the Central Depository system is carried out based on the delivery against payment system, 

according to which the Shares are delivered only if the payment of the related amounts is made, 

usually on the third business day from the transaction date. The ownership transfer is registered 

by debiting/crediting the share accounts.  

As an exception from the principle according to which the Shares accepted to trading on a 

regulated market can be transferred only through a transaction on the market, there are certain 

cases in which the Central Depository may operate direct ownership transfers over the shares as 

an effect, among others, of: (i) successions; (ii) exit; (iii) assignment by the issuer of its own 

shares to its employees; (iv) when the issuer obtains its own shares if the shareholders that do 

not agree with the decisions of the general shareholders meeting leave the company, according 

to the legal provisions in force; (v) merger, split or liquidation; (vi) formation/increase of share 

capital of companies, other that the ones the shares of which are traded on the capital market 

and than the financial investment services companies or asset management companies, by 

contribution in kind representing shares issued by companies accepted to trading, evaluated 

according to Companies Law; (vii) enforcement of a final and irrevocable court decision with 

executory title; (viii) request for transfer from the name of one spouse on the name of both 

spouses, as joint holders of the securities, in certain conditions; (ix) other transfers of rights 

according to special laws or the regulations in force, with the express approval of the NSC. 

The direct ownership transfers over the Shares will be operated by the Central Depository 

within three days from the submission of the application and the complete documentation for 

each case separately. 

Trading volume 

In 2006, the yearly value traded on the BSE (listed or not-listed shares, bonds) was of 

approximately EUR 3.03 billion. At the end of 2006, the total capitalization of the listed 

companies reached 21.4 billion. The capitalization has increased up to a value ten times bigger 

than the one registered in the last four years dur to the developments and increased of the 

market value of the companies included in the 1st tier (Source: BSE).  
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CAPITAL MARKET REGULATION 

The presentation below regarding the regulation of the Romanian capital market is for 

information purposes only and must not be interpreted a legal advice or be deemed as 

representing the entire relevant information with respect to the regulations of the Romanian 

capital market which is or which might be of interest for investors. 

Introduction 

The Romanian capital market is mainly regulated by the Capital markets laws and NSC 

regulations such as Regulation 1/2006 regarding issuers and operations with securities, 

Regulation 2/2006 regarding regulated markets and alternative trading systems. These include a 

series of requirements that have to be complied with by a company accepted to trading or its 

shareholders. 

Reporting obligations on privileged information 

A company admitted to trading must disclose privileged information by means allowing the 

public fast and complete access and a correct and in real time assessment of the respective 

information. Privileged information is precise information that was not made public and is 

directly or indirectly connected to one or more issuers of securities and which, if public, might 

have a significant effect on the price of the respective securities or the price of derivatives. 

Such information must be included in the reports sent to the NSC and BSE, without delay, but 

without exceeding 24 hours from the occurrence of the respective event or the date on which 

such information is communicated to the issuer and published in the NSC electronic newsletter. 

At the same time, the information will be made available to the public on NSC website 

(www.cnvmr.ro). Moreover, any significant change in privileged information already made 

public should be transmitted to the NSC and BSE without delay, but without exceeding 24 

hours from the occurrence of the respective change and must be published in the same 

newspaper with national coverage that published the initial information or, in case other media 

were used, the change will also be made public using the same media. 

An issuer may delay the public disclosure or privileged information in order not to harm its own 

interests on condition that such a delay does not mislead the public, while the issuer may keep 

such information confidential. In this case, the company must inform the NSC without delay 

regarding its decision to delay the publication of relevant information. 

At the same time, according to the Capital Market Law, companies accepted to trading must 

make public (and inform the NSC), without delay, no later than 48 hours, any new events 

occurred in its activity that were not made public and that may lead to changes in the share price 

sue to the effect of such events on the issuer’s patrimony and financial condition or activity. 

The Issuer is obliged to observe the reporting obligations mentioned in this section – "Reporting 

obligations regarding privileged information" – also during the trading period of the Allotment 

Rights. 
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Shareholdings reporting  

In case an individual or an entity, directly or indirectly, acquires or sels shares in a company 

admitted to trading located in Romania, it must simultaneously notify NSC, BSE and the issuing 

company with respect to the acquisition or sale of a significant interest. The obligation to notify 

begins when the sale or purchase of securities issued by a company accepted to trading make the 

voting rights held by a person reach, exceed or drop below one of the limits of 5%, 10%, 15%, 

20%, 25%, 33%, 50%, 75% or 90% of total voting rights. The notice to the company, NSC or 

BSE must be made within ten business days from the date on which the share holder (i) a) is 

aware of the acquisition or sale or the possibility to cast the votes or, considering the 

circumstances, should have been aware, irrespective of the date on which the acquisition, sale or 

possibility to cast the votes become effective, or (ii) is aware of the operations (other than the 

acquisition or sale) leading to reaching, exceeding or dropping below the limits mentioned 

above. 

The notice obligations mentioned above are also applicable to an individual or entity that holds, 

directly or indirectly, securities giving it the right to acquire shares with voting rights attached, 

already issued by an issuer the shares of which are accepted to trading on a regulated market. 

Transactions carried by the members of the company management 

People in charge of management within a company admitted to trading, as well as people 

closely connected with them must notify the NSC and the company with respect to any 

transactions they carried out with the company’s shares or derivatives or other securities based 

on the company’s shares. The intermediary of such transactions will immediately notify the 

operator of the regulated market. Such information is usually published by the BSE on the 

website www.bvb.ro.  

Notice of transactions carried out by the company 

A company accepted to trading that buys or sells its own shares will make this public, together 

with the number of shares it holds as soon as possible, but no later than 4 trading days from the 

acquisition or sale date following which the company reaches, exceeds or drops below the limit 

of 5% or 10% of voting rights. 

Periodical notices 

According to Romanian law, listed companies are obliged to make public and transmit to the 

NSC, at least on a yearly basis, a document containing all the information made public within 

the last 12 months. 

Moreover, the companies accepted to trading must comply with the periodical obligations of 

financial reporting. The company must make public its yearly financial report at least within 4 

months from the end of the financial year. Moreover, the companies will make public the half-

yearly reports (for the first six months) and quarterly reports. All the reports mentioned above 

must be available to the public over a period of 5 years. 

 



 

   - 176 - 

Equal treatment for all shareholders 

Companies must assure equal treatment for all shareholders. This provision refers to the fact 

that companies must make available to the shareholders the information necessary so as to allow 

them to exercise their rights, including information regarding general shareholders meeting, 

dividend Allotment and distribution or issuance of new shares. 

Market abuse  

Capital Market Law defines market abuse as a transfer of privileged information or market 

manipulation. 

A person with access to privileged information is whether a member in the company’s 

management or administration or other supervision body of the issuer or that has access to 

information due to its profession, occupation, responsibility or its quality of shareholder. Any 

person obtaining privileged information illegally will be also treated as a person with access to 

privileged information. Any such person with access to privileged information using the 

privileged information on its own account or in another person’s account by buying or selling 

securities or by an offer or recommendation to a third party, or that allows the access to such 

information to third parties without being obliged to may be sanctioned with maximum 5 years 

of imprisonment. 

Market manipulation refers to the transactions or orders that give or might give false signals or 

that are misleading in connection to the demand, offer or price of securities or that maintain, by 

the action of one or more persons acting together, the price of one or more securities at an 

abnormal or artificial level, unless the person that traded or issued the orders had good reasons 

for acting in that way and the transactions and order are according to the accepted market 

standards. Market manipulation includes the disclosure of information by means of media, 

including internet or other means, transmitting or possible to transmit false or misleading 

signals or news, in case the person who disclosed the information knew or should have known 

that the information was false or misleading. A person breaching the provisions regarding 

market manipulation may be sanctioned with maximum 5 years or imprisonment. 

The issuers are obliged to keep a record of the people employed by them and who have access 

to privileged information, regularly or occasionally. The issuers are also obliged to permanently 

update this register and to submit it to the NSC upon its request 

Mandatory takeover bids 

According to Capital Market Law, when, following an acquisition, a natural/legal person or 

several persons acting together hold, directly or indirectly, more than 33% of the voting rights in 

a company, such persons are obliged to launch a public takeover bid addressed to all 

shareholders and for all their shares. The law states that the mandatory public takeover bid must 

be launched as soon as possible, but no later than 2 months from the date on which the 

respective holding is reached. 

The obligations to launch a takeover bid will not apply in case the holding of 33% of the voting 

rights was obtained following an exempted transaction, such as: following share transfers 

between a mother company and its branches or within the branches of the same mother 
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company or following a voluntary public takeover addressed to all the holders of the respective 

shares and for all their holdings. 

Until the mandatory public bid, the rights related to the shares exceeding 33% of the voting 

rights over the issuer are suspended, and the respective issuer and the persons with whom it acts 

in concert can no longer acquire shares of the same issuer, among other operations. 

The person launching the public takeover bid is obliged to elaborate and make public an 

offering document including all the information necessary so as to allow the company’s 

shareholders to make a pertinent decision. The offering document thus elaborated must be 

approved by the NSC. 

The price offered within the bid will be at least equal to the highest price paid by the offeror or 

the persons with whom it acts in concert during the 12-month period prior to the bid. In case the 

price cannot be set in this was, the offered price will be determined according to NSC 

regulation, considering at least the following criteria: (i) weighted average trading price for the 

last 12 months prior to the offering; (ii) value of the company’s net asset value according to the 

latest audited financial statements or; (iii) value of the shares resulted from an assessment made 

by an independent evaluator, according to the international evaluation standards. 

The provisions above are not applicable to persons that, prior to the Capital Market Law 

becoming applicable, obtained more than 33% of the voting rights, according to the laws in 

force when the respective limit was reached. 

The persons mentioned above will carry out a mandatory offering only if, after the entering into 

force of the Capital Market Law, they increased their holdings so as to reach or exceed 50% of 

the voting rights of the respective issuer. Until the public offering, the rights related to the 

acquired shares that exceed 50% will be suspended, and the respective shareholder and the 

persons with whom it acts jointly can no longer acquire shares of the same issuer through other 

transactions. 

Sell out/Squeeze out 

The sell out from a company admitted to trading is regulated by both Companies Law and 

Capital Markets Law. 

According to Companies Law, the shareholders that do not agree with the decisions made by the 

general meeting regarding: (i) changing the main object of activity; (ii) relocating the 

company’s registered office abroad; (iii) changing the company’s form; (iv) merger or split have 

the right to sell out and obtain from the company the value of the shares they hold, at an average 

value determined by an authorised expert. The evaluation costs will be borne by the company. 

At the same time, Capital Markets Law states that the shareholders of a company admitted to 

trading that do not agree with the decisions of the general meeting regarding mergers or splits, 

triggering the Allotment of shares that are not admitted to trading on a regulated market have 

the right to sell out and obtain from the company the value of the share according to the 

Companies Law. 
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In addition, Capital Market law stipulates that, in case of a public takeover bid addressed to all 

shareholders and for all their holdings, the offeror has the right to request the shareholders that 

did not subscribe within the offering, and the latter are obliged to sell the respective shares to it 

at a fair price if in one of the following cases:  

(i) holds shares representing more than 95% of the share capital (95% of the total number 

 of shares with voting right and 95% of the voting rights); 

(ii) within a public takeover bid addressed to all shareholders and for all their holdings it 

acquired shares representing more than 90% of the ones targeted through the offering 

(90% of the total number of shares with voting right and 90% of the voting rights within 

the bid). 

The right mentioned above can be exercised within three months as of the date the bid is closed. 

The shareholder exercising such right and the intermediary submit for the NSC's approval a 

notice regarding the squeeze out procedure that includes at least the information provided in 

annex 27 of NSC Regulation  1/2006, together with the following documents: (i) the valuation 

report prepared in accordance with the law by an independent expert (if the case may be); a 

closed an sealed envelope containing the price at which the squeeze out will be performed. 

The price offered within a mandatory public takeover bid, as well as within a voluntary take 

over offering, by means of which the offeror acquired through the subscriptions within the 

offering shares representing at least 90% of the targeted shares is considered to be a fair price. 

In case of a mandatory takeover bid the price in the context of such bid is considered a fair 

price. Otherwise, the price will be determined by an independent expert, according to the 

international evaluation standards. The assumption of the fair price is valid only in case the 

offeror exercises its right within 3 months from the completion of the respective offering.  

The offeror must make public its intention to exercise the right (to request the shareholder not 

subscribing with the offering it launched to sell the respective shares) by means of an 

announcement approved by the NSC in advance. 

Together with the offeror’s right to request the sell out by minority shareholders, in case of a 

public take over offering addressed to all shareholders and for all their holdings, a minority 

shareholder has the right to request the offeror holding more than 95% of the share capital to 

buy its shares at a fair price. The fair price is set according to the same regulations for the 

offeror’s right to request the sell out by minority shareholders. 
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFERING 

Statistic data regarding the Offering and its period 

 “Type of Offering” The initial primary public Offering for the sale of shares issued by the 
Issuer, with a fixed number of securities offered and an increase 
option. 

“Securities subject to the 

Offering” 

Nominative shares issued in a dematerialised form, ordinary, 

indivisible and freely traded as of the date of their acceptance to 

trading under the First Tier Equities and Allotment Rights issued in 

dematerialised form, registered into accounts and freely transferable 

from the date of admission to trading, issued in relation to the Capital 

Increase of the Issuer, as approved by Resolutions no. 4 as of 19 

September 2007 and no. 2 as of 28 February 2008 passed by the 

Issuer's Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting.  

The Issuer will apply for admission to trading on BSE of the Offered 

Shares and of the Allotment Rights. 

“Investors” The Shares Offered by Teraplast are offered to all the investors 

interested in subscribing to the Offering, upon observance of the legal 
applicable provisions. 

The Issuer has no knowledge of main shareholders’, Board of 
Directors members’, management’s or any other person’s intention to 
subscribe in the Offer more than 5%. 

“Number of Offered 

Shares” 

A number of 49,645,980 shares representing 20% of the Issuer's 

current share capital, with the overallotment option for a number of 

12,411,495 shares (5% of the current share capital). 

„The Number of 

Allotment Rights attached 

to the Offered Shares” 

A number of 49,645,980 Allotment Rights attached to the Offered 

Shares, with the increase option for a number of 12,411,495 Allotment 

Rights attached to the Offered Shares.  

“Nominal value of the 

offered shares” 

0.1RON /share 

“The value of the 

Offering” 

If all the Shares pertaining to the Offering are sold, the value of the 
Offering is RON 49,645,980 – 69,504,372 , the gross funds obtained 

pursuant to the Offering are expected to amount to approximately 
RON 49.65 mil. – 69.50 mil., and the net funds are expected to amount 

to approximately RON 48.4 mil. – 67.8 mil. after the deduction of fees 
and other costs related to the Offering and paid by the Issuer 
(including the fee of the Manager and the charges payable to NSC). 

“Offering Price Range” The Offering Price Range is the price range provided in this document 
comprised between RON 1 and RON 1.4, within which limits the 
Offering Price will be set. 

„The Offering Price” The final Offering Price decided by the Issuer, after consultation with 

the Manager, based on the list containing all the valid subscriptions, as 
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follows: 

If the number of the Subscribed Shares is higher than the number of 

Offered Shares, the valid subscriptions registered will be ordered 

within a unique list, in descending order of the subscription price; 

The Issuer will decide the Offering Price, after consultation with the 

Manager, the Issuer's objective being that of obtaining an over-

subscription level of at least twice the number of shares from the 

Offering, in view of obtaining a number of subscribers as high as 

possible, so that the Issuer could maximise its chances of being 

admitted to the First Tier Equity.  

If it fails to obtain an over-subscription level of at least twice the 

number of shares from the Offering, the Offering Price is established 

at the level of the lowest subscription price.  

All the subscriptions performed during the Offering Period at a price 

higher or equal to the Offering Price will be accepted at Offering 

Price. For the avoidance of any doubt, no subscriber will be obliged to 

buy, under any circumstance, Shares at a higher price than the price 

offered by way of its subscription. 

Subscriptions performed at a lower price than the Offering Price will 

not undergo Allotment process, namely they will be considered as 

automatically rejected by the Issuer.   

„Announcement of the 

Offering Price” 

The Manager will notify the investors, the NSC and the BSE with 
respect to the Offering Price on the Allotment Date. The 
Announcement of the Offering Price will be published on the Issuer's 

website www.teraplast.ro, on the Manager's website www.rciro.ro 

and as a press release on the BSE website under www.bvb.ro, and 
also in the BSE's trading system.   

“ISIN code” ISIN code of the offered Shares: ROTRPLACNOR7 

“CFI code” CFI code of the Shares: ESVUFR 

“Offering Period” The Offering takes place between 7 April 2008 and  17 April 2008, 

namely 9 business days (with the possibility of extending it in 
accordance with the regulations in force). Any amendment to the 
terms of the Offering will be made upon the Issuer's request with the 
NSC's prior approval and will me made public through an 
advertisement. The Offering is irrevocable during the entire Offering 
period. The Offering may be suspended in accordance with the capital 
market legislation. 
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“Preferential subscription 

rights” 

Not applicable. 

“Allotment Rights” Until the date of the Capital Increase registration related to the Offered 

Shares with the Trade Registry and the Central Depository, the 

respective Offered Shares will be represented by Allotment Rights. 

The Allotment Rights are issued attached to the shares and are 

assigned, subsequent to the closing of the Offering Period, to the 

persons who have subscribed, fully paid Shares within the Offering 

and participated to the Allotment. 

The number of Allotment Rights is equal to the number of newly 

issued Shares, subscribed and fully paid within the Offering. The 

Allotment ratio will be one (1) Share per one (1) Allotment Right. 

The Allotment Rights will be automatically transformed into Shares 

upon the registration of the Capital Increase with the Trade Registry 

and the Central Depository.   

For a more detailed description of the Allotment Rights, please see the 

"Risk Factors" Chapter – "Risk factors related to the Shares and to the 
Allotment Rights". 

“Subscriptions” During the entire Offering Period, the Investors’ subscription orders 

will be taken over at the headquarters of the Manager and the 

Distribution Group, between 9:00 – 15:00 hrs. Romanian time, while 

on the last day of the Offering the subscription orders will be taken 

over between 9:00-13:00 hrs.  The deadline for subscriptions is 17 

April 2008. After the deadline expires, no subscriptions from investors 

will be accepted. 

The Manager will register all the subscriptions received, if these 

comply with the validity terms, using the BSE Offering Market 

electronic system (POF market – “Public Offerings”). 

The subscriptions are opposable to the Issuer as of the registration of 

the subscription with the Orders Register. The deadline for registering 

the subscriptions in the Orders Register is 21 April 2008. 

The Manager is obliged to ensure that, for each order placed on the 

primary market, the funds corresponding to the subscription were 

credited to one of the accounts stated in the Offering announcement or 

will be settled by a custodian bank. 

The difference between the subscribed amount and the value of the 

shares allocated at the Offering Price, less the banking transfer 

commissions via payment order charged by Raiffeisen Bank, will be 

reimbursed to the subscribers within a maximum of five Business Days 

from the Offering closing date.   

“Allotment method” The Allotment of Shares among the subscribers with subscriptions at a 

higher or at equal price to the Offering Price will be performed at the 
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end of the Subscription Period.  

If the number of subscribed Shares is lower or equal to the number of 

Offered Shares, each subscriber will receive the number of subscribed 

Shares. If the number of subscribed Shares is higher or equal to the 

number of Offered Shares, the Offered Shares will be allocated 

proportionally ("pro rata") to the number of subscribed shares. 

If during the process of pro rata Allotment, fractions of Shares should 

be allocated, the fraction Allotment will be made according to the BSE 

algorithm. 

The unsubscribed Offered Shared will be cancelled. 

“Cancellation of 

subscription orders” 

Subscriptions performed within the Offering are irrevocable. If the 
present Prospectus is subject to an amendment, the subscriptions may 

be withdrawn within a maximum of three Business Days from the date 
on which the respective amendment to the present Prospectus was 

published. An investor may withdraw its subscription by filling in a 
revocation form at the unit where the subscription was made. 

“Method of Payment of 

the Subscribed Offered 

Shares” 

The subscriptions can be made at the headquarters of  the Manager and 

the Distribution Group based on the payments made to the following 

accounts: 

RO93RZBR0000060004592833, opened with Raiffeisen Bank 

Bucharest Branch, beneficiary Raiffeisen Capital & Investment S.A., 

for the subscriptions made at the branches of Raiffeisen Bank SA; 

RO13RZBR0000060002087405, opened with Raiffeisen Bank 

Bucharest Branch, beneficiary Raiffeisen Capital & Investment S.A., 

for the subscriptions made through Raiffeisen Capital & Investment 

S.A.; 

All the subscriptions will be made according to the subscription 

procedures described at Chapter "Subscription procedures and 
distribution network" of this Prospectus. 

“Successful closing of the 

Offering” 

The Offering will be considered successfully closed if, on its closing 
date, minimum 70% of the Offered Shares were subscribed. In case 

this condition is not complied with, the subscriptions will be rejected 
and the amounts paid during the Subscription Period will be returned 
to the Investors within maximum 5 business days from the offering 
closing date. 

“Notice to Investors” Within five Business Days from the date on which the NSC issues the 

reply to the notice regarding the resultd of the Offering, the Manager 
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will publish an announcement in two national coverage newspapers 
regarding the subscription factor within each tranche. 

“Manager” Raiffeisen Capital & Investment SA 

“Intermediation Method” Best execution method. 

“Guarantee of 

subscription” 
The offering is not guaranteed. There is no commitment of the 
Manager or of another entity to subscribe any part of the Offering in 
case it remains unsubscribed. 

“Shareholders Register” The Shareholders Register kept by the Central Depository, according 
to the provisions of the register contract, which is to be concluded 
between the Issuer and the Central Depositary. 

“Transaction date” The transaction date is 21 April 2008. 

 

“Settlement of 

Subscriptions made 

within the Offering” 

 

The settlement will be carried out through the Central Depository 
clearing-settlement system within three Business Days from the 
Transaction Date. 

“Irrevocable commitment 

not to sell by majority 

shareholders” 

Mr Goia, Mr Viciu, Marley Magyarorszag Zrt. and SIF Banat Crisana, 
as shareholders irrevocably undertook towards the Issuer, during a 
period of 180 days from the Offering commencement date not to sell 

or not to dispose of in any way whatsoever, gratuitously or in 
exchange of money, not to conclude sale-purchase pre-agreements, not 
to offer, pledge, allocate, grant any kind of options or any other rights, 

not to assume any obligation to sell or not to conclude any contract 
regarding or in connection to the shares held in the Issuer’s share 

capital or any rights related thereto. 
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

 

Documents made available to the investors 

The Prospectus will be available for reading at the Issuer’s headquarters of 17/A Romana Str., 

Bistrita, Bistrita-Nasaud county and at the Manager’s headquarters and Distribution Group 

members, as well as on the Issuer’s website www.teraplast.ro, Manager's website 

www.rciro.ro, Distribution Group’s website www.raiffeisenbank.ro.  

The Prospectus contains the following appendixes: 

1. Articles of Association of  Teraplast  SA Bistrita; 

2. Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting Resolution no. 2 as of 28 February 2008 

regarding the Offer approval, minute no. 39/ 28.02.08 and convocation  notice;   

3. Copy of Official Gazette  publishing  Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting 

Resolution no. 2 /28 February 2008; 

4. Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting Resolution no. 4 as of 19 September 2007 

regarding the Offer approval, minute no. 147767/ 19.09.07 and convocation  notice;   

5. Copy of Official Gazette  publishing  Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting 

Resolution no. 4 /19 September 2007; 

6. ss 

7. IFRS consolidated financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2004 and  

December 31, 2005- audited; 

8. IFRS consolidated financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2006- 

audited; 

9. IFRS consolidated financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2007- un-audited; 

10.  Auditor’s approval for including the audit reports in the Prospectus; 

11. The underwriting form model; 

12. Revocation form for the underwriting of the securities offered; 

13. Certificate in proof issued by the Trade Register Office (“ORC”);   

14. Copy of the intermediation and distribution contract 

15. Self-binding statement by the issuer’s legal representative highlighting the 

significant changes, if any, in the Issuer’s economic and financial position; 

16. Self-binding statement by the intermediary’s legal representative that there are 

no conflicts of interests in the intermediation of this public offer; 

17. Approval from Bucharest Stock Exchange for admiting  the shares with Allotment 

rights attached of to trade;  

I.24. 
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SUBSCRIPTION PROCEDURES AND DISTRIBUTION NETWORK 

Subscription procedures 

The subscription within the present Offering can be made during the entire Offering Period 

(starting 07.04.2008 and until 17.04.2008 inclusively, namely 9 business days). The subscription 

can be made at the headquarters of the Manager and at the branches of the Distribution Group, 

presented in this Prospectus (see Section “Distribution Network”). The subscriptions can be 

made during the offering period on a daily basis, between 9:00 - 15:00, Bucharest time, from 

Monday to Friday during the entire subscription period, namely 9:00-13:00 Bucharest time in 

the last day of the Offering. The subscription is made by filling in the Subscription form that 

will be available at the headquarters of the Manager and at the local units of the Distribution 

Group. 

The minimum subscription is for a whole number of shares so that the value of one subscription 

is at least equal to the value of 1000 shares.  

Prior to filling in the Subscription Form, the Investors that do not pay through a custodian bank 
should transfer the amount corresponding to the subscribed Shares to one of the Collection 

Accounts (see section on “Collection Accounts”).  

The payment order must contain the personal number / tax registration code and name of the 
Investor. The account from which the payment is made must be the account out of which the 

subscription amount is effectively transferred to the Collecting Account. The amounts 
transferred by the investors representing the value of the subscribed shares will not bear interest 
in favour of the investors. 

The investors that do not have a bank account and wish to subscribe through Raiffeisen Bank 
network shall open a bank account with Raiffeisen Bank. This account will be mentioned in the 

Subscription Form as the current account where the amounts corresponding to the Shares left 
unallocated will be transferred (in case of over subscription) and/or as a consequence of the 

subscription cancellation (if applicable). In this case, the amount corresponding to the 
subscribed Shares will be transferred from this current account to one of the Collection 
Accounts by payment order. No payment in cash directly to the Collection Account is accepted 

for the subscription through Raiffeisen Bank local network. 

The value of the subscribed shares must be paid in full or guaranteed in full by a custodian in 
order for the subscription to be valid. Thus, the subscribers must take into account possible 
transfer fees and, if applicable, account opening fees. 

Resident or non-resident natural persons and resident legal persons that are not customers of 
Raiffeisen Capital & Investment SA and do not use the services of a custodian agent may 
subscribe through the branch network of Raiffeisen Bank SA or Raiffeisen Capital & 

Investment SA.. 

Resident or non-resident natural persons  and resident legal persons that are customers of 
Raiffeisen Capital & Investment SA and do not use the services of a custodian agent may 

subscribe through the branch network of Raiffeisen Bank SA or Raiffeisen Capital & 
Investment SA. 

Resident or non-resident natural persons that use the services of a custodian agent may 
subscribe only through Raiffeisen Capital & Investment SA. 
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Resident or non-resident legal persons that are customers of Raiffeisen Capital & Investment 
SA and use the services of a custodian agent may subscribe only through Raiffeisen Capital & 
Investment SA.. 

Non-resident natural persons that are not customers of Raiffeisen Capital & Investment SA and 
do not use the services of a custodian agent may subscribe through Raiffeisen Capital & 
Investment SA. 

Subscription through Raiffeisen Bank or Raiffeisen Capital & Investment network 

 

Natural persons, resident or not resident in Romania, and resident legal entities which have not 

concluded a custody agreement with a local custodian may subscribe through the branch 

network of Raiffeisen Bank SA or Raiffeisen Capital & Investment. 

In order to be accepted, the Subscription Forms must be accompanied by the following 

documents, depending on each type of investor: 

1. Natural persons who subscribe for themselves: 

� Identity card (original and copy); 

� Passport (original and copy) or staying permit (original and copy) – for Investors 

foreign citizens; 

� Proof of making the payment by bank transfer (copy of the green copy of the 

payment order or confirmation of electronic payment). 

2. Natural persons who subscribe for another natural person: 

� Identity card (original and copy) of the representative and identity card (copy) of 

the represented person; 

� Passport (original and copy) or staying permit (original and copy) of the 

representative and copy for the represented person – for Investors foreign citizens; 

� Proof of making the payment by bank transfer (copy of the green copy of the 

payment order or confirmation of electronic payment); 

� Authentic special power of attorney (copy and original) (issued especially for the 

subscription of the securities subject to the public offering) or authentic general 

power of attorney. 

3. Natural persons who subscribe for under aged children: 

� Identity card (original and copy) of the person subscribing for the under aged child; 

� Passport (original and copy) or staying permit (original and copy) of the person 

subscribing for the under aged child – for foreign citizens; 

� Proof of making the payment by bank transfer (copy of the green copy of the 

payment order or confirmation of electronic payment); 
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� Birth certificate or identity card of the under aged child (for under aged children 

between 14-18 years) (copy and original); 

� Legal document establishing the tutelage (copy and original), if applicable. 

4. Incapable natural persons (without judgment): 

� Identity card (original and copy) of the person subscribing for the incapable person;  

� Passport (original and copy) or staying permit (original and copy) of the person 

subscribing for the incapable person – for foreign citizens; 

� Identity card of the incapable person (original and copy); 

� Proof of making the payment by bank transfer (copy of the green copy of the 

payment order or confirmation of electronic payment); 

� Legal document establishing the trusteeship (copy and original). 

5. Resident legal persons who subscribe for themselves: 

� Copy of the tax registration code. 

� Certificate of facts issued by the Register of Commerce Issue (original, issued at 

least 10 business days prior to the subscription date); 

� Original power of attorney for the person signing the Subscription Form (unless the 

company’s legal representative) or the document proving the quality of company’s 

legal representative; 

� Proof of making the payment by bank transfer (copy of the green copy of the 

payment order or confirmation of electronic payment); 

�  Identity card or passport or staying permit (original and copy) of the person 

subscribing for the legal person. 

6.  Natural persons authorised to carry out economic activities or family associations: 

� Authorisation decision issued by the local City hall (copy); 

� Copy of the tax registration code; 

� Proof of making the payment by bank transfer (copy of the green copy of the 

payment order or confirmation of electronic payment). 

� Identity card or passport or staying permit (original and copy) of the person signing 

the Subscription Form. 

� Original power of attorney for the person signing the Subscription Form (in case 

another person subscribes). 
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7. Professionals authorised to carry out independent activities: 

� Free practice decision or authorisation (copy); 

� Fiscal registration certificate (copy); 

� Proof of making the payment by bank transfer (copy of the green copy of the 

payment order or confirmation of electronic payment); 

� Identity card or passport or staying permit (original and copy) of the person signing 

the Subscription Form; 

� Original power of attorney for the person signing the Subscription Form (in case 

another person subscribes). 

8. Intermediaries registered in NSC Register (as per art. 2, point 14 and art. 3 paragraphs 
(2) of the Capital Markets Law no. 297/2004) who subscribe on behalf of investors 

natural persons, their customers: 

� Identity card or passport or staying permit (copy) of the represented person. 

� Identity card (original and copy) of the employee delegated by the intermediary 

registered in the NSC Register to subscribe at the local units of Raiffeisen Bank 

network; 

� Special power of attorney (original and copy) by which the represented natural 

persons grants a power to the respective intermediary registered in the NSC register 

to subscribe the securities subject to the present public offering. A template power 

of attorney may be found on the intermediary’s website; 

� Original power of attorney signed and stamped by legal representative of the 

intermediary registered in the NSC Register for the employee delegated by the 

intermediary registered in the NSC Register to subscribe at the local units of 

Raiffeisen Bank network. A template power of attorney may be found on the 

intermediary’s website; 

� Certificate issued by the Register of Commerce Office specifying the legal 

representatives of the intermediary registered in the NSC Register (issued at least 

10 business days prior to the subscription date); 

� Copy of the Document attesting Registration in the NSC Public Register; 

� Proof of making the payment by bank transfer (copy of the green copy of the 

payment order or confirmation of electronic payment). For each subscription a 

separate payment will be made having a value at least equal to the one of the 

respective subscription. 

Each payment order is equal to a subscription and cumulating several payment orders for one 
single valid subscription is not possible. 
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In case the amount sent exceeds the value of the subscription, the Subscription Form is 
validated only for the number of subscribed Shares. In case the amount sent is lower than the 
subscribed amount, the Subscription Form is invalidated for the entire amount subscribed. 

 

Subscription through Raiffeisen Capital & Investment SA 

Subscription made by legal and natural person customers of RCI, which do not use a custodian 

agent 

The documents necessary for the subscriptions made by this category of subscribers be valid 

are: 

• Signed subscription form (and stamped if the case may be) by the subscriber. 

• Proof of making the payment of the amount subscribed or of the difference between the 
subscription’s value and the available amount of the respective subscriber in RCI Clients 
Account. Payment will be made to RCI Clients Account. 

Subscription made by natural and legal persons that are RCI customers and use a custodian 

agent 

The documents necessary for the subscriptions made by this category of subscribers be valid 

are: 

• Signed subscription form (and stamped if the case may be) by the subscriber;  

• Written statement of the custodian agent saying that it assumes to carry out the settlement 
for the subscribed shares. 

The documents will be submitted at RCI headquarters  in original or will be sent by fax or e-
mail subscrieri.teraplast@rzb.ro The Issuer and Investors understand and agree that RCI is not 
responsible in case of not accepting/ not processing of subscriptions received by fax/ mail 

caused by any disjunctions in sending and receiving the subscription forms and related  
documents, that can result in:  

(a) not receiving parts or all subscription forms and related documentation; or 

(b) partial or total unreadable; 

(c) lack or partial/ total alteration of data sent by e-mail; or  

(d) rejection of the data sent in electronic format motivated by virus suspicions of any kind; 

or 

(e) data sent in electronic format from e-mails considered or assimilated by dedicated 

application as being “spam messages”; 

(f) any attempt of phishing, successful or not, affecting the data sent;   

(g) any other technical issue. 

No confirmation of receive, fax confirmation, read-receipt confirmation automatically 

generated will be considered.   

Subscription made by legal persons that are not RCI customers 

Resident legal persons that have a custodian and non-resident legal persons may subscribe 

through RCI. For these types of investors, the documents necessary for the subscriptions made 
to be valid are the following: 

1. Resident legal persons using the services of a custodian agent: 
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� Copy of the tax registration code. 

� Certificate issued by the Register of Commerce Office (original, issued at least 10 

business days prior to the subscription date). 

� Original power of attorney for the person signing the Subscription Form (unless the 

company’s legal representative) or the document proving the quality of company’s 

legal representative. 

� Identity card or passport or staying permit (original and copy) of the person 

subscribing on behalf of the legal person. 

� Form from the local custodian agent “Request for granting access to the participant 

to the account opened by the custodian agent” for trading securities on Arena 

system – Annex II 16 to the Code of the Central Depository. 

� Written statement of the custodian agent saying that it assumes to carry out the 

settlement for the subscribed shares. 

2. Non-resident legal persons: 

� Copy of the tax registration number and/or certificate attesting the registration of 

the legal person (copy of the original and authorise translation into Romanian). 

� Excerpt from the Register of Commerce or a similar registration authority, 

regarding shareholders, share capital and legal representatives of the legal person. 

� Power of attorney for the person signing the Subscription Form (unless the 

company’s legal representative) or the document proving the quality of company’s 

legal representative (copy of the original and authorised translation into Romanian). 

� Copy of the identity documents of the person making the subscription as 

representative of the non resident legal person. 

� (in case there is no contract with a custodian) Proof of making the payment by bank 

transfer (copy of the green copy of the payment order or confirmation of electronic 

payment). 

� (in case there is a contract with a custodian) form from the local custodian agent 

“Request for granting access to the participant to the account opened by the 

custodian agent for trading securities on Arena system – Annex II 16 to the Code of 

the Central Depository. 

� (in case there is a contract with a custodian) written statement of the custodian 

agent saying that it assumes to carry out the settlement for the subscribed shares. 

Subscription made by natural persons that are not RCI customers 

Natural persons that are not RCI customers and use the services of a custodian may subscribe 

through RCI based on the following documents: 
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� Identity card (copy) of the person subscribing.  

� Passport (copy) or staying permit (copy) of the person subscribing – for Investors 

foreign citizens; 

� Subscription form signed by the subscriber. 

� Form from the local custodian agent “Request for granting access to the participant to 

the account opened by the custodian agent for trading securities on Arena system – 

Annex II 16 to the Code of the Central Depository. 

� Written statement of the custodian agent saying that it assumes to carry out the 

settlement for the subscribed shares (original). 

In case a natural person of this category empowers another person to make the subscription, the 

necessary documents will be the ones stated in the section “Subscription within Raiffeisen Bank 

branch network”. 

Note: in case of Investors without legal status, the identification documents of the management 

company will be submitted. 

Other information regarding the subscription 

Subscriptions are validated only if the amounts representing the value of the subscription reach 
one of the Collection Accounts by the end of the banking day on 17.04.2008 or if the subscriber, 

within the same period, submits the written statement of the custodian agent saying that it 
assumes to carry out the settlement for the subscribed shares. RCI is not held liable in case that, 
for reasons outside its control, the Collection Accounts are not effectively credited with the 
amounts representing the value of the subscriptions until the end of the banking day of the last 
day of the offering period. 

The subscriptions that are not validated will not be considered in the Allotment process. 

Upon the final calculation of the Allotment indices, the Subscription Forms for which the 

money for the requested Offered Shares are not in the respective Collection Account or for 
which the subscription procedures were not complied with will not be considered. The investors 
whose Subscription Forms were not considered according to the paragraph above will be 

returned the paid amounts to the account mentioned in the subscription form. 

The Collection Accounts for the subscription amounts carried out through the Distribution 
Group will be posted at all the subscription points. 

By signing the Subscription Form, the Investors confirm having read the present Prospectus and 
having made the subscription according to the terms included in the present Prospectus. 

The subscriptions made within this Offering are irrevocable. In case the present Prospectus is 

subject to an amendment, subscriptions may be withdrawn within maximum three Business Day 

from the date on which the respective amendment to the present Prospectus was published. An 
investor may withdraw a subscription by filling in a Revocation Form at the unit where the 
subscription was made. 

Collection accounts 

The Collection accounts for the subscriptions are the following: 

For subscriptions through Raiffeisen Bank S.A: RO93RZBR0000060004592833 opened with 

Raiffeisen Bank S.A., Bucharest Branch, beneficiary Raiffeisen Capital & Investment S.A. 
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For subscriptions through Raiffeisen Capital & Investment SA: RO13RZBR0000060002087405 
opened with Raiffeisen Bank S.A., Bucharest Branch, beneficiary Raiffeisen Capital & 
Investment S.A. out of which they will be transferred on a daily basis by RCI to a Collection 
account aimed at keeping track of such subscriptions. 

Collection accounts do not bear interest in favour of the investors. 

Anticipated closing of the Offering 

In case the Offering is fully subscribed before the end of the subscription period, the Manager, 

based on the Issuer’s approval, may close the Offering in advance on condition that the 
subscription period lasts at least five Business Days. 

Reimbursement of the amounts representing the difference between the amount paid when 

subscribing and the one of the Allocated Shares  

The Investors will be returned the difference between the amount paid for the subscribed shares 
and the value of the allocated shares, less the bank transfer fees by payment order charged by 

Raiffeisen Bank within maximum five Business Days from the Closing Date, to the current 
account mentioned by the Investor in the Subscription Form. In case the subscriber mentions 
several accounts for returning the amounts, RCI reserves the right to return the related amounts 

to only one account, any of the ones mentioned by the subscriber in the subscription forms. 

Settlement of the Allocated Shares 

The settlement will be made through Central Depository settlement system on the Settlement 
Date (three Business Days from the Transaction Date).  The Investors that paid in one of the 

Collection Accounts but did not subscribe in the Offer will send a written request to RCI asking 
for reimbursement.   

In case the subscriber mentions several accounts for returning the amounts, RCI reserves the 

right to return the related amounts to only one account, any of the ones mentioned by the 
subscriber in the subscription forms.  

In case the Offering is unsuccessfully closed, the Investors will be returned the amount paid for 
the subscribed shares less the bank transfer fees by payment order charged by Raiffeisen Bank 
within maximum five Business Days from the Offering closing. 

Within five Business Days from the date on which the NSC issues the answer to the notice 
regarding the results of the Offering, the Manager will publish an announcement in two national 
newspapers communicating the subscription factor. 

Reasons independent from the Issuer or the Intermediary may lead to delays in processing the 

data and in elaborating and sending the notice regarding the Offering results to the NSC. As a 
consequence, neither the Distribution Group nor the Issuer will be liable for delays in the return 

of the amounts due to the investors in case the Offering is oversubscribed. In this case, the 
Issuer has no liability towards the investors. 
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Distribution network 

Raiffeisen Bank distribution network: 

Nr 

crt 
County Name City Address Phone 

1 ALBA Alba Branch  Alba Iulia 
Pta. I.C. Bratianu nr. 

20 

0258.811.271; 

0372.225.800; 

2 ARAD Arad Branch  Arad 
Str. Andrei Saguna 

nr.1-3 

0257.280.583; 

0257.307.600; 
0372.225.700; 

3 ARGES Arges Branch  Pitesti Str. Craiovei nr. 42 
0248 208.300; 

0372.224.800; 

4 BACAU Bacau Branch Bacau 
Str. Dumbrava Rosie 

nr.2 

0234.206.400;  
0372.223.400; 

0372.800.876; 

5 BIHOR Bihor Branch Oradea Str. Nufarului nr.30 
0259.406.800; 

0372.225.900; 

6 
BISTRITA 

NASAUD 
Bistrita Branch  Bistrita 

Str. Liviu Rebreanu 

nr.51 

0263.202.300; 

0372.226.300; 

7 
BISTRITA 

NASAUD 
Nasaud Branch  Nasaud Str. Granicerilor nr. 20 

0263.361.083; 

0723.801.186; 

8 BOTOSANI Botosani Branch  Botosani Calea Nationala nr. 68 

0231.511.356; 

0231.607.300; 

0372.223.100; 

9 BRAILA Braila Branch  Braila 
Str. Calea Calarasilor 

nr.34 

0239.606.120; 

0372.223.900; 

10 BRASOV Brasov Branch  Brasov 
Str. Mihail 

Kogalniceanu nr.3 

0268.308.300; 

0372.226.800; 

11 BRASOV Fagaras Branch  Fagaras Str. Republicii nr.27 
0268.213.614; 
0372.707.115; 

12 BUCURESTI Bucuresti Branch  Bucuresti 

Calea Victoriei nr 155, 

bl D1, tronson 6, 

parter, sect 1 

012.209.36.00; 

0372.707.046; 

13 BUCURESTI Lujerului Branch  Bucuresti 
B-dul Iuliu Maniu nr. 

16, bl. 14 sect 6 

021.430.03.49; 

0372.707.281; 

14 BUCURESTI Sebastian Branch  Bucuresti 

Str.Calea 13 

Septembrie nr.221-225, 

sect 5 

021.410.65.29 

021.410.54.00; 

0372.707.245; 

15 BUCURESTI Mosilor Branch  Bucuresti 
Calea Mosilor nr. 221 

bl 31A, corp A, sect 2 

021.210.84.09; 

0372.707.315; 

16 BUCURESTI Iancului Branch Bucuresti 
Sos Iancului nr.2, bl 

113C 

021.250.00.12; 

0372.707.333; 

17 BUZAU Buzau Branch  Buzau 
Str. Nicolae Balcescu 

nr.2 
0238.720.293; 
0372.223.800 

18 CALARASI Branch Calarasi Calarasi 
Str. Progresului nr. 27 

bl BBB 

0242.312.620; 

0372.224.200; 

19 
CARAS 

SEVERIN 
Branch Resita Resita 

Pta. 1 Decembrie 1918 

nr. 4 

0255.212.017; 

0372.225.500; 

20 CLUJ Branch Cluj Cluj-Napoca 
Str. Aviator Badescu 

nr.1 
0264.207.300; 
0372.226.400; 

21 CLUJ Manastur Branch  Cluj-Napoca 
Str. Bucegi nr.11, ap 

1A 

0264.452.361; 

0372.707.567; 

22 CLUJ Marasti Branch  Cluj-Napoca 
Str. Aurel Vlaicu nr.2, 

ap nr.91C 

0264.449.898; 

0372.707.337; 
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Nr 

crt 
County Name City Address Phone 

23 CONSTANTA Constanta Branch  Constanta Str. Traian nr. 51 
0241.606.300; 
0372.224.100; 

24 CONSTANTA Mangalia Branch  Mangalia 
Sos. Constantei nr.30, 

bl H1 a, parter 

0241.751.443; 

0372.707.234; 

25 COVASNA 
Sfantul Gheorghe 

Branch  

Sfantu 

Gheorghe 

Str. 1 Decembrie 1918 

nr.33-37 

0267.351.831; 

0372.226.700; 

26 DAMBOVITA Targoviste Branch  Targoviste 
Str. Calea Domneasca 

nr. 227 
0245.206.300; 
0372.224.500; 

27 DOLJ Dolj Branch  Craiova Str. Fratii Buzesti nr.17 
0251.307.300; 

0372.225.100; 

28 GALATI Galati Branch  Galati Str. Brailei nr. 31 
0236.410.550; 

0372.223.600; 

29 GIURGIU Giurgiu Branch  Giurgiu Str. Portului bl. 32 
0246.211.006; 

0372.224.600; 

30 GORJ Gorj Branch Targu Jiu 
Str. Tudor 

Vladimirescu nr.17 

0253.206.301; 

0253.206.300; 

0372.225.300; 

31 HARGHITA 
Miercurea Ciuc 

Branch  

Miercurea 

Ciuc 

Bdul Florilor nr.20, bl 

27 

0266.207.300; 

0266.207.302;  

0372.226.600; 

32 HUNEDOARA Deva Branch  Deva Str. Iuliu Maniu nr.18 
0254.213.911; 

0372.225.400; 

33 IALOMITA Ialomita Branch  Slobozia Bdul. Chimiei nr.13 
0243.212.822; 

0372.224.300; 

34 IASI Iasi Branch Iasi Sos Nationala nr 23 

0232.210.130; 
0232.215.965; 

0232.215.964; 

0372.223.200; 

35 MARAMURES Maramures Branch  Baia Mare Str. Bdul Unirii nr.18 
0262.207.400; 

0372.226.200; 

36 MEHEDINTI Mehedinti Branch  

Drobeta 

Turnu 

Severin 

Bdul T.Vladimirescu nr 
125-127 

0252.314.152; 
0372.225.200; 

37 MURES Targu Mures Branch Targu Mures 
Str. Gheorghe Doja nr 

64-68 

0265.260.993; 

0372.226.500; 

38 NEAMT Neamt Branch  Piatra Neamt 
Pta. Stefan cel Mare 

nr.3 
0233.206.400; 
0372.223.300; 

39 OLT Olt Branch  Slatina 
Str. Tudor 

Vladimirescu nr.1-3 

0249.430.901; 

0372.224.900; 

40 PRAHOVA Prahova Branch  Ploiesti Str. Unirii nr. 2 
0244.406.400; 

0372.224.400; 

41 SALAJ Zalau Branch  Zalau Str Unirii nr. 19 
0260.606.300; 
0372.226.000; 

42 SATU MARE Satu Mare Branch  Satu Mare 
Piata 25 Octombrie,Bl 

05 

0261.714.785 

0372.226.100; 

43 SIBIU Sibiu Branch  Sibiu 
Piata Aurel Vlaicu, 

parter, etI si II 

0269.211.309; 

0372.226.900; 

44 SIBIU Medias Branch  Medias Str. I.C. Bratianu nr.3 
0269.834.301; 
0372.707.111; 

45 SUCEAVA Suceava Branch  Suceava 
Bdul George Enescu nr 

16 

0230.207.300; 

0230.207.305; 

0372.223.000 
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Nr 

crt 
County Name City Address Phone 

 
46 

TELEORMAN Teleorman Branch  Alexandria 
Str. Av. Al.Colfescu 

nr.63 
0247.317.426; 
0372.224.700; 

47 TIMIS Timisoara Branch  Timisoara 
Str. Circumvalatiunii 

nr. 8-12 

0256.243.447; 

0256.242.095; 

0372.225.600; 

48 TULCEA Tulcea Branch  Tulcea Str. Grivitei nr 19 
0240.513.636; 

0372.224.000; 

49 VALCEA Valcea Branch  
Ramnicu 

Valcea 
Str. Stirbei Voda, bl T1 

0250.702.300; 

0372.225.000; 

50 VASLUI Vaslui Branch  Vaslui 
Str. Stefan cel Mare bl 

94, sc C, D, nr 2-4 

0235.307.600; 

0372.223.500; 

51 VRANCEA Vrancea Branch  Focsani 
Str. Maior Gheorghe 

Pastia nr.1 

0237.206.300; 

0237.206.301; 

0372.223.700; 

 

Raiffeisen Capital & Investment distribution network: 

 

Bucharest  

15 Charles de Gaulle Square, 4th floor, 011857, Bucharest 1,  

Phone no: 004 021 306 12 31 

Bucharest  

155 Calea Victoriei, bl D1, tronson 6, ground floor, Bucharest 1 

Phone no: 004 021 209.36.00, 004 021 209 36 26, 004 0372.707.046 

 

 

 

 


